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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 17 JUNE 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Ms Rangata,  good morning 

everybody.  

ADV RANGATA:   Good morning Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV RANGATA:   Thank you Chai r.   Today Chai r  for  me is  a 

very quick one.   On the 15 t h  o f  June before Chai r  there was 

an appl icat ion for  cross-examinat ion under SEQ17/2021 an 

appl i cat ion brought  by Mr Buthelez i  to  cross-examine Mr 

Sacks and Mr Popo Molefe.    10 

 Dur ing the appl i cat ion Chai r  has made a proposi t ion  

for  the par t ies to  consider  a d iscussion as to  how the mat ter  

can be resolved.  

 So Chai r  has d i rected that  Advocate Ngalwana who 

appeared on behal f  o f  the appl i cant  to  be in  contact  wi th  

Advocate Soni  to  engage as to  the issues or  the quest ions 

that  were ra ised in  Buthelez i ’s  a ff idavi t .  

 I  am here to  conf i rm Chai r  that  yesterday on the 16 t h  

the two advocate conf i rmed that  the agreement  be reached.   

I  am not  sure i f  the le t ter  should be  read in to the record or  I  20 

can just  conf i rm that  the par t ies have agreed to – to  a l l  the 

two par t ies at  a  la ter  s tage so that  the issues tha t  were 

outstanding as ra ised by the appl i cant  to  be deal t  wi th .  

CHAIRPERSON:   As I  understand the posi t ion the ev idence 

leader Mr Soni  p roposed that  the two wi tnesses be recal led 
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and so that  he could put  to  them Mr Buthelez i ’s  vers ion.  

ADV RANGATA:    Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And ask such fur ther  quest ions as he may 

deem necessary.  

ADV RANGATA:    Yes Chai r  that  is  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  wi l l  be a f ter  that  exerc ise that  Mr  

Buthelez i ’s  legal  team wi l l  decide whether  they want  to  

pursue the appl i cat ion for  leave to  cross-examine or  not .  

ADV RANGATA:    Yes Chai r  that  is  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV RANGATA:    That  is  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no that  is  f ine.   I  am happy w i th  that  

ar rangement .  

ADV RANGATA:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  is  what  wi l l  be done.  

ADV RANGATA:  So in  essence the  appl icat ion is  postponed 

pending what  the Chai r  has just  ment ioned.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV RANGATA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja  20 

ADV RANGATA:    Thank you very much Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The appl i cat ion is  postponed ja .  

ADV RANGATA:    Thank you.   Can I  be excused Chai r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are excused.  

ADV RANGATA:    Thank you.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.    Good morning Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Good morning Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Before we star t  I  just  want  to  make some 

announcement .    

 The commission d id not  have hear ings f rom I  th ink  

the 2n d  o f  June up to  the 14 t h  and i ts  term is  coming to  an 

end at  the end of  June and I  th ink there are a lo t  o f  people 

who wish to  know what  is  happening wi th  regard  to  the 

commission complet ing i ts  work and what  is  happening wi th  

the return to  the commission of  the President .  10 

 So I  th ink i t  i s  necessary tha t  I  make some 

announcement  and expla in where the commission is .  

 When the commission appl ied for  the extension of  i ts  

term f rom the end of  March to  the  end of  June I  had made 

an assessment  that  we would be able to  complete the  

hear ing of  o ra l  ev idence by end of  March and that  Apr i l ,  

May and June would be used fo r  the preparat ion  of  the  

repor t .  

 As i t  tu rned out  we d id not  complete the hear ing o f  

ora l  ev idence at  the end of  March and in  par t  that  would be  20 

because  

1 .  When one hears  ev idence in  a forum such as th is  

there are wi tnesses and lawyers  who need to be  

accommodated wi th in  cer ta in  reasonable l im i ts  and 

2 .  One’s assessment  can never  be absolute ly  accura te 
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and as one proceeds somet imes one becomes aware 

of  some evidence or  mat te rs that  one may not  have 

been aware of .  

So the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  the  assessment  tha t  was 

made was made in  good fa i th  bu t  i t  jus t  d id  no t  work  ou t .   

The ev idence tha t  s t i l l  needed to  be  heard  a t  the  end o f  –  

beyond the  end o f  March was very  impor tan t  ev idence.    

 I t  inc luded the  ev idence o f  fo rmer  sen ior  execut ives  

o f  SOE’s  such as  Transnet  and Eskom.    

I t  inc luded the  ev idence I  th ink  o f  the  fo rmer  10 

cha i rperson o f  the  Dene l  board  tha t  was appo in ted  in  2015.  

I t  inc luded the  ev idence re la t ing  to  Par l iamenta ry  

Overs igh t .    

I t  inc luded the  ev idence o f  the  ANC tha t  was g iven 

by  i t s  Nat iona l  Cha i rperson and fo rmer  Secre tary  Genera l  

Mr  Gwede Mantashe and by  the  Pres ident  o f  the  ANC.    

I t  inc luded ev idence re la t ing  to  a  fo rmer  Min i s te r  o f  

the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises  Mr  Malus i  G igaba.    

I t  inc luded the  ev idence re la t ing  to  ser ious  

a l legat ions o f  the  loo t ing  o f  pub l i c  funds in  the  S ta te  20 

Secur i t y  Agency  wh ich  I  as  the  Cha i rperson  o f  the 

commiss ion  cons ide red to  be  qu i te  impor tan t  fo r  the 

commiss ion  to  hear.  

 So i t  was necessary  in  tha t  the  commiss ion  shou ld  

cont inue to  hear  tha t  ev idence.   I t  heard  tha t  ev idence in  
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Apr i l  and May.   Some o f  tha t  ev idence is  s t i l l  be ing  heard  

and w i l l  be  heard  un t i l  the  end o f  June.  

 Dur ing  the  t ime tha t  the  commiss ion  has no t  been  

s i t t ing  f rom beg inn ing  o f  June tha t  t ime has enab led  us  to  

care fu l l y  look  a t  the  work  tha t  has been or  the  ground tha t  

has been covered by  the  commiss ion  i n  the  var ious work  

s t reams and I  am ab le  to  say tha t  as  th ings s tand sub jec t  

to  one qua l i f i ca t ion  we shou ld  have heard  a l l  o ra l  ev idence  

by  the  end o f  June tha t  the  commiss ion  cons iders  to  be  

impor tan t .  10 

 I  sa id  th is  i s  sub jec t  to  one qua l i f i ca t ion .   That  

qua l i f i ca t ion  is  tha t  there  are  about  four  o r  s ix  w i tnesses 

tha t  the  commiss ion  has ident i f ied  as  impor tan t  to  be  

ca l led  to  the  commiss ion  be fore  the  commiss ion  can 

proper ly  conc lude  the  hear ing  o f  o ra l  ev idence tha t  i s  apar t  

f rom the  Pres ident  because the  Pres ident  must  s t i l l  come 

back.  

 The Pres ident  and the  commiss ion  had prev ious l y  

ten ta t i ve l y  ident i f ied  the  29 t h  o f  June and the  30 t h  o f  June 

as  the  days when the  Pres iden t  wou ld  re turn  to  the 20 

commiss ion  to  comple te  h is  ev idence in  h is  capac i ty  as  the 

Pres ident  o f  the  ANC and to  g ive  ev idence in  h is  capac i ty  

as  Pres ident  o f  the  count ry  and fo rmer  Deputy  Pres ident  o f  

the  count ry  

 But  the  f i ve  or  s i x  w i tnesses or  imp l ica ted  persons 
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tha t  I  have sa id  the  commiss ion  has ident i f ied  w i l l  no t  be  

ab le  to  g ive  ev idence du r ing  June  there fore  i t  means tha t  

by  the  end o f  June we w i l l  s t i l l  be  need ing  some days to  

hear  the  ev idence o f  those f i ve  o r  s ix  w i tnesses and the  

ev idence o f  the  Pres ident  be fore  we can f ina l l y  conc lude 

a l l  o ra l  ev idence.  

 We are  go ing  to  be  app ly ing  to  the  H igh  Cour t  to  

ge t  more  t ime so  tha t  we can comple te  the  work  o f  the  

commiss ion  proper ly.   I f  the  H igh  Cour t  g ran ts  us  an  

ex tens ion  we  w i l l  be  ab le  to  hear  the  ev idence o f  those f i ve  10 

or  s i x  w i tnesses  in  Ju l y  as  we l l  as  the  ev idence o f  the  

Pres ident  hopefu l l y  be fore  or  no t  la te r  than 15 Ju ly.  

 And once we have heard  the  ev idence o f  those f i ve  

or  s ix  w i tnesses  and the  ev idence o f  the  Pres ident  then  

tha t  shou ld  conc lude the  hear ing  or  o ra l  ev idence o f  the  

commiss ion  wh ich  s ta r ted  in  August  2018.  

 In  the  course  o f  th is  morn ing  I  w i l l  s ign  the  a f f idav i t  

tha t  must  fo rm par t  o f  the  app l i ca t ion  papers  tha t  must  be  

launched in  the  H igh  Cour t  where  the  commiss ion  w i l l  ask  

the  H igh  Cour t  fo r  an  ex tens ion  o f  t ime.  20 

 We are  go ing  to  ask  fo r  an  ex tens ion  o f  t ime f rom 

the  end o f  June up to  the  end o f  September.   My  

assessment  i s  tha t  the  prepara t ion  o f  the  repor t  shou ld  be  

comple te  by  the  end o f  August  bu t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  have  

September  jus t  in  case we do no t  comple te  the  repor t  a t  
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the  end o f  August .  

 A lo t  o f  work  has been go ing  on fo r  qu i te  some t ime 

o f  summar is ing  and ana lys ing  the  ev idence tha t  w i l l  

fac i l i ta te  the  prepara t ion  o f  the  repor t .    

 I  know tha t  some wi th in  the  pub l i c  have grown very  

impat ien t  w i th  the  commiss ion  demand ing tha t  i t  shou ld  

comple te  i t s  work .   Some o f  the  peop le  who say tha t  do  so  

in  good fa i th  bu t  o thers  do  so  fo r  the i r  own reasons.  

 I  am ve ry  keen tha t  the  work  o f  the  commiss ion  be  

comple ted  as  soon as  poss ib le .   I  have a  very  ded ica ted  10 

team in  the  commiss ion  a l l  o f  whom are  work ing  very  hard  

to  t ry  and make sure  tha t  the  work  o f  the  commiss ion  is  

comple ted  as  soon as  poss ib le .   

 In  th is  regard  I  am speak ing  abou t  the  members  o f  

the  lega l  team,  I  speak about  members  o f  the  invest iga t ion  

team,  I  speak about  the  secre tar ia t  and a l l  the  s ta f f  o f  the  

commiss ion .   Everybody has watched and seen how 

everybody in  the  commiss ion  has  been work ing  very  ha rd  

inc lud ing  sess ions in  the  even ings and s i t t ings  on  

Saturdays and on  pub l i c  ho l idays because they are  a l l  very  20 

commi t ted  tha t  the  work  o f  the  commiss ion  be  done and  

comple ted  as  soon as  poss ib le .  

 I  am a lso  gra te fu l  to  very  many  members  o f  the  

lega l  p ro fess ion  Advocates  and A t to rneys who appear  on  

beha l f  o f  var ious  persons who have g i ven th is  commiss ion  
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coopera t ion  and  have appeared  in  even ing  sess ions.   

Everybody is  work ing  ha rd  to  t ry  and ass is t  the  

commiss ion .  

 But  the  one th ing  tha t  I  w i l l  no t  do  is  th is .   I  w i l l  no t  

end the  work  o f  the  commiss ion  in  an  i r respons ib le  manner.   

I  am go ing  to  repeat  tha t .   I  w i l l  no t  end the  work  o f  the  

commiss ion  in  an  i r respons ib le  manner  jus t  because I  want  

to  sa t is f y  those who demand  tha t  the  commiss ion  shou ld  

f in ish  i t s  work .  

 When I  s ta r ted  w i th  th is  commiss ion  I  made i t  qu i te  10 

c lea r  tha t  th is  commiss ion  wou ld  do  i t s  work  proper l y.   That  

remains  impor tan t .   In  seek ing  to  comple te  the  hear ing  o f  

the  ora l  ev idence we w i l l  ac t  p roper ly ;  we w i l l  ac t  in  a 

respons ib le  manner ;  we w i l l  no t  seek to  ac t  in  a  haphazard  

manner  o r  ab rupt ly.  

 I  have a  respons ib i l i t y  to  make su re  tha t  the  work  o f  

the  commiss ion  is  done p roper ly.   I  have a  respons ib i l i t y  to  

do  my best  to  ensure  tha t  there  is  fa i rness to  peop le  who  

are  imp l ica ted  and I  in tend to  do  my best  to  make su re  tha t  

when we have f in ished the  work  o f  the  commiss ion  we are  20 

ab le  to  l ook  back  and say we ac ted  proper ly  and we ac ted  

respons ib ly.  

 Hav ing  sa id  a l l  o f  tha t  I  am happy tha t  where  we a re  

i s  ve ry  c lose  to  f in ish ing .   As  I  say  by  end o f  June we 

shou ld  be  le f t  –  we w i l l  be  le f t  w i th  about  f i ve  or  s ix  
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w i tnesses p lus  the  Pres ident  –  o ther  than tha t  what  w i l l  be 

le f t  i s  the  prepara t ion  o f  the  repor t .  

 So I  thought  i t  i s  impor tan t  jus t  to  update  the  pub l i c  

as  to  where  we are  and to  a l so  ind ica te  tha t  we w i l l  be  

launch ing  I  be l ieve  today ou r  app l i ca t ion  in  the  H igh  Cour t  

fo r  the  ex tens ion  o f  the  te rm o f  the  commiss ion  so  tha t  the  

commiss ion  can f in ish  i t s  work  proper ly.  

 That  i s  the  announcement  I  wanted to  make.   Yes  

Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you.   Cha i rperson today –  10 

th is  morn ing  leas t  has been schedu led  fo r  the  cont inuat ion  

o f  the  ev idence o f  Mr  S ingh w i th in  the  Transnet  s t ream.   Mr 

S ingh is  here  I  p resume we need to… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Re-admin is te r  the  oa th  or  the  

a f f i rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease admin is te r  the  oa th  and –  or  

a f f i rmat ion .   Good morn ing  Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH:   Morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have a l ready greeted your  lega l  team.   20 

Good morn ing .   Thank you.   I  unders tand Mr  S ingh tha t  we  

a l l  hope tha t  th is  i s  your  las t  day here .  

MR SINGH:   Indeed S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .    

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  
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MR SINGH:   Ano j  S ingh.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR SINGH:   I  do  no t .   I  do  no t .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR SINGH:   I  do .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  say,  so  10 

he lp  me God.  

MR SINGH:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you and  jus t  to  make sure  tha t  

there  i s  c la r i t y  about  what  I  announced.   So the  P res ident  

i s  no t  go ing  to  appear  be fo re  the  commiss ion  be fore  the  

end o f  June.   Another  da te  w i l l  have to  be  ar ranged.   That  

i s  because i t  i s  p roper  tha t  the  Pres ident  shou ld  be  the  las t  

w i tness to  g i ve  ev idence.   So –  and the re  a re  o the r  

w i tnesses tha t  must  s t i l l  come be fore  h im.   So he  is  no t  

go ing  to  appear  be fore  the  commiss ion  on  the  29 t h  o f  –  and  20 

30 t h  o f  June but  we w i l l  wa i t  fo r  the  H igh  Cour t  to  dea l  w i th  

our  app l i ca t ion .   I f  i t  g ran ts  us  the  ex tens ion  then  we w i l l  

f i x  a  da te  fo r  the  Pres ident  and fo r  the  o ther  w i tnesses and 

tha t  w i l l  be  announced in  due course .  

 Of  course  i f  the  H igh  Cour t  does not  g ran t  us  some 
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ex tens ion  tha t  w i l l  be  tha t .  

 Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.   Good 

morn ing  Mr  S ingh .  

MR SINGH:   Good morn ing  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   The las t  –  a t  the  end o f  the  las t  

s i t t ing  we had been dea l ing  w i th  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  

1064 locomot ives .   You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  we dea l t  w i th  the  

or ig ina l  bus iness  case,  the  a l leged misrep resenta t ion  in  

re la t ion  to  the  increase in  the  ETC.   We dea l t  w i th  the  ro le  10 

o f  Reg iments  and  we had ended by  dea l i ng  w i th  the  hurd le  

ra te .  

 I  jus t  want  to  p ick  up  and end o f f  in  re la t ion  to  the  

ro le  o f  Reg iments  and perhaps what  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  do  is  

jus t  to  show you  some documents  tha t  may i l l us t ra te  the  

ro le  tha t  they p layed.  

 You have a l ready g i ven ev idence  and summar ised  

what  they –  what  they d id .   Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease  to p ick  

ou t  Transnet  Bund le  4B.   Transnet  Number  4B –  Bund le  4B 

has got  a  number  o f  d iv iders  in  i t .   Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease  20 

to  go  to  what  I  th ink  shou ld  be  the  second las t  d iv ider  and 

tha t  i s  BB4H.   A re  you there?   

MR SINGH:   I  am there  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r igh t  so  what  you f ind  a t  BB4H a t  

page 795 i s  a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Ca l la rd .   A re 
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you  there?  

MR SINGH:   I t  i s  b lack  numbers?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry.  

MR SINGH:   The b lack  numbers?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   795 b lack  number.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now I  am not  go ing  to  take  you  

th rough the  a f f idav i t  I  want  to  ac tua l l y  show you the  10 

documents  tha t  a re  a t tached.   Perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  fo r  

contex t  take  you to  799.   Wha t  Mr  Ca l la rd  dea ls  w i th  

parag raph 17 to  23  is  the  so  ca l l ed  Reg iments  Pr ice  Walk  

and what  he  pu ts  up  is  a  number  o f  documents  emanat ing  

f rom Reg iments  runn ing  f rom February  2014 you w i l l  see  

tha t  a t  paragraph  17 a l l  the  way th rough to  paragraph 23 – 

these a re  s l ides  tha t  fo rm par t  o f  the  presenta t ion  to  the  

board  in  May 2014.    

 But  i t  i s  to  the  documents  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  

you Mr  S ingh.   Cou ld  you p lease go to  page 816.   Now you 20 

w i l l  see  in  many ins tances what  these documents  compr ise  

o f  a re  emai ls  and  then s l ide  p resenta t ions.     

 Now a t  page 816  you see an emai l  f rom a Mr  or  Ms  

Gabr ie l  Sa las i  da ted  the  25 t h  o f  February  and i t  i s  sent  to  

Mr  Laher  and Mr  Smi t .   They were  persons ass i s t ing  you in  
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the  post  tender  negot ia t ions .   Cor rec t .  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you w i l l  see  tha t  o f ten  these 

emai ls  a re  cc ’d  to  in te r  a l ia  Mr  N iven P i l lay,  you see  tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And the  a t tachment  here  i s  summary 

s l ides  and i f  you go to  page 817 you w i l l  see  i t  i s  da ted  the  

25 t h  o f  February  2014 and the  s l ides  are  headed Transnet  

F inanc ia l  and R isk  Ana lys i s  fo r  the  1064 Procurement  

Negot ia t ions .   I  take  i t  tha t  –  was  th is  a  s l ide  presenta t ion  10 

tha t  was then made to  you by  Reg iments?  

MR SINGH:   I  do  no t  reca l l  th is  exact  p resenta t ion  bu t  I  

reca l l  someth ing  l i ke  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r igh t .   I f  I  cou ld  then ask  you to  

go  to  page 821 aga in  f rom Gabr ie l  Sa las i  now the  6 t h  o f  

March  you w i l l  see  a t  822 another  s l ide  presenta t ion  da ted  

the  5 t h  o f  March ,  do  you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  go  to  

826 th is  t ime f rom AJ Mystery  f rom Reg iments  the  7 t h  o f  20 

March aga in  to  Messrs  Laher  and Smi t .   The emai l  says  in  

the  second paragraph  

“F ind  a t tached fo r  your  rev iew updated  

execut ive  summary s l ides  o f  the  1064 

pro jec t .   The summary has been updated to  
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inc lude the  rev ised esca la t ion  dr ivers  as  

requested. ”  

 You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And tha t  s l ide  presenta t i on  then 

appears  over  the  page.   You see tha t .  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  you go to  page 832 there  

is  a  fu r ther  communica t ion  f rom Mr  Myste ry  and another  

one a t  833.   And 833 reads:  10 

“F ind  a t tached fo r  up  –  fo r  the  updated  

execut ive  summary s l ides  fo r  the  1064  

pro jec t . ”  

 Those s l ides  you f ind  a t  –  commencing  a t  page 834.   

You see tha t .  

MR SINGH:   I  see  tha t  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And so  we go on.   I f  you  go  to  page  

839 there  is  an  emai l  on  28  May:  

“P lease f ind  a t tached he deck  w i th  the  

changes to  the  two las t  s l ides  as  20 

requested. ”  

 And those s l ides  appear  a t  840.   And then the re  is  a  

d i f fe ren t  document  a t  848.   I t  i s  a  –  pu t  up  by  Mr  Ca l la rd  –  

so  ca l led  Reg iments  Pr i ce  Walk  where  you see how the  

pr ice  evo lved f rom February  th rough to  May,  do  you see  
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tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then a t  850 there  is  another  s l ide  

presenta t ion  th is  t ime dated 12 February  f rom Reg iments  

and tha t  i s  qu i te  a  lengthy  deck as  i t  i s  ca l led .   I t  goes a l l  

the  way to  878.   And then i f  you can go to  880 on the  17 t h  

o f  February  ano ther  communica t ion  f rom Reg iments  to  

Laher  and Smi t .  

“A t tached a re  the  s l ides  showing tha t  there  

is  ac tua l l y  a  ne t  cos t  i f  you  pay b ig  depos i ts  10 

fo r  the  locos”  

 And then there  is  s l ides  a t tached  to  tha t .   Do you  

see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   So  you are  a t  880?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   880.    

MR SINGH:   Ja .   Okay I  am there .   That  i s  cor rec t  I  am 

there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then a t  886 another  

communica t ion  f rom Reg iments  –  another  s l ide  

presenta t ion  a t  887.   Those s l ides  are  da ted 21 February  20 

2014.   You see tha t .  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  886?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry.  

MR SINGH:   You are  a t  886?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  am a t  886  yes.   And then i f  you go  
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to  891.   Communica t ion  f rom Reg iments  da ted 25 February  

2014.   Now th is  t ime i t  i s  addressed to  you.    

“Dear  Ano j .   My ca l l  ear l ie r  w i th  Dan ie  

re fers .   P lease  f ind  a t tached the  exce l  

workbook tha t  inc ludes the  to ta l  cash f lows  

per  year  fo r  the  d iese l  and  e lec t r i c  

locomot ives  fo r  the  respect ive  b idders .   The  

cash f lows are  based on a  max imum 50  

locomot ives  de l i very  schedu le .   I  hope th is  

i s  in  o rder. ”  10 

 You see tha t .  

MR SINGH:   I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then  a t tached presumably  i s  

what  i s  re fe r red  to  as  the  exce l  workbook a t  892 and 893.   

Do you conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:   Yes I  do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  you go to  895 there  is  a  

fu r ther  communica t ion  a t  the  top  o f  the  page on the  5 t h  o f  

March .   You see tha t .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then o f  impor tance and  th is  i s  

rea l l y  where  I  wanted to  take  you to .   Cou ld  I  ask  you  

p lease to  have a  look a t  898.   Because what  we know i s  

tha t  the  board  o f  d i rec to rs  approved the  increase  in  the  

ETC a t  a  meet ing  on  the  25 t h  o f  May 2014.   And 898 you  
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see  a  communica t ion  f rom Reg iments  da ted the  21s t  o f  May  

and the  sub jec t  is  Summary S l ides fo r  the  Repor t  to  the  

Board .   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i t  says :  

“Dear  Yusuf .   P lease f ind  a t tached the  

backup s l ides  fo r  your  repor t  to  the  board . ”  

 Now tha t  repor t  to  the  board  we know i s  what  we  

re fer red  to  p rev ious l y  as  the  ETC memo,  cor rec t  Mr  S ingh? 

MR SINGH:   That  a r ised ETC? 10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .   And then i t  says :  

“ In  the  s l ides  on  cost  esca la t ion  we have  

had made an assumpt ion  tha t  you have  

negot ia ted  a  f la t  cos t  esca la t ion  ( fo r  CNR,  

CSR and Bombard ier )  as  per  the  resu l t  o f  

our  mode l .   P lease do not  hes i ta te  to  

contac t  us  shou ld  you need fu r ther  

in fo rmat ion  or  c la r i f i ca t ion . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   I  see  tha t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And th i s  t ime th is  emai l  i s  cc ’d  to  Mr  

Er ic  Wood.   You see tha t .  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then the  next  day i f  you  go to  

page 900 on the  22n d  o f  May aga in  to  Mr  Laher.  
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“We have a t tached the  summary s l ides  w i th  

a l l  the  proposed changes.   Shou ld  you  

requ i re  to  inc lude fu r ther  changes p lease  

send us  your  comments  or  suggest ions as  

soon as  poss ib le . ”  

 You see tha t .  

MR SINGH:   I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now those s l ides  you f ind  

commencing  a t  page 901 dated the  21s t  o f  May.   You see  

tha t .  10 

MR SINGH:   I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  I  cou ld  take  you f ina l l y  

p lease to  page 909.   And I  am so r ry  I  may have sa id  tha t  

the  –  the  meet ing  o f  the  board  o f  d i rec to rs  was on the  25 t h  

o f  May i t  was in  fac t  on  the  28 t h  o f  May.   And th is  emai l  a t  

909 is  on  the  29 t h  o f  May f rom Reg iments  Gabr ie l  Sa las i  

aga in  cc ’d  to  Mr  Wood.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You sa id  29  May i t  i s  wr i t ten  28  May,  i s  

tha t  r igh t  –  cor rec t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes I  beg your  pa rdon.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  i t  i s  the  same day as  the  board  o f  

d i rec tors  meet ing  28  May.   I  th ink  where  I  sa id  9  i s  a t  page  

909.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr  S ingh are  you there?  

MR SINGH:   Yes I  am.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And what  i t  says  is :  

“Dear  Yusuf .   I  have had a  d i scuss ion  w i th  

N iven –  or  I  had d iscuss ion  w i th  N iven a  

few hours  ago about  the  changes you wou ld  

l i ke  us  to  make on the  s l ides . ”  

 You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  I  assume tha t  i s  N iven P i l lay?  10 

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i t  i s  cc ’d  to  Mr  Wood.   I s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Those are  the  two peop le  who are  

a l leged to  have done the  dea l  w i th  Mr  Essa in  re la t ion  to  

the  appo in tments  o f  Reg iments  tha t  he  wou ld  take  50 cents  

to  the  rand.   You know tha t  by  now,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   When you engaged  20 

Reg iments ,  d id  you engage them on a  conf ident ia l  bas is  

tha t  –  were  they requ i red  to  keep the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  they 

ga ined as your  t ransact ion  adv i so rs  conf ident ia l?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  assume so ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And I  assume tha t  you wou ld  accept  
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tha t  g iven th is  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  tha t  we have d iscussed –  

o f  course ,  the re  is  no  way o f  knowing whether  Reg iments  

shared th is  in fo rmat ion  w i th  Mr  Essa.    

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And whethe r  Mr  Essa,  in  tu rn ,  shared 

i t  w i th  CNR and CSR.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  you  do unders tand tha t  in  

e f fec t  Mr  Essa was in  par tnersh ip  w i th  Reg iments  and a t  

the  same t ime,  s imu l taneous ly,  on  the  ev idence tha t  has 10 

been led  by  Money- f lows,  he  was in  a  par tnersh ip  w i th  CSR 

and CNR.  

MR SINGH :    On ev idence tha t  you  have demonst ra ted .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja ,  a l r igh t .   And you have qu i te  

cand id l y  sa id  tha t  o f  course  on th is  ev idence,  Reg iments  

wou ld  have been h igh l y  d isqua l i f ied  f rom be ing  your  

t ransact ion  adv i sors ,  obv ious ly.   No,  I  am sor ry.   I  do  no t  

mean on th is  ev idence.   I  mean on the  ev idence tha t  I  have 

jus t  ske tched to  you,  the  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t .  

MR SINGH :    Had  we known about  i t?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    They wou ld  have been h igh ly  

d isqua l i f ied .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  so  tha t  the  t ransc r ip t  c lear l y  

re f lec t s .   Your  answer  was yes?  

MR SINGH :    On . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    On . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

MR SINGH :    . . .had we known th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    . . . the  t ime when they engaged.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now we know tha t  on  the  10 

6 t h  o f  December  2012 –  we are  now go ing  back in  t ime – an  

LOI  was conc luded between McKinsey and Transnet  where  

we saw tha t  Reg iments  rep laced Letsema.   Do you reca l l  

tha t?  

MR SINGH :    On the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    6  December.  

MR SINGH :    2012?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    2012.   

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And I  had asked you – you remember  20 

–  some quest ions about  whether  in  the  run  up  to  tha t  LOI  

you had any dea l ings. . .  

MECHANICAL INTERRUPTION :   [00 :37 :39]  

MR SINGH :    . . . th is  wou ld  –  may have come across v ia  an  

in te rac t ion  by  McK insey but  I  can  ca tegor ica l l y  s ta te  tha t  
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th is  was in  no  way,  shape o r  fo rm due to  the  in t roduct ion  

by  Mr  Essa.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay,  w i l l  you  not  speak up a  b i t ,  

p lease.   I f  you  do  not  m ind.  

MR SINGH :    Oh,  sor ry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Or  maybe jus t  c lose r  to  the  

m icrophone.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.   I  am say ing  tha t  th is  may have come 

across o r  ac tua l l y  wou ld  have come across  v ia  an  

in t roduct ion  f rom McKinsey and my in te rac t ions w i th  10 

McKinsey a t  tha t  t ime was pr imar i l y  w i th  Mr  Sagar.   So,  I  

wou ld  assume tha t  i t  wou ld  have come about  as  a  resu l t  an  

in t roduct ion  f rom h imse l f  bu t  I  can ca tegor i ca l l y  s ta te  tha t  

a t  th is  po in t  there  was no in te rac t ions be tween myse l f  and 

Mr  Essa re la t ing  to  th is  mat te r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay,  bu t  then –  so ,  you say there  i t  

came about  as  a  consequence  o f  an  in t roduc t ion  by  

McK insey?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  i t  is  headed:   Mee t ing  Re 20 

Pens ion  Fund.   What  was tha t  abou t?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  reca l l ,  s i r.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay,  then le t  me ask you.   D id  you  

have th is  meet ing  w i th  Mr  P i l lay?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  reca l l  the  meet ing ,  Mr  Cha i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   I  mean,  you know the  

h is to ry,  I  take  i t ,  in  re la t ion  to  Reg iments  and the  pens ion  

fund?  You know what  happened a f te rwards?  

MR SINGH :    Somet ime a f te r  tha t ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   I  mean,  Reg iments  –  you must  

cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong –  were  appo in ted  the  

admin is t ra to r  o f  the  second and f ina l  pens ion  fund and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And what  happened is .   They 10 

d isbursed fo r  themse lves R 250 mi l l ion  f rom the  pens ion  

fund.   There  was  l i t iga t ion  tha t  ensured and they,  in  fac t ,  

pa id  i t  back.   You  know tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  am g iven to  unders tand,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So,  your  ev idence  is .   You 

see the  mai l .   I t  appears  tha t  you  agreed to  a  ten  o ’c lock  

meet ing  on  3  December,  bu t  you cannot  remember  the  

meet ing?  

MR SINGH :    No,  I  do  no t  reca l l  i t .   Yes.   Not  o f f  hand,  no .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  can you remember  the  f i rs t  t ime 20 

tha t  you met  Mr  N iven P i l lay?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  there  o the r  t imes,  o ther  than the  

f i rs t  t ime,  when you met?  
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MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  s i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  there  o the r  t imes,  o ther  than the  

f i rs t  t ime,  when you met  h im?  In  o ther  words.   Mr  Myburgh 

asked you whether  you remember  the  f i rs t  t ime you met  

h im.   You sa id  no .   I  am wonder ing  whether  tha t  means you 

never  met  h im o r  tha t  means you d id  meet  h im,  bu t  you do 

not  remember  the  f i rs t  t ime,  bu t  you do remember  o ther  

t imes.  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  subsequent  to  tha t  th rough  

the  t ransact ion  adv i sory  work ,  I ,  obv ious ly,  met  Mr  P i l lay.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    Bu t  my f i rs t  in te rac t ions w i th  Mr  P i l lay  wou ld  

have come about  as  a  resu l t  o f  the  in t roduct ion  by  

McK insey as  the i r  supp ly  deve lopment  par tne r.   P r io r  to  

tha t ,  I  do  no t  th ink  I  had any in te rac t ions w i th  Reg iments ,  

Mr  Wood or  Mr  P i l lay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Le t  me then move to  a  

d i f fe ren t  i ssue.   I  jus t  want  to  ask  your  comments  to  one or  

two th ings be fore  we move fo rward .   Cou ld  you p lease tu rn  20 

up Exh ib i t  BB-27?  That  i s  the  Transnet  POI  Re ference  

Bund le .    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And can you go to  page 184,  p lease? 

MR SINGH :    I  am there ,  s i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  I  see  someth ing  tha t  we have  

a l ready dea l t  w i th ,  bu t  I ,  in  fa i rness,  jus t  want  you  to  have  

an oppor tun i ty  to  comment  on  i t .   I f  you  have a  look a t  

parag raph 5 .9 .12 .6 ,  the  second paragraph a t  page 184.   

Th is  i s  pa r t  o f  the  Fundudz i  Locomot ive  Repor t .   The  

f ind ing  is :  

“Mo le fe  and S ingh,  there fo re ,  m is lead the  

BADC in to  be l iev ing  tha t  the  ETC o f  

R 38.6  b i l l i on  exc luded the  re levant  cos ts  and 

i t  was S ingh who ins t ruc ted  Mohamedi  to  10 

change the  bus iness case to  re f lec t  tha t  the 

re levant  cos ts  were  exc luded. . . ”  

Have you got  any  fu r ther  comment  to  make on tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  th ink ,  Mr  Cha i r,  we have t raversed th is  

par t i cu la r  mat te r  a t  the  prev ious sess ions a t  the  

Commiss ion .   Other  than to  say –  o ther  than to  add to  what  

has a l ready been  sa id ,  Mr  Cha i r,  in  th is  regard .   The issue  

o f  p resent ing  the  rev ised var ian ts  to  the  board  d id  no t  on l y  

occu r,  Mr  Cha i r,  on  the  28 t h  o f  May 2014 as  we wou ld  see 

here .   The Board  Acqu is i t ion  and D isposa l  Commi t tee ,  20 

Mr  Cha i r,  was presented w i th  the  f ina l  es t imated costs  o f  

the  locomot ive  cont rac ts  in  February  2014.    

 And a t  tha t  meet ing ,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  rev ised costs  o f  

the  locomot ives  were  d isc losed to  the  Board  Acqu is i t ion  

and D isposa l  Commi t tee .   And a t  tha t  s tage,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  
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reca l l  cor rec t l y  f rom memory,  th is  was a  meet ing  tha t  

happened in  February  2014.   I  th ink  i t  was the  26 t h  o f  

February  2014 and the  rev ised  cont rac t  va lue  o f  the  

locomot ives  a t  tha t  t ime was R 52 b i l l i on .    

 So,  the  38  to  55  esca la t ion  was d isc losed to  the  

board  way befo re  we conc luded the  cont rac t s .   And the  

reasons fo r  the  esca la t ions  were  a lso  d i sc losed  to  the  

Board  Acqu is i t ion  and D isposa l  Commi t tee  a t  the  t ime.   A t  

tha t  meet ing ,  Mr  Cha i r,  there  was no ind i ca t ion  tha t  the  

board  had d isagreed w i th  the  fac t  tha t  we had mis led  them.   10 

They were  fu l l y  aware  o f  the  inc reases and the  reasons fo r  

the  increases,  as  we d iscussed in  te rms o f  the  esca la t ions 

and the  fo rex  and the  ba tch  pr ic ing  as  we l l  as  the  

R 52 b i l l i on ,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  I  have ment ioned  d id  no t  

inc lude the  cont ingenc ies .    

 And even when we presented to  the  board  in  May,  

Mr  Cha i r,  the  m inutes  w i l l  re f lec t  tha t  none o f  the  board  

members  ac tua l l y  quer ied  or  ac tua l l y  sa id  tha t  no  we have 

been mis lead ing  them in  any way,  shape,  o r  fo rm.   The –  

wh ich  cor robora tes  the  or ig ina l  in ten t ion  tha t  I  ment ioned 20 

before ,  i s  tha t  the  ob jec t i ve  o f  the  in ten t ion  by  inc lud ing  

the  words tha t  we inc luded was to  convey the  fac t  tha t  the  

bus iness case is  sub jec t  to  cer ta in  economic  fac tors  tha t  

w i l l  change over  a  per iod  o f  t ime.    

 And tha t  i s  –  was the  or ig ina l  in ten t ion  and on ly  
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in ten t ion  beh ind ,  inc lud ing  those words.   I t  was no t  meant  

to  m is lead,  o r  i t  was not  meant  to  in  any way,  shape,  o r  

fo rm fo r  any o the r  in tended purposes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So,  you deny any  

misrepresenta t ion?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Can I  jus t  take  you to  page 187 and 

ask you to  look  towards the  foo t  o f  the  page?  The second  

las t  parag raph 5 .9 .12 .21.    

“Accord ing  to  the  spreadsheet  found in  10 

Mr  Gama’s  emai l s ,  Ca l la rd  ca l cu la ted  the  ETC 

o f  R 38.6  b i l l i on . . . ”  

And he has g iven  ev idence about  th is .  

“The tab le  be low ind ica tes  the  breakdown o f  

the  R 38.6  b i l l i on . . . ”  

Accord ing  to  Ca l l a rd  and you w i l l  see  in  the  tab le ,  there  is  

an  amount  o f  R 1 .7  m i l l ion  fo r  fo rex  and then over  the  

page,  R 2 .775 mi l l ion  fo r  esca la t ion  and R 2 .232 mi l l ion  fo r  

cont ingency.   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  see tha t ,  s i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then you w i l l  under  tha t  tab le ,  

as  d iscussed ea r l ie r  in  the  repor t ,  the  ETC ca lcu la ted  by  

Ca l la rd  inc luded  fo rex ,  esca la t ion ,  cont ingency fees  

amount ing  to  R 6 .7  b i l l i on .   Wel l ,  i f  you  add up the  th ree  

f igures  tha t  I  have jus t  re fe r red  you to ,  you w i l l  ge t  to  the 
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s ix ,  seven.   Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then,  cou ld  I  p lease take  you back 

to  your  Bund le  5(c)?    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And th is  t ime,  i f  you  cou ld  go  r igh t  to  

the  end to  page 2337?   

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A re  you the re?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  th is  is  an  emai l  f rom a  m is ter  

o r  m iss  Goma f rom the  DPE,  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page,  sent  

on  the  31 s t  o f  March ,  addressed to  you.  

“Good morn ing ,  A .   Whi le  we awai t  Transnet ’s  

o f f i c ia l  response  on the  hundred locomot ives ,  

we have a lso  no ted tha t  the  Transnet  med ia  

re lease on the  p rocurement  o f  1064 ind i ca ted  

tha t  the  va lue  o f  the  t ransact ion  was about  

R 50 b i l l i on .  

However,  the  depar tment  on l y  approved 20 

R 38.6  b i l l i on  as  per  the  Sect ion  54  PFMA 

app l i ca t ion .    

Why is  the re  such a  huge d i f fe rence between 

what  was approved and the  ac tua l  t ransact ion  

va lue  and w i l l  Transnet  be  mak ing  a  fo rmal  
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submiss ion  to  exp la in  th is  d i f fe rence to  the  

Mins te r? . . . ”  

And you then respond,  i s  tha t  co r rec t ,  on  the  same day?  

A t  the  top  o f  the  page.  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You responded a t  the  top  o f  the  

page?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you say:  

“Thanks fo r  your  emai l .   Yes,  indeed.   The 

approva l  was fo r  R 38.6  b i l l i on  bu t  exc luded 

the  impacts  o f  fo re ign  exchange and  

esca la t ions. . . ”  

Wel l ,  tha t  we know not  to  be  cor rec t .  

MR SINGH :    In  the  contex t ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja ,  sure .   And then the  second las t  

parag raph you say:  

“Typ ica l l y,  the  above i tems are  no t  inc luded in  20 

the  ETC. . . ”  

But  they were  in  th is  ETC? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .    

MR SINGH :    Bu t  I  th ink  in  the  contex t ,  Mr  Myburgh,  we w i l l  
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have to  read the  fu l l  sen tence.   The fu l l  sen tence – the  

contents  o f  the  fu l l  sen tence:  

“Sub jec t  to  the  economic  cond i t ions  a t  the  t ime 

o f  cont rac t ing  and are  no t  avo idab le  and they 

are  mere  funct ions o f  the  economic  inputs  a t  

the  t ime o f  cont rac t . . . ”  

So,  th is  aga in ,  goes to  the  fac t  tha t  they may have been 

inc luded in  the  bus iness case but  a t  an  es t imated va lue .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then you go on to  say:    

“ I  hope th is  he lps  bu t  wou ld  a l so  prov ide  to  10 

DPE a  fu l l  repor t  to  the  t ransact ion  once the  

BOD has approved same. . . ”  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And we know then tha t  i t  was –  we l l ,  

the  inc rease in  the  ETC was approved on 28 May  2014.   

Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Two months  or  so  la te r?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  go  to  20 

Bund le  5(b) ,  your  o ther  f i l e ,  Transnet  Bund le  5(b)?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And cou ld  I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page  

977?  

MR SINGH :    N ine ,  s i r?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    977.  

MR SINGH :    I  am there ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  S ingh,  th is  i s  the  SAICA 

f ind ing ,  The South  A f r i can Ins t i tu te  o f  Char te red 

Accountant .   I t  i s  a  f ind ing  –  i t  was made in  respec t  o f  a  –  

appear ing  in  re la t ion  to  you and the  sanct ion  tha t  imposed  

is  tha t  you were  exc luded f rom membersh ip  o f  SAICA.   

Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now I  jus t  want  to  take  you to  10 

paragraph 42 bu t  I  am not  go ing  to  each one o f  these  

paragraphs and I  am not  go ing  to  come back to  th is  bu t  by  

way o f  i l l us t ra t ion ,  we know tha t  there  were  a  number  o f  

f ind ings made aga ins t  you in  re la t ion  to  the  1064 

t ransact ion .   You are  aware  o f  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And here ,  the  one tha t  we are  

dea l ing  w i th  now,  paragraph 42 a t  page 8 .989.  

“We,  there fore ,  f ind  Mr  S ing  gu i l t y  o f  improper  

conduct  in  respect  o f  Charge 2  w i th in  the  20 

mean ing  o f  By laws 34.2  by  conduct ing  h imse l f  

g ross ly  neg l igent  in  fa i l ing  to  ensure  tha t  the  

bus iness case accura te ly  and c lear l y  s ta ted  

tha t  the  in i t ia l  cos ts  o f  R 38.6  b i l l i on  inc luded 

the  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  on  fo rex  hedg ing ,  fo rex  
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esca la t ion  and o ther  p r ice  esca la t ions. . . ”  

Do you have any o ther  comment?   You have dea l t  w i th  th is  

a l ready.  

MR SINGH :    I  th ink  my comments  have been. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  what  I  wanted to  ask  you  

though is .   Why is  i t  tha t  you d id  no t  pa r t i c ipa te  in  these  

proceed ings?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  –  I  th ink  I  have been asked th is  

quest ion  be fore  and i t  was based  on lega l  adv i ce  tha t  we  

do not  par t i c ipa te  in  these proceed ings.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was based on lega l  adv i ce  tha t . . .?  

MR SINGH :    That  we do not  par t i c ipa te  in  these  

proceed ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   I s  tha t  lega l  adv ice  tha t  you 

are  no t  p repared to  share .  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    I  am go ing  to  ob jec t  a t  th is  po in t ,  

Cha i rperson.   My  learned f r iend knows as  we l l  as  I  do  tha t  

whatever  t ransp i red  be tween Mr  S ingh and h is  lega l  

adv isors  a f te r  a  b reach(?)  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  he  has  no t  demanded tha t  he  

shou ld  share  tha t  he  –  he  has asked whethe r  he  is  

p repared to  share  i t  and. . .    

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    Bu t  s t i l l ,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  i s  just  

another  way o f  ge t t ing  a  w i tness w i thout  in fo rming  o f  the  
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consequences to  wa ive  h i s  p r iv i lege and I  do  ob jec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no .   He obv ious ly  knows these 

th ings and he jus t  wanted to  con f i rm tha t  Mr  S ingh wou ld  

say whether  he  i s  p repared to  share  i t  o r  no t .   What  was  

the  answer,  Mr  S ingh?  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  s i r?   I  d id  no t  hear  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you prepared to  share  i t  o r  no t?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Fa i r  enough.   Cou ld  I  then 10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Ja ,  be fore  we move o f f  th is  po in t ,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  d i rec t  the  Commiss ioner ’s  a t ten t ion  to  

parag raph 43 on page 989.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

MR SINGH :    Bas ica l l y,  they  conc lude,  wh ich  s ta tes  –  or  

parag raph 43 s ta tes :  

“We,  accord ing ly,  make no f ind ings in  respect  

o f  Charge 1  a l though we do exp ress a  v iew 

tha t  we wou ld  have a  d i f f i cu l t y  in  conc lud ing  20 

tha t  Mr  S ingh was d ishonest  in  m is lead ing  the  

BADC for  the  Transnet  Board . . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now I  am not  go ing  to  take  you 
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th rough.   There  i s  a  se r ious o f  f ind ings made aga ins t  you  

here .   You accept  tha t?   I  mean,  there  a re  f ind ings in  

re la t ion  to  the  -  ra i l ,  e t  ce tera ,  e t  ce tera .   There  i s  no  –  I  

mean,  the  po in t  i s  tha t  your  ev idence is  your  ev idence.   

So,  inso far  as  there  are  f ind ings made aga ins t  you,  you  

wou ld  take  issue  w i th  them on the  bas is  o f  the  ev idence  

tha t  you . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No po in t  in  us  go ing  th rough the  

f ind ings . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  obv ious ly  aware  o f  the  f ind ings?   

You have read the  ru l ing?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   I  thought  I  must  ask  because 

somebody e l se  jus t  wr i te  tha t  he  had not  read f ind ings tha t  

had been made in  another  fo rum aga ins t  h im.   So,  a t  leas t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  aware?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  I  am.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i rpe rson,  I  see tha t  i t  i s  quar te r  

past  e leven.   Do you in tend to  take  tea?  Th is  m ight  be  a  
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conven ien t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  le t  me take the  tea  break.   The tea  

break might  be  l onger  than 15-minutes  because  I  need to  

a t tend to  someth ing  bu t  a t  the  most  i t  shou ld  be  30-

minutes .   I  hope i t  w i l l  be  less  than tha t .   Okay,  we 

ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS :  

INQUIRY RESUMES :  

MECHANICAL INTERRUPTION :   [01 :29 :31]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .b reak maybe a t  ha l f -past  o r  about  f i ve  10 

minutes  or  so  fo r  me to  comple te  what  I  need to  comple te .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  you w i l l  te l l  me when. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  w i l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  –  I  th ink  we  

were  s t i l l  i n  the  Bund le  5(b)  f i l e .   Cou ld  I  ask  you –  le t  me 

take you to  page 694.   That  i s  the  second money- f lows 

repor t  tha t  we have a l ready dea l t  w i th .   Th is  i s  someth ing  

ar is ing  f rom Mr  P i ta ’s  ev idence  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  your  20 

comment  on .    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now you w i l l  remember  tha t  the 

second money- f l ows repor t  dea ls ,  amongst  o ther  th ings,  

w i th  the  conf inement  o f  those four  cont rac ts  to  McK insey?   
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You remember  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  you go to  page 697,  you see  

some re ference to  tha t  a t  parag raph 8 .   Those are  the  

cont rac ts  tha t  we are  fami l ia r  w i th .   The Coa l  L ine  

Cont rac t ,  MNPP Cont rac t ,  e t  ce tera .   Now the  annexures to  

th is  repor t  inc lude the  RFP submi t ted  by  McK insey but  I  

want  to  take  you to  Annexure  3 .   I f  I  cou ld  ask  you,  p lease,  

to  tu rn  to  page 743?  

MR SINGH :    743? 10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    743.   Annexure  3  compr i ses  a  few 

pages o f  emai ls  and perhaps in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  I  can 

jus t  take  you to  page 745.   You w i l l  see  tha t  th is  exchange  

o f  emai ls  i s  be tween Hendren P i l lay  o f  Reg imen ts  and 

Jan ine  Kamaar  o f  McK insey.   And i f  you have a  look  a t  745,  

a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page or  the  m idd le  o f  the  page,  Kamaar  

wr i tes :   H i ,  Hendren.   And i t  i s  headed:   RE:   SD 

Commi tment  and th is  i s  in  June o f  –  13  June 2014.    

 And what  you see f rom these emai ls ,  Mr  S ingh is  

tha t  th is  i s  a  cos t ing  o f  the  sk i l l s  deve lopment  component .   20 

That  i s  what  McK insey and Reg iments  are  in te rac t ing  

about .   And she says:  

“ I  hope you are  we l l .   I  have not iced tha t  the  

cont rac t  va lues you a re  us ing  are  d i f fe ren t  to  

the  cont rac t  va lues I  have on my s ide .    
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I  have a t tached a  spreadsheet  h igh l igh t ing  the  

d i f fe rences. . . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then the  las t  parag raph says:  

“Once th is  has been done,  p lease cou ld  you 

resend us  the  ST va lue  summar ies  and your  

SD p lan  so  tha t  supp ly  deve lopment  p lans,  e t  

ce te ra . . . ”  

And then a t  the  top  o f  the  page,  you w i l l  see  tha t  Mr  P i l lay  10 

responds.    He says:  H i ,  Jan ine .   And h is  response is :  

“The numbers  tha t  I  am us ing  is  based on the  

Ano j ’s  memos to  Br ian  regard ing  these 

pro jec ts .  

I t  does not  inc lude expenses. . . ”  

And you see tha t  comes f rom h im because i f  you tu rn  t o  

page 744,  you w i l l  see  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page P i l lay,  13  

June to  Kamaar.   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  see tha t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now what  I  jus t  want  to  ask  you 20 

about  i s .   When Mr  P i ta  gave ev idence,  he ,  in  fac t ,  a le r ted  

us  to  th i s .   He made the  po in t ,  as  I  reca l l ,  tha t  th is  i s  

h igh l y  i r regu la r  tha t  Reg iments ,  in  the  fo rm o f  Mr  P i l lay,  

had the  memos between yourse l f  and Br ian ,  assum ing tha t  

to  be  Br ian  Mole fe ,  in  re la t ion  to  these pro jec t s .   The  
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memos tha t  we went  th rough before .   Would  you agree tha t  

i t  wou ld  be  u t te r ly  i r regu lar  fo r  them a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime 

where  they a re  look ing  to  comple te  the i r  RFP and to  pu t  in  

a  tender,  a lbe i t  on  a  conf ined bas i s ,  to  have s igh t  o f  those 

memos?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  take  you to  

those memos.   I f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  go  to  Vo lm ink ,  Bund le  

BB-2 .1(d)?    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  tu rn  

to  page –  r igh t  hand s ide ,  PSV 1283?  

MR SINGH :    1283?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja ,  1283.   There  is  –  as  I  sa id  there  

are  fou r  memos.   Ja ,  bu t  le t  us  jus t  –  the  one 1283 dea ls  

w i th  coa l .   And you conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  a  memorandum f rom 

yourse l f  to  Br ian ,  B r ian  Mole fe?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And I  am not  go ing  to  take  you to  a l l  

o f  them because I  do  no t  th ink  th is  i s  content ious bu t  there  20 

are  s im i la r  memos,  Mr  S ingh,  in  re la t ion  to  each  o f  the  

pro jec ts .   Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i t  was upon the  adop t ion  o f  

these memos tha t  McK insey were  then inv i ted  to  pu t  in  an  
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RFP? 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you have any idea then how 

Reg iments  come to  be  in  possess ion  o f  these memos? 

MR SINGH :    I  have no idea,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And wou ld  you l i ke  Mr  P i ta  cons ider  

i t  h igh ly  i r regu la r  tha t  they,  on  the  face  o f  745,  were  in  

possess ion  o f  them? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  tha t  wou ld  be  so ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  want  then to  go  back to  where  we  10 

have ended o f f  las t  t ime and tha t  i s  in  re la t ion  to  the 

quest ion  o f  the  jus t i f iab i l i t y  o f  the  increase in  the  ETC.   

Now what  we know is  tha t  the  increase was a  la rge  one.   I t  

acqu i t ted  to  41%,  R 15.9  b i l l i on  in  jus t  ove r  a  year.   

Mr  Choubey –  and we are  go ing  to  come to  your  ev idence 

and tha t  o f  your  exper t  bu t  le t  me  jus t  summar ise  i t  so  tha t  

we loca te  ourse lves.   Choubey a t  t imes tha t  th is  increase 

was not  reasonab le .    

 Accord ing  to  h im,  11% increase to  R 42.8  b i l l i on  

wou ld  have been reasonab le  or  an  18% increase to  20 

R 45.4  b i l l i on  a l i gn  fo r  Transnet ’s  eng ineer ing  costs  wou ld  

have been reasonab le .   Put  d i f feren t ly.   A t  best ,  on  h is  

op in ion ,  the  inc rease was R 9  b i l l i on  too  h igh  wh ich  

equates  to  approx imate ly  56% too  h igh .   So,  you are  

fami l ia r  w i th  h is  ev idence?  
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MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  Mr  

S ingh,  what  I  in tend  to  do  or  wha t  I  p lan  to  do  was to  ask  

you,  rea l l y,  about  four  th ings.   The  f i rs t  re la ted  –  we l l ,  the 

f i rs t  re la ted  to  the  hurd le  ra te ,  the  second batch  pr ic ing ,  

the  th i rd  cost  esca la t ion ,  and the  four th  cont ingenc ies .   We 

have a l ready dea l t  w i th  the  hurd le  ra te .   I  am not  go ing  to  

re turn  to  tha t .    

 So ,  I  am not  go ing  to  go  th rough a l l  the  aspects  o f  

the  increase.   I  am go ing  to  conf ine  myse l f  to  lead ing  you 10 

on the  ba tch  pr ice ,  the  cost  esca la t ion ,  and the  

cont ingenc ies .   We know tha t  those  th ree  th ings made up,  I  

th ink ,  jus t  over  ha l f  o f  the  R 16 b i l l i on  increase.   So,  I  am 

go ing  to  focus on  those th ree  th ings.   I f  I  may?  

MR SINGH :    That  i s  f ine ,  Mr  Myburgh.   Honest ly  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sure .   Jus t  on  the  issue o f  the 

hurd le  ra te .   I  do  no t  know i f  tha t  i s  what  you wanted to  

address.   I  am not  go ing  –  I  do  no t  in tend to  go  back to  

tha t .   I s  there  anyth ing  tha t  you want  to  add in  re la t ion  to  20 

the  hurd le  ra te ,  the  quest ion ing  prev ious ly?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH :    Jus t ,  there  was –  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  may?  On the 

hurd le  ra te ,  you  w i l l  reca l l  tha t  Mr  Myburgh lead some 
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p ropos i t ions  in  th is  regard  in  the  prev ious hear ing  and the  

issue was the ,  le t  us  ca l l  i t ,  the  a l legat ion  o f  the 

man ipu la t ion  o f  the  hurd le  ra te  to  jus t i f y  the  pro jec t .   And 

you w i l l  reca l l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  was the  18 .56% versus the  

15 .2% versus the  16 .3% issue.    

 Mr  Cha i r,  and one o f  the  quest ions tha t  Mr  

Myburgh had put  to  me was:   Do we know i f  the  p ro jec t  was 

ac tua l l y  an  NPV pos i t i ve  p ro jec t  a t  a  hurd le  ra te  o f  

18 .56%?  Because tha t  was the  o f f i c ia l  hurd le  ra te  a t  wh ich  

the  bus iness case was approved.    10 

 Mr  Myburgh then went  on  to  say tha t  on  

approach ing  Mr  Choubey,  Mr  Choubey ind i ca ted  tha t  th is  

wou ld  probab ly  be  a  th ree- to - four -week exe rc i se  to  be  ab le  

to  unders tand tha t .   Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  d is tu rbed me a  l i t t le  b i t  

and then I  went  on  to  do  some invest iga t ions o f  my own.    

 So,  i f  we have re ference to  the  bus iness case,  the  

approved bus iness case,  Mr  Cha i r,  we w i l l  f ind  tha t  there  

are  sens i t i v i t ies  re la t ing  to  the  hurd le  ra tes  and var ious 

o ther  components  and maybe,  Cha i r,  you w i l l  a l low,  maybe 

we can ac tua l l y  go  to  the  bus iness case,  and  I  can 20 

demonst ra te  the  e f fec t  o f  the  18 .56% on the  rev i sed DTC.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  go there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The bus iness case found in  Ca l la rd ,  

BB4B a t  page FQC402.    

MR SINGH :   402,  you say?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja ,  I  th ink  i t  s ta r ts  402.    

MR SINGH :   So ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  when Mr  

Myburgh put  th is  p ropos i t ion  to  me my f i rs t  response was  

tha t  the  bus iness case was prepared on a  conserva t ive  

bas is  and ac tua l l y  d id  no t  conc lude what  we had  te rmed  

opera t iona l  i ssues re la t ing  to  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  add i t iona l  

locomot ives .   So  i f  we had to  look a t  the  end s ta te  o f  the  

rev i sed ETC o f  55  b i l l i on  and i t s  impact  on  the  or ig ina l  

bus iness case,  we wou ld  then have to  inc lude these le t  us  

say opera t iona l  e f f i c ienc ies .    10 

 I f  we go to  page –  le t  me jus t  ge t  i t  here  and I  w i l l  

g ive  you the  re ference,  i f  we have regard  to  FQC423.  

CHAIRPERSON :    423?  

MR SINGH :   That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  am there .  

MR SINGH :   I f  you  then look,  Mr  Cha i r ,  a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  

page you w i l l  see  a  head ing  ca l l ed  opera t iona l  e f f i c iency  

and then i f  you look a t  the  four th  l ine  in  tha t  paragraph and  

i t  says :  

“R igh t ly  and conserva t ive l y  the  f lee t  p lan  does no t  20 

es t imate  unproven potent ia l  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry ,  Mr  S ingh,  w i l l  you  not  jus t  

read in to  the  m icrophone?  I  beg your  pardon.  

MR SINGH :   Oh,  sor ry .   On l ine  four ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  you w i l l  see  

i t  says :  



17 JUNE 2021 – DAY 411 
 

Page 45 of 249 
 

“R igh t ly  and conserva t ive l y  the  f lee t  p lan  does no t  

es t imate  unproven potent ia l  opera t iona l  e f f i c ienc ies  

tha t  cou ld  be  ach ieved f rom opt im isa t ion  o f  f lows  

based on new techno logy. ”  

And i t  goes on to  exp la in  what  those new techno log ies  are .   

So tha t  bas ica l l y  conf i rms tha t  the  bus iness case d id  no t  

account  fo r  these  opera t iona l  e f f i c ienc ies .    

 Mr  Cha i r ,  i f  you  then  have to  go  to  –  I  w i l l  g i ve  you  

a  re ference now –  i f  you  then have to  go  to ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  page  

FQC452.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

MR SINGH :   Mr  Cha i r ,  there  you w i l l  see  a  tab le ,  i t  i s  

marked Exh ib i t  38 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :   And  then you w i l l  see ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  in  tha t  tab le  

there  are  b locks ,  one,  two,  th ree ,  four  b locks .   So we are  

look ing  a t  the  four th  b lock  and i t  i s  numbered 7  in  a  smal l  

c i rc le .   I f  you  can  see tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :   Then i f  you move towards the  r igh t ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  20 

you w i l l  see  tha t  there  i s  an  NPV o f  2 .7  b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :   Then you w i l l  see  an NPV o f  negat ive  .8  

b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR SINGH :   And then you w i l l  see  an NPV o f  6 .3  b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :   So,  Mr  Cha i r ,  the  re levance o f  these numbers  

i s  as  fo l lows.   So i tem 7 ,  wh ich  i s  tha t  b lock  tha t  I  have  

re fer red  you to ,  bas i ca l l y  t r ies  to  unders tand what  happens 

to  the  NPV i f  you have a  5% improvement  in  opera t iona l  

e f f i c iency o r  you have a  5% decrease in  opera t iona l  

e f f i c iency and i t  measures i t  aga ins t  the  base case NPV,  

wh ich  was the  2 .7  b i l l i on .   Okay?  Which  was,  as  we know,  

i s  in  the  bus iness case and tha t  2 .7  b i l l i on ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  i s  a t  10 

the  18 .56% hurd le  ra te .  

 So,  Mr  Cha i r ,  i f  you  then move –  as  I  sa id ,  the  2 .7  

b i l l i on  i s  a t  18 .56 ,  so  tha t  base case.   I f  you  then  have a  

5% deter io ra t ion  in  opera t iona l  e f f ic iency as  a  resu l t  o f  the  

new locomot ives ,  tha t  2 .7  b i l l i on  becomes a  negat ive  .8  

b i l l i on  wh ich  is  the  second NPV number .   But  i f  you  then  

have a  5% inc rease in  opera t iona l  e f f i c iency,  you wou ld  

then have an NPV o f  6 .3  b i l l i on  wh ich  means the  5% of  

opera t iona l  e f f i c iency captures  and add i t iona l  3 .6  b i l l i on  in  

NPV va lue .   20 

 Now,  Mr  Cha i r ,  why is  th i s  so  re levant?   Because 

you wou ld  reca l l  tha t  in  the  board  memo,  tha t  we submi t ted  

to  them,  we were  fu l l y  t ransparent  w i th  the  board  to  say to  

them tha t  a t  the  or ig ina l  hurd le  ra te  o f  18 .56% at  55  b i l l i on  

the  NPV wou ld  be  1 .2  b i l l i on  negat ive .   So tha t  was  
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con ta ined in  the  board  memo.  

 So what  we are  now say ing  is ,  i f  we had taken in to  

account  the  opera t iona l  e f f i c ienc ies  tha t  the  bus iness case 

d id  no t  take  in to  account ,  we wou ld  have had a  3 .6  b i l l i on  

add i t iona l  NPV a t  th is  tab le ,  tha t  was inc luded  in  the  

bus iness case,  wh ich  wou ld  be  more  than su f f i c ien t  to  

o f fse t  the  1 .2  b i l l i on  negat ive  NPV tha t  we d isc losed to  the  

board .  

 So in  summary,  Mr  Cha i r ,  i f  we had to  rewr i te  the  

memo to  the  board  we wou ld  p robab ly  have to  say tha t  the  10 

opera t iona l  e f f i c ienc ies  were  no t  inc luded in  the  bus iness  

case and in  the  or ig ina l  NPV character i sa t ion  due to  us  

want ing  to  be  conserva t ive  and we have d i sc losed  tha t  in  

the  bus iness case.   Ad jus t ing  fo r  tha t  you wou ld  have had  

a  R3.5  b i l l i on  improvement  in  the  NPV which  wou ld  o f fse t  

the  negat ive  NPV o f  1 .2  b i l l i on  a t  the  or ig ina l  18 .56% 

hurd le  ra te .  

 So,  Mr  Cha i r ,  the  15 .2%,  I  have done invest iga t ion  

in  regard  tha t  as  we l l  and the  18 .2% hurd le  ra te ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  

ac tua l l y  i s  no t  o f  my mak ing  as  Mr  Laher  a l luded to  in  h is  20 

a f f idav i t .   That  15 .2%,  Mr  Cha i r ,  was ac tua l l y  ca l cu la ted  by 

Group F inanc ia l  P lann ing  wh ich  i s  a  funct ion  w i th in  my 

area a t  Transnet  as  CFO at  the  t ime and there  was a  

gent leman ca l led  Thabo Lebe lo  who was head ing  up tha t  

d iv is ion  a t  the  t ime and he a l luded to  the  fac t  tha t  there  
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were  ve ry  spec i f i c  reasons as  to  why the  15 .2% was  

ca l cu la ted  and shared w i th  TFR,  wh ich  was Transnet  

Fre igh t  Ra i l  a t  the  t ime,  wh ich  was then used in  a r r i v ing  a t  

the  le t  us  ca l l  i t  rev i sed NPV.    

 But ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  as  I  have demonst ra ted ,  whethe r  you 

look a t  the  o r ig ina l  18 .56 ,  wh ich  is  the  wors t  case  

scenar io ,  the  NPV o f  th is  p ro jec t  wou ld  s t i l l  have been  

pos i t i ve .   I f  you  l ook a t  the  15% i t  wou ld  have been even  

more  pos i t i ve  and obv ious ly  a t  a  16%,  i t  wou ld  have been  

pos i t i ve  s t i l l .   So  a t  any o f  these hu rd le  ra tes  tha t  one  10 

wou ld  choose,  the  bus iness case fo r  the  locos s t i l l  was 

pos i t i ve .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  Mr  S ingh,  can I  ask  you to  go  

p lease to  page 727,  th is  i s  the  ETC memo.   The same 

bund le ,  727.  

MR SINGH :   Sure .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  paragraph 80.   A re  you there?  

MR SINGH :   7 . . .?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So i t  says :  

“The updated ent ry  B  resu l ts  in  a  pos i t i ve  NVP (s i c )  20 

o f  11 .68  b i l l i on  a t  the  new hurd le  ra te  o f  15 .2 . ”  

Do you …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH :   Sor ry ,  S i r ,  7 . . .?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    727.  

MR SINGH :   727.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  p rev ious ly  you accepted tha t  

tha t  i s  an  er ror ,  the  15 .2 ,  i t  shou ld  be  16.24.   Do you 

change your  ev idence now? 

MR SINGH :   727?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    727.  

MR SINGH :   I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 80.   P rev ious ly  you  

accepted tha t  15 .2  was wrong and i t  shou ld  have been  

16.24.   Do you change your  ev idence?  

MR SINGH :   Mr  Cha i r ,  based on my d i scuss ions w i th  Mr  10 

Lebe lo ,  he  has i nd ica ted  tha t  the  15 .2%,  accord ing  to  h is  

reco l lec t ion ,  was  approved a t  some po in t  in  t ime  but  he  

has subsequent ly  le f t  Transnet ,  so  he  does not  have  

access to  h is  emai ls  o r  any documenta t ion ,  so  he  does not  

have the  ab i l i t y  to  be  ab le  to  g i ve  us  i nd i ca t ions as  to  

where  th is  was approved.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  we have seen your  po l i cy  tha t  

you s igned.  

MR SINGH :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And tha t  re f lec ted  16.24.  20 

MR SINGH :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  there  is  one er ror .   And then you 

say the  NVB (s ic )  wou ld  become negat ive ,  R167 b i l l i on  at  
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the  or ig ina l  hurd le  ra te  o f  18 .56 .   You say tha t  i s  wrong as  

we l l .  

MR SINGH :   No,  no .   So in  a r r i v ing  a t  th is .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes?  

MR SINGH :   We actua l l y  had fu l l  t ransparency w i th  the  

board  to  say tha t  we have a t  18 .56  a  negat ive  NPV.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH :   Okay?  So in  o rder  to  the  dea l  w i th  the  

propos i t ion  tha t  th is  was a  loss  mak ing  pro jec t ,  I  am 

suggest ing  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  I  unders tand tha t .  

MR SINGH :   That  i t  i s  no t  an  er ror .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:     Wel l ,  what  you are  say ing  is  tha t  i t  

shou ld  no t  read tha t .   What  shou ld  i t  read?  

MR SINGH :   Mr  Cha i r ,  what  we a re  t ry ing  to  say is  tha t  i f  

we have to  compare  the  or ig ina l  18 .56  you wou ld  have a  

negat ive  1 .6  b i l l i on  NPV.   Tak ing  in to  account  the  fac t  tha t  

the  bus iness case d id  no t  accommodate  the  opera t iona l  

e f f i c ienc ies  tha t  wou ld  accrue due  to  new equ ipment ,  i f  we 

ad jus t  fo r  tha t ,  you w i l l  have a  pos i t i ve  NPV.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  tha t  shou ld  have sa id  i t  

was pos i t i ve  even  a t  18 .56?  

MR SINGH :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  i t  i s  wrong.   In  one pa ragraph 

you have got  two er rors .  
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MR SINGH :   I  wou ld  no t  c lass i f y  them as er rors .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  I  see .   But  jus t  so  tha t  you 

unders tand i t ,  the  –  what  i s  no t  dea l t  w i th  in  th is  parag raph 

is  the  o f f i c ia l l y  approved by  you hurd le  ra te  o f  16 .24 .   Now 

we can –  perhaps I  can jus t  pu t  th is  to  you and we put  in  

an  a f f idav i t  i f  i t  i s  content ious.   We contac ted  Mr  Ca l la rd  to  

f ind  ou t  whether  o r  no t  he  cou ld  run  the  sums fo r  us  a t  the  

hurd le  ra te  o f  16 .24% and Mr  Ca l l a rd  s t i l l  has  access,  as  I  

unders tand i t ,  to  the  McK insey mode l  because the re  was a  

mode l  tha t  was used in  p roduc ing  th is  k ind  o f  in fo rmat ion  10 

and he is  unab le  to  run  those f igures ,  he  is  unab le  to  te l l  

us  what  the  en t ry  B ,  whether  i t  wou ld  be  pos i t i ve  o r  

negat ive  a t  16 .24 .   Apparent ly  i t  i s  a  ve ry  b ig  job  i f  you  do 

not  have the  mode l .   You say i t  i s  no t  so .  

MR SINGH :   Wel l ,  I  have jus t  done  fo r  you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  see .   Wel l ,  what  have you done? 

MR SINGH :   I  have demonst ra ted  tha t  th is  p ro jec t  i s  s t i l l  

NPV pos i t i ve  a t  18 .56 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH :   So  i f  you  wou ld  look a t  the  16% hurd le  ra te  i t  20 

wou ld  be  probab ly  b igger ,  the  NPV wou ld  be  la rger .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  see .   A l r igh t ,  Mr  S ingh,  so  you  

wou ld  no t  agree w i th  what  Mr  Ca l l a rd  has to  say.   And Mr  

Choubey,  when you sa id  tha t  I  had sa id  tha t  i t  wou ld  take  

h im th ree weeks,  tha t  was to  run  the  16 .24.   Of  course  he 
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does not  have the  same access to  in fo rmat ion  perhaps as  

Mr  Ca l la rd  has  bu t  you a re  do ing  a  sor t  o f  a  b road  

ana lys is ,  you come to  the  conc lus ion  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  

pos i t i ve  even a t  18 .56 .  

MR SINGH :   Based on the  bus iness case and in fo rmat ion   

we have,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Except ing  your  ev idence tha t  you  

have g i ven about  how you in te rpre t  tha t  tab le .    

MR SINGH :   Wel l ,  tha t  i s  the  o f f ic ia l l y  approved bus iness  

case tha t  was prepared by  Mr  Ca l la rd .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  the  po in t  i s ,  tha t  i s  no t  what  you 

to ld  the  board .   You come wi th  tha t  vers ion  now when the  

concern  is  ra ised .  

MR SINGH :   Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  as  I  sa id ,  the  concern  shou ld  

have been ra ised  by  the  board  a t  the  t ime when they were  

presented w i th  the  R1.6  b i l l i on  negat ive  NPV p ro jec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The concern  shou ld  have been  

ra ised by  the  board?  

MR SINGH :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You gave th is  –  you presen ted th is  20 

memorandum to  the  board .  

MR SINGH :   Yes,  in  fu l l  d isc losure  tha t  there  was a  

negat ive  NPV.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Le t  us  then  –  have you got  anyth ing  

e lse  to  say about  the  hurd le  ra te?  
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MR SINGH :   No,  S i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you have any exp lanat ion  why 

you d id  no t  inse r t  in  your  memo your  o f f i c ia l l y  approved  

hurd le  ra te?    

MR SINGH :   I  th ink  a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime th is  was obv ious ly  

the  numbers  tha t  were  run  tha t  was inc luded in  here  was 

done as  o f  the  cont rac t  s ign ing  da te  wh ich  was obv ious ly  

the  end o f  March and tha t  i s  why in  my a f f idav i t  we had the  

th ree  co lumns wh ich  you po in ted  out  a t  the  end o f  the  las t  

sess ion  wh ich  was,  you know,  the  m idd le  co lumn wh ich  10 

was the  31  March  2014.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  I  th ink  we went  th rough tha t .  

MR SINGH :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Have you  got  anyth ing  to  add to  

tha t?  

MR SINGH :   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   So can I  ask  you to  go  – 

perhaps we can jus t  keep th is  document  open to  the  ETC 

memo,  as  we ca l l  i t ,  wh ich  you f ind  a t  page 714.  

MR SINGH :   I  am there ,  S i r .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And perhaps I  cou ld  ask  you  to  tu rn  

because the  inc reases a re  conven ien t ly  se t  ou t  in  a  

schedu le  or  tab le  a t  718.   Now,  Mr  S ingh,  jus t  aga in  to  

summar ise  the  pos i t ion  and then we w i l l  go  in to  the  

vers ions,  we are  now dea l ing  w i th  ba tch  pr ic ing .  
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MR SINGH :   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    2 .7  b i l l i on  o f  the  15 .9  b i l l i on 

increase was a t t r ibu tab le  to  ba tch  pr ic ing  ar i s ing  f rom a  

reduct ion  in  ba tch  s i zes  to  40  and  60%.   Do you ag ree w i th  

tha t?  

MR SINGH :   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  happened is  there  were  

two b idders  fo r  d iese ls  and two b idders  fo r  e lec t r i c  

locomot ive  respect ive ly,  co r rec t?  

MR SINGH :   That  i s  cor rec t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And jus t  fo r  the  ass i s tance o f  the  –  

fo r  the  in fo rmat ion  o f  the  Cha i rperson,  tha t  appears  f rom,  

Mr  Cha i rperson,  718 you see there  is  a  co lumn on the  r igh t  

hand s ide  and then to  the  le f t  o f  the  f igu res  you see A ,  B ,  

C,  D.   So tha t  i s  no te  D,  i t  says :  

“Batch  pr ic ing  ad jus tment  fo r  reduct ion  o f  ba tch  

s ize  to  40 /60%.”  

And the  cost  o f  tha t ,  Mr  S ingh,  as  you have conf i rmed,  was  

2 .7  b i l l i on ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :   That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now what  I  am go ing  to  do  on  each 

occas ion  is  to  take  you to  Mr  Choubey ’s  ev idence  jus t  so  

tha t  you know how I  am go ing  to  dea l  w i th  i t .   I  w i l l  then  

take  you to  your  own ev idence and inso fa r  as  your  exper t  

a lso  dea ls  w i th  i t ,  we can go to  your  exper t ’ s  ev idence and 
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then we w i l l  go  to  Mr  Choubey ’s  rep l y .   So you can fee l  

f ree  to  respond whenever  you want  to  bu t  you w i l l  cer ta in l y  

ge t  an  oppor tun i ty .   So we w i l l  f i rs t  dea l  w i th  Choubey,  

then w i th  you/your  exper t  and then  Choubey ’s  rep ly .  

 You can perhaps  keep th is  page open because you  

are  go ing  to  come back to  i t .   Now Mr  Choubey,  when I  ta lk  

about  h is  ev idence,  he  produced a  repor t  tha t  he  tes t i f ied 

about  and tha t  you f ind  a t  EXHIBIT BB8(b .1) .   I f  you  cou ld  

tu rn  –  there  are  on ly  one se t  o f  numbers  in  th is  bund le ,  

they a re  red  numbers ,  page 40.  10 

 Now,  Mr  S ingh,  you w i l l  apprec ia te  in  the  i n te res ts  

o f  t ime,  I  am not  go ing  to  go  th rough every th ing ,  we have 

your  a f f idav i t ,  submiss ions w i l l  have to  be  made and the  

Cha i rperson w i l l  have to  dec ide  th is  quest ion  on  them.   I  

am go ing  to  h igh l igh t  the  th ings  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  

dea l  w i th  and somet imes I  am go ing  to  paraphrase th ings.  

 So a t  page 40,  paragraph 9 .5 .11 ,  Mr  Choubey says  

–  so r ry ,  9 .54 .11 :  

“There  are  two e lements  to  cons ider ,  ba tch  pr i c ing  

and breakpo in t  p r ic ing .   B idders  …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am so r ry ,  Mr  Myburgh.   I  do  have page 

40 but  the  pa ragraphs you ment ioned do not  seem to  be  

here  so  maybe we have got  the  wrong bund le .   I s  i t  

BB8(b .1 )?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes and 2  in  the  same bund le .   So 
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BB8(b .1 ) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes and page  40 I  have got  bu t  the  

parag raphs I  have got  a re  16 .30,  16 .31  to  33 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  your  reg is t ra r  has another  

bund le  fo r  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  thank you.   Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  a t  9 .54 .11 ,  Mr  Choubey says:  

“There  are  two e lements  to  cons ider ,  ba tch  pr i c ing  

and b reakpo in t  p r ic ing .   B idders  prov ided  

ind ica t ions o f  what  i t  wou ld  cost  them in  the  event  10 

o f  a  cont rac t  o rders  be ing  te rm ina ted.   The request  

fo r  p roposa l  s ta ted  tha t  Transnet  d id  no t  expect  

b idders  to  charge fo r  changes in  quant i t y .   In  the  

c i rcumstances,  ba tch  p r ic ing  shou ld  no t  have been 

taken in to  cons idera t ion .   I  have there fore  no t  

a l lowed fo r  a  ba tch  ad jus tment  cos t . ”  

Then i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  go  to  page 45.   That ,  

inc identa l l y ,  was Mr  Choubey ’s  summary a t  the  beg inn ing .   

I f  you  go to  page  45 he then dea ls  w i th  th is  fu r ther  under  

the  head ing  Ba tch  Ad jus tment  Cost  and he says a t  20 

parag raph 10.15:  

“The RFP in  sect ion  3 .1  de f ined b reakpo in t  p r i c ing  

as  a  premature  te rm inat ion  o f  a  locomot ive  orde r  by  

Transnet .   I t  ou t l ined the  per iod  in  wh ich  b reak  

pr ic ing  wou ld  app ly  wh ich  was the  de l i very  pe r iod .   
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I  in te rpre t  th is  to  mean tha t  b reak pr ic ing  cou ld  on l y  

app ly  once a  cont rac t  was in  p lace  between  

Transnet  and the  OEMs.   The batch  p r ice  

ad jus tment  cos t  i n  the  memorandum appears  to  be  

breakpo in t  p r ic ing  cost .   The idea beh ind  breakpo in t  

p r ic ing  is  tha t  f inanc ia l  resources wou ld  have had to  

be  commi t ted  by  the  OEMs to  ensure  tha t  

Transnet ’s  o rder  f rom the  cont rac t  s tage is  met . ”  

And then i f  you d rop down to  the  next   paragraph:  

“The p r ic ing  schedu le  prov ided by  b idders  as  per  10 

the  RFP requ i rements  were  in  respect  o f  b reakpo in t  

p r ic ing .   Us ing  the  breakpo in t  p r ic ing  schedu les  

prov ided by the  b idders ,  a  f igure  o f  7 .2  b i l l i on  was  

obta ined. ”  

A  f igure  tha t  you have ment ioned.    

“Assuming OEMs were  cont rac ted  and o rders  were  

te rm inated a t  the  po in t  where  CNR and GE had  

supp l ied  232  and 233 d iese l  locomot ives  

respect ive ly  ins tead o f  465 and  BT and CR had  

supp l ied  240 and 359 e lec t r i c  locomot ives  20 

respect ive ly  ins tead o f  599. ”  

And then i f  you go over  the  page a t  parag raph 10.17 :  

“The RFP in  sect ion  3 .1 .   P r io r  to  request ing  

breakpo in t  p r ic ing  schedu le  s ta ted  tha t  Transne t  

requ i red  f lex ib i l i t y  to  exerc ise  op t ions inc lud ing  
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pos tpon ing ,  suspend ing  or  chang ing  quant i t ies  and 

tha t  Transnet  d id  no t  expect  to  pay a  pr i ce  premium 

to  exerc i se  th i s  op t ion .   Transnet  exerc i sed th i s  

op t ion  where  i t  acce lera ted  the  de l i very  schedu le  

and does not  appear  to  have pa id  a  premium for  i t .   

I  conc luded tha t  because Transne t  expected to  pay  

a  pr ice  premium in  the  event  o f  a  p remature  

te rm inat ion  o f  o rders  a f te r  cont rac t ing  and  not  on  

sp l i t t ing  o f  o rders  pr io r  to  cont rac t ing  w i th  OEMs.   

The cost  fo r  sp l i t t ing  the  orders  was not  war ran ted. ”  10 

So tha t  i s  what  Mr  Choubey says  and perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  

take  you to  the  po in t  tha t  MNS makes in  i t s  repor t  wh ich  i t  

makes perhaps a  lo t  more  succ inc t l y .   Cou ld  you tu rn  

p lease to  the  POI  bund le ,  EXHIBIT  BB27? 

MR SINGH :   POI?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja ,  so  keep  tha t  open.  

MR SINGH :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    EXHIBIT BB27.   Cou ld  you tu rn  to  

page 332?  

MR SINGH :   B lack  or  red?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  b lack .  

MR SINGH :   332?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    332,  yes .   So r igh t  a t  the  foo t  o f  

page 332,  MNS a t  parag raph 4 .1 .11 ,  you see batch  pr ic ing  

and D,  tha t  i s  the  D in  the  schedu le .   Qu i te  usefu l l y  they  
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quote  fo r  us ,  Sect ions 3 .1  o f  the  RFP re la t ing  to  the  

acqu is i t ion  o f  465 d iese l  and 599 e lec t r i c  locomot ives  

reads as  fo l lows:  

“Transnet  requ i res  f lex ib i l i t y  in  exerc is ing  op t ions  

fo r  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  locomot ives .   These  

opt ions may inc lude suspend ing  or  postpon ing  the  

de l i very  o f  the  locomot ive  un t i l  a  da te  la te r  o r  

change in  quant i t ies .   Transnet ,  however ,  does not  

expect  to  pay a  pr ice  premium shou ld  i t  exerc ise  

any o f  these opt ions. ”  10 

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :   I  see  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then they go  on to  say:  

“Our  unders tand ing  is  tha t  th is  f lex ib i l i t y  was  

requ i red  to  enab le  Transnet  to  ad jus t  i t s  o rde rs  

w i th in  the  seven  t imef rame and there fore  Transnet  

expected the  OEMs to  pr ice  th is  op t ion  in .   We have 

there fo re  no t  a l lowed fo r  ba tch  pr ic ing  ad jus tment  

p r ice  in  our  ana lys is . ”  

Rea l ly  on  the i r  in te rp re ta t ion  o f  3 .1  o f  the  RFP.   So,  Mr  20 

S ingh,  can we now go to  your  vers ion  and le t  me take you 

p lease to  bund le  5C and can I  ask  you p lease to  go  to  

page 1452?  

MR SINGH :   1452? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes?  
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MR SINGH :   B lack?  Red?  B lack?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Un less  I  te l l  you  o therwise ,  they are  

a lways b lack .  

MR SINGH :   Okay.   1452?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .   And you dea l  w i th  th is  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or ,  Mr  Myburgh,  th is  m ight  be  the  

conven ien t  t ime fo r  tha t  f i ve  m inutes  ad jou rnment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry  about  th is ,  bu t  I  jus t  need to  10 

f i x  someth ing .   We wi l l  ad jou rn  fo r  f i ve  m inutes .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Can I  qu ick ly  make th is  o rder  tha t  I  need  

to  make?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  make an amendment  so  tha t  we are  

done.   

ORDER  

  Wi th  regard  to  the  order  tha t  I  made on 13 August  20 

2020 in  the  mat te r  o f  ex par te  app l ica t ion  o f  Ez ias  Pet rus  

Leonard  on  beha l f  o f  those persons l i s ted  in  annexure  A  o f  

the  app l i ca t ion ,  I  w ish  to  make the  fo l low ing order  tha t  

amends the  orde r  tha t  I  made on tha t  day.  

 That  o rder  w i l l  be  amended by  the  fo l low ing 
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parag raph wh ich  I  w i l l  say  is  to  be  read as  –  amend ing tha t  

o rder ,  the  pa ragraph reads as  fo l lows:  

“The or ig ina l  a f f idav i t ,  as  redacted,  o f  w i tness 3  

may be made ava i lab le  to  the  a t to rneys o r  to  the  

lega l  team represent ing  Mr  Ano j  S ingh on a  

conf ident ia l  bas i s .   I t  w i l l  be  made  ava i lab le  to  the  

ev idence leader  o f  the  Commiss ion  in  the  Transnet  

work  s t ream.   I t  is  recorded tha t  the  w i tness 3  has 

ind ica ted  tha t  he  has no  ob jec t ion  to  th is  

amendment  o f  the  order . ”  10 

Have I  captured i t  cor rec t l y?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  so ,  yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    We are  qu i te  happy,  Mr  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  I  th ink  the  reg is t ra r  w i l l  jus t  

–  o r  the  lega l  team can make sure  tha t  la te r  on  the  order  i s  

p r in ted  so  tha t  i t  i s  ava i lab le  in  ha rd  copy.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  thank you.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  Mr  S ingh,  I  th ink  what  I  am – as 

I  d iscussed w i th  you in  the  break,  what  I  w i l l  do ,  i s  I  w i l l  

paraphrase Choubey,  I  w i l l  then take  you var ious par t s  o f  

your  a f f idav i t s  where  you dea l  w i th  the  quest ion ,  maybe 

jus t  g ive  a  thumbna i l  ske tch  o f  tha t  and then you g i ve  you  
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an  oppor tun i ty  to  respond.    

 So i f  I  cou ld  take  you to  page 1452,  you dea l  w i th  

ba tch  pr ic ing  f rom paragraphs 90  to  101.   A t  paragraph 94  

you say:  

“The RFP con templa ted  sp l i t t ing .   However ,  

Transnet  reserved the  r i gh t  no t  to  pay a  pr ice  

premium o r  exc is ing  e i ther  the  sp l i t t ing  or  the  b reak  

pr ic ing  op t ions. ”  

95 :  

“ I  re jec t  the  f ind ing  o f  MNS and the  op in ion  o f  10 

Choubey regard ing  the  ba tch  pr ic ing  fo r  the  

fo l low ing reasons . ”  

And you go on then to  g i ve  a  de f in i t ion  o f  p remium.   You 

say a t  parag raph 100:  

“ I t  i s  a l l  re levant  t ime unders tood tha t  Transnet  

move fo r  p r ice  ba tch ing  the  RFP contempla ted  a  

reasonab le  cost .   Transnet  never  contempla ted  

pay ing  a  zero  cos t  fo r  ba tch  pr i c ing . ”  

And then i f  I  cou ld  take  you to  page 185,  you dea l  w i th  i t  

aga in .  20 

MR SINGH :   Paragraph?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry ,  1485 ,  f rom paragraphs 233 to  

239.   You say a t  233 tha t :  

“Choubey seems to  be  confus ing  two concepts  tha t  

a re  d i f fe ren t .   These are  concepts  o f  ba tch  pr ic ing  
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and break p r ic ing . ”  

And then i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  go  to  1489,  you dea l  w i th  the 

sub jec t  aga in  in  parag raphs 257 a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page to  

261 and aga in  you dea l  w i th  the  quest ion  o f  b reak pr ic ing  

and batch  pr i c ing .   But  jus t  so  tha t  –  perhaps I  can jus t  

make th is  po in t .   What  Mr  Chaube ’s  ev idence is ,  i t  i s  no t  

c lea r  to  me tha t  he  m isunders tood  the  d is t inc t ion ,  what  he  

says is  the  2 .7b i l l l i on  f igure  he  assumes tha t  tha t  came 

f rom . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  I  see Mr  S ingh you seem to  10 

have run  out  o f  space fo r  the  f i les  there ,  do  you want  some 

to  be  put  beh ind  you,  o r  w i l l  you  manage? 

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  these a re  re levant  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh fo r  now,  okay,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  as  I  unders tood h is  ev idence he 

was say ing  we l l  he  cou ld  do  the  sums and the  2 .7mi l l ion  

re la ted  to  b reak pr ic ing .   So,  essent ia l l y,  though,  i t  seems 

tha t  the  cont rove rsy  re la tes  to  th is  parag raph or  Sect ion  

3 .1  in  the  RFP,  wh ich  has been quoted,  there  is  a  who le  lo t  

o f  o ther  th ings sa id ,  bu t  what  i s  your  response to  tha t?   20 

MR SINGH:    I  th ink ,  Mr  Cha i r,  fo r  us  to  nav iga te  th rough  

the  issue o f  ba tch  pr ic ing ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  us  to  

unders tand the  reason ing  beh ind  the  need fo r  -  le t  us  ca l l  

i t ,  the  sp l i t t ing  and fo r  tha t  Mr  Cha i r,  we p robab ly  need to  

re ference the  bus iness case and tha t  w i l l  g ive  a  
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background beh ind  why we needed to  sp l i t  in  the  f i rs t  

p lace ,  and we can then take  i t  f rom there  and r id ing  

fo rward  un t i l  we ac tua l l y  incur  the  cost .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry  cou ld  I  jus t  say  th is  inso fa r  as  

in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  f rom the  lega l  team 's  po in t  o f  v iew,  

we take no issue  w i th  the  dec is ion  to  sp l i t .   I t  i s  rea l l y  the  

issue o f  the  cost  in  re la t ion  to  tha t ,  because we know tha t  

the  dec is ion  to  sp l i t  tha t  was author i sed by  I  th ink  the  

BADC and the  Board ,  and in  fac t  I  th ink  you co r rec t l y  po in t  

ou t  tha t  in  Fundudz i  f i l es  tha t  there  is  no th ing  necessar i l y  10 

i r regu lar  about  tha t .   

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  the  quest ion  o f  cos t  tha t  I  wou ld  

l i ke  to  d i rec t  you  to  in  par t i cu la r,  and i t  i s  the  fac t  tha t  i t  

added on the  2 .7b i l l i on .   So I  do  no t  want  to  p revent  you 

f rom go ing  to  the  bus iness case i f  you want  to ,  bu t  we do 

not  take  any issue w i th  the  sp l i t t ing  per  say,  i t  i s  the  cost .  

MR SINGH:    Okay,  Mr  Cha i r  the  –  in  summary,  okay,  the 

reason fo r  the  ra t iona le  fo r  sp l i t t ing  i t  emanated f rom the  

r i sk  tha t  was  inc luded in  the  bus iness case i f  I  reca l l  on  20 

page 8  and 48 o f  the  bus iness case,  there  was a  shor t  -  

the  bus iness case ident i f ied  a  shor t fa l l  o f  about  50mi l l ion  

tons and 150 locomot ives .    

The bus iness case fu r ther  ident i f ied ,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  

fac t  tha t  the  -  in  o rde r  to  m i t iga te  th is  r i sk  tha t  was  
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ident i f ied  tha t  no  more  than two OEM’s  per  locomot ive  type  

w i l l  be  awarded  the  cont rac t  to  supp ly  the  locomot ives,  

tha t  i s  reco rded in  the  bus iness and we can go to  i t ,  bu t  in  

the  in te res t  o f  t ime probab ly  we can take  i t  a t  face  va lue  

fo r  now,  bu t  i t  is  reco rded,  Mr  Cha i r  and Mr  Cha i r  the  

bus iness case fu r the r  goes on to  ac tua l l y  ident i f y  the  

impact  tha t  the  sp l i t t ing  w i l l  have on the  to ta l  cos t  o f  

ownersh ip  o f  the  e lec t r i c  locomot ives  and the  d iese l  

locomot ives .   

And the  bus iness case ident i f ies  tha t  there  i s  a  10 

b igger  impact  on  the  e lec t r i c  locomot ives  ra the r  than the  

d iese l  locomot ives  in  te rms o f  the  sp l i t t ing .   The bus iness  

case fu r the r  then in  the  procurement  s t ra tegy o f  the 

bus iness case sect ion  i dent i f ies ,  aga in ,  the  fac t  tha t  we  

wou ld  need to  sp l i t  the  award .  

And I  know Mr  Myburgh is  i n te res ted  in  the  cost  bu t  

in  o rde r  to  unders tand the  cost ,  you need to  unders tand  

the  bu i ld -up  fo r  why tha t  cos t  ac tua l l y  was incur red  and 

th is  i s  the  reasons there fore  i s  conta ined in  the  bus iness  

case,  as  I  have jus t  exp la ined.   The RFP Mr  Cha i r,  as  qu i te  20 

cor rec t l y  po in ted  out  does contempla te  these th ree  

opt ions,  sp l i t t ing ,  b reak ing  and te rm inate .  

I t  does contempla te  the  fac t  tha t  we sa id  we w i l l  no t  

expect  the  pr ice  premium,  as  we have ment ioned a l ready,  

tha t  in  my unders tand ing  does not  mean we a re  no t  pay ing  
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any th ing .  I t  means tha t  we w i l l  pay  someth ing  bu t  a  

reasonab le  cost .   Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  the  -  dea l t  w i th  

RFPM dea l t  w i th  the  bus iness case,  Mr  Cha i r,  as  Mr  

Myburgh has a l ready a l luded to  the  fac t  the  Board  was 

fu l l y  aware  o f  the  fac t  tha t  the  sp l i t t ing  -  they  ac tua l l y  

approved the  sp l i t t ing .  

The BADC had i ts  meet ing  on  the  24 t h  o f  February,  I  

th ink  i t  was or  26 t h  o f  February  were  g iven the  f inanc ia l  

imp l ica t ions o f  the  sp l i t  be ing  the  2 .7b i l l i on  number  tha t  we 

ta lked about .   So the  Board  was aware  o f  tha t ,  be fore  we  10 

had ac tua l l y  s igned the  cont rac t .    

The Fundudz i  Repor t  as  we sa id ,  a lso  concurs  tha t  

the  sp l i t t ing  was  a l lowed by  the  RFP and in  ac tua l  fac t ,  

they  ac tua l l y  go  on  to  say tha t  the  sp l i t t ing  was ac tua l l y  

a l lowed fo r  by  the  PPM,  or  the  Procurement  Procedures 

Manua l  o f  Transnet  and there fo re  they d id  no t  f ind  anyth ing  

un toward  in to  i t .   They ac tua l l y  went  on  fu r ther  to  say tha t  

the  sp l i t t ing  o f  the  award  ac tua l l y  went  on  to  save Transnet  

some 660mi l l ion ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

So f rom tha t  perspect ive ,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  -  i f  you  look  20 

a t  a l l  o f  these th ings tha t  I  have out l ined,  i t  i s  jus t  a  mat te r  

o f  consequence tha t  the  2 .7b i l l i on  was a  consequence o f  

a l l  o f  these dec i s ions tha t  have been taken up to  tha t  po in t  

in  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  jus t  want  to  co r rec t  one th ing ,  
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the  ra t iona le  i s  unders tood and the  fac t  tha t  I  th ink  the  

procedure  manua l  a l lows fo r  the  sp l i t t ing .   I  jus t  must  

cor rec t  myse l f ,  there  i s  an  issue  around the  procedure  in  

th is  regard ,  you know,  tha t  Mr  Laher  ra ised i t  w i th  you –  I  

w i l l  come to  h is  ev idence in  a  moment .   

But  so  as  I  unders tand what  you say ing ,  i t  i s  you  

accepted the  RFP sa id  tha t  Transnet  does not  expect  to  

pay a  pr ice  p remium,  you say ing  we l l ,  tha t  we d id  no t  pay a  

premium.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You cannot  expect  to  pay no th ing ;  i t  

i s  rea l l y  a  f igh t  about  p remium.   

MR SINGH:    Exact ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  so  can I  take  you to  Mr  

Chaube ’s  response to  you,  and then I  w i l l  g ive  you  another  

chance to  respond.   You f ind  h is  response a t  page 1827.  

MR SINGH:    Which  one?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry,  i t  i s  your  Bund le  5C.  

MR SINGH:    18?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    One,  I  beg your  pardon,  1827 not  57 .  20 

Are  you there?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now what  Mr  Chaube says is  he  

quotes  a t  64  and 65,  the  RFP’s  and the  words:  

“That  Transnet  however  does not  expect  to  pay a  
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p r i ce  premium. ”  

Do you see tha t ,  in  the  quota t ions in  64  and 65.   Then he 

says a t  66 :  

“Mr  S ingh is  there fore  no t  cor rec t  in  submi t t ing  the  

Transnet  reserve  the  r igh t  no t  to  pay a  p r ice  

premium for  exc is ing  the  change in  quant i t ies  

sp l i t t ing  or  b reak pr ic ing  op t ions. ”  

A t  67 ,  he  says:  

“ In  l ine  w i th  the  de f in i t ion  o f  a  p r ice  premium noted 

by  Mr  S ingh I  submi t  the  fo l low ing. ”  10 

He says:  

“The benchmark  or  o rd inary  pr ice  in  quest ion  as  pe r  

Tab le  2 ,  o f  the  memorandum on  the  increase in  

ETC. ”  

You know what  the  memo is :  

“Labe l led  best  and f ina l  o f fe r  per  Board  submiss ion  

exc lud ing  hedg ing  and esca la t ion  c i rca  29 .4b i l l i on . ”  

Then sub 2 :  

“The pr i ce  premium o r  sum added to  the  o rd inary  

pr ice  above charge to  Transnet  fo r  chang ing  20 

quant i t ies  as  pe r  Tab le  2  o f  the  1064 memorandum 

labe l led  ba tch  p r ic ing  ad jus tment  o r  reduct ion  o f  

ba tch  s ize  to  40 /60% or  c i rca  2 .8b i l l i on .  In  

percentage te rms ,  th is  represents  approx imate l y  9% 

of  the  benchmark  or  re la t i ve  p r ice  o f  29 .4b i l l i on . ”  
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A t  68 :  

“Mr  S ingh 's  submiss ion  tha t  Transnet  never  

contempla ted  pay ing  a  zero  pr ice  premium or  

chang ing  quant i t ies  i s  the re fore  un found. ”  

Do you have any th ing  to  add to  t h is  o r  to  what  you have  

a l ready sa id?  

MR SINGH:    No Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  in  te rms o f  the  -  we can 

cont inue sp l i t t ing  ha i rs  about  p r ice  premium and  

reasonab leness o f  the  pr ice  premium,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  i s  a  

fundamenta l  and  accepted commerc ia l  bas i s  tha t  fewer  10 

i tems o f  someth ing  cost  more  than a  la rger  quant i t y  o f  the  

same i tem.   So i f  you  buy a  1000 o f  someth ing  i t  cos t  you  

per  un i t  less  than i f  you  buy ten  o f  i t ,  tha t  i s  the  concept  

tha t  we ac tua l l y  d iscuss ing  he re .  

The issue tha t  the  fac t  tha t  th is  quantum was  

contempla ted  in  the  bus iness case was the  ra t iona le  pu t  

fo rward  fo r  i t  in  the  bus iness case ,  there  was contempla ted  

in  the  RFP,  the  Board  exerc ised the  op t ion  unders tand ing  

tha t  there  was go ing  to  be  a  f inanc ia l  consequence to  the  

fac t  tha t  th is  exe rc ise  -  th is  op t ion  was exerc i sed.  20 

That  quantum has been quant i f ied  a t  2 .7b i l l i on  and  

Mr  Cha i r,  the  reason why th i s  2 .7  appears  in  the 

reconc i l ia t ion  fo r  the  Board  is  because,  no tw i ths tand ing  

the  fac t  tha t  the  bus iness case contempla ted  as  I  have 

out l ined a l l  o f  the  issues re la t ing  to  ba tch ing  and the  
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consequences o f  ba tch ing ,  i t  d id  no t  quant i f y  a  va lue  fo r  

ba tch ing .  

They contempla ted  the  ac t  o f  ba tch ing  but  i t  d id  no t  

inc lude a  va lue  fo r  ba tch ing  because i t  d id  no t  know,  when  

the  bus iness case was dra f ted  by  Mr  Ke l le r,  there  was no 

way o f  quant i f y ing  tha t ,  exe rc is ing  tha t  op t ion  and 

there fo re ,  the  RFP was p repared in  such a  way tha t  i f  we 

needed to  assess  th is  exerc is ing  o f  an  op t ion ,  there  w i l l  be 

su f f i c ien t  in fo rmat ion  ava i lab le  f rom the  tenders  to  be  ab le  

to  ident i f y  and quant i f y  what  th is  impact  wou ld  be .   And 10 

tha t  i s  why the  RFP was s t ruc tured in  a  manner  tha t  

requested th i s  in fo rmat ion  f rom the  OEM.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i rperson,  I  see i t  i s  jus t  past  1  

o 'c lock .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We can do  one o f  two th ings in  

recogn i t ion  o f  the  s top ,  s ta r t ,  s top ,  s ta r t  fo r  wh ich  I  am 

respons ib le  fo r  th is  morn ing .   From my po in t  o f  v iew,  i f  i t  i s  

conven ien t  to  cont inue maybe unt i l  ha l f  past  one,  we can  

do so  bu t  i f  we may,  as  we l l  s top  a t  one and then cont inue  

a t  two,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  a lso .   20 

So I  am jus t  check ing  w i th  you in  te rms o f  what  you  

have…[ in tervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  cer ta in ly  wou ld  va lue  the  

oppor tun i ty  to  see i f  I  can  car ry  on  a t  leas t  fo r  ano ther  ha l f  

an  hour  to  see i f  I  can  a t  leas t  f in ish  th is  and  maybe 
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another  top i c .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  th ink  there  shou ld  be  no 

ob jec t ion ,  ja ,  le t  us  cont inue,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  what  do  the  words pr i ce  

premium mean?  I  mean,  I  unders tand what  you say,  when  

i t  says  tha t  the  RFP tha t  Transnet  however  does not  expect  

to  pay a  pr ice  premium.   What  was contempla ted  there  as  

fa r  as  you concerned -  what  was i t  no t  expected to  do?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  i t  was cer ta in l y  no t  expected to  no t  pay 

anyth ing  because as  I  have sa id ,  i t  i s  a  normal ly  10 

commerc ia l l y  acceptab le  pr inc ip le  tha t  i f  you  are  buy ing  a  

1000 o f  someth ing ,  i t  wou ld  probab ly  cost . . . [ in te rvene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  then what  a re  those words mean 

Mr  S ingh tha t  i s  I  th ink  what  I  am get t ing  a t?   I  unders tand  

your  pos i t ion ,  bu t  what  do  the  words mean?  

MR SINGH:    I t  wou ld  mean tha t  we have to  pay someth ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    P rec i se ly,  i t  sa id ,  i t  does no t  expect  

to  pay anyth ing .   I t  does not  expec t  to  pay a  premium.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  wh ich  means we wou ld  be  expect ing  to  

pay someth ing  bu t  no t  excess ive .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  is  tha t  your  in te rpre ta t ion? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You wou ld  pay someth ing ,  bu t  no t  

excess ive?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now,  I  ment ioned to  you the  

ev idence o f  Mr  Laher  aga in  in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  I  can 

take  you to  h is  a f f idav i t ,  I  can  even take you to  a  

t ranscr ip t ,  wh ich  you probab ly  seen.   I  mean,  to 

paraphrase dur ing  the  course  o f  the  negot ia t ions ,  you 

wou ld  have seen tha t  Mr  Laher  ra ised w i th  you and  I  th ink  

Mr  G iann i ,  h is  concerned about  th is .   

And in  par t i cu la r,  he  sa id  we l l  look ,  i f  we a re  go ing  

to  sp l i t  these batches,  shou ld  we not  have done th is  and  

shou ld  we even go out  to  tender  aga in  because the re  m ight  10 

be  some peop le  who cou ld  ac tua l l y  meet  the  same pr ice  on  

a  reduced batch .   Do you reca l l  tha t  concern  be ing  ra ised 

by  Mr  Laher?  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  le t  me take you to  

h is…[ in te rvene]  

MR SINGH:    I  am aware  o f  h is  a f f idav i t  and I  know what  

he  sa id .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  so  you say tha t  d id  no t  

happen? MR SINGH:    No.   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  then I  need to  take  you to  

por t ions  o f  i t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  sure .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You can comment  on  tha t ,  le t  us  go  

to  BB4F,  where  you w i l l  f ind  th is ,  i s  th is  i s  in  Transnet  
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Bund le  4A,  a re  you there?  

MR SINGH:    I  have got…[ in tervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Transnet  Bund le  4A.  

MR SINGH:    Not  BB4A? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  so  i t  i s  Transnet  Bund le  4A not  

BB4A.  

MR SINGH:    Oh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So i t  i s  one o f  the  la t te r  f i l es .  

MR SINGH:    I  am there ,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So th is  i s  a  f i le  tha t  i s  go t  a  number  10 

o f  d iv ide rs ,  can I  take  you to  the  las t  d iv ide r,  tha t  i s  BB4F,  

a re  you there?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And can I  ask  you p lease to  go  to  

page Y IL14.   Tha t  i s  on  the  r igh t  and on the  le f t  hand s ide  

we can perhaps s t i ck  -  i t  i s  234.   A re  you there?  

MR SINGH:    No,  I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  a t  51  Mr  Laher  says:  

“Dur ing  one caucus I  ra ised w i th  S ingh and Giann i ,  

the  issue o f  the  or ig ina l  b id  p r i ce  per  un i t  must  be  20 

re ta ined by  b idders  even though  the  ba tch  s i zes  

were  reduced.   I  po in ted  out  tha t  i f  no t ,  i t  wou ld  

mean tha t  the i r  pr ices  may be h igher  than the  o the r  

unsuccessfu l  b idders  who cou ld  have g iven lower  

p r ices  fo r  a  smal le r  ba tch .  S ingh and Giann i  
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d isagreed,  and Giann i  sa id  tha t  the  b idders  were  

no t  eva lua ted on  smal le r  ba tch  s i zes .   He sa id  a l l  

b idders  were  requested to  p rov ide  breakpo in t  

p r ic ing  and were  no t  eva lua ted on smal le r  ba tch  

pr ic ing  and tha t  no  b idders  prov ided pr i c ing  fo r  a  

smal le r  ba tch . ”  

And a t  52 :  

“Dur ing  the  same caucus,  I  a l so  asked Mr  S ingh and  

Giann i  whethe r  TRF shou ld  no t  have gone out  to  a l l  

b idder ’s  p re-award  to  ask  fo r  a  p r ice  based on a  10 

50% batch .   Mr  G iann i  responded tha t  i t  was no t  

known tha t  a  ba tch  s ize  wou ld  be  50%.”  

And he then re fers  to  the  reco rd ing .   Do you accept  tha t  Mr  

Laher  ra ised these concerns o r  quer ies?  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .    

CHAIRPERSON:    So you are  say ing  no ,  you do not  accept  

tha t  he  d id  ra i se  these concerns?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 20 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then le t  me take you to  the  next  f i l e ,  

th is  i s  Transnet  Bund le  4B.  The Transnet  Bund le  4B i t  

shou ld  be  wherever  you pu l led  ou t  th is  f i l e ,  i t  i s  the  next  
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one.   So i t  i s  Transnet  Bund le  4  and you pu l led  ou t  A ,  th is  

t ime you must  pu l l  ou t  l i t t le  B.  Cou ld  you tu rn  to  page 736 

p lease?   

So le t  me d i rec t  your  a t ten t ion  to  paragraph 17,  th is  

i s  another  a f f idav i t  by  Mr  Laher :  

“ In  add i t ion  to  the  ev idence presented in  my main  

s ta te…[ in te rvene]  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  s i r  th is  736?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    736,  pa ragraph 17.  10 

MR SINGH:    I  have got  an  FQC,  is  tha t  wrong?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  the  le f t  hand number  736 but  i f  

you  got  an  FQC f i le ,  tha t  i s  a  Ca l la rd  f i le .   What  you need 

to  do  is  there  i s  a  se r ies  o f  d i v iders ,  you must  go  to  the  

d iv ider  4F3.  

MR SINGH:    4F3? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  th is  f i l e  i s  consecut ive ly  

pag ina ted so  you  shou ld  i f  you  in  the  r igh t  f i l e ,  be  ab le  to  

f ind  a  page 736.  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  th is  i s  Exh ib i t  B .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    The bund le  i s  Bund le  4B.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  you in  BB4B,  you want  t o  be  i n  

Bund le  4B.  

MR SINGH:    On wh ich  page s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  736.    
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MR SINGH:    I  am there ,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A re  you the re ,  paragraph 17? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  says :  

“Mr  Laher  in  add i t ion  to  the  ev idence presented in  

my main  s ta tement  under  th is  head ing  in  para ’s  51  

and 52,  wh ich  I  read to  you,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  add tha t  

dur ing  a  caucus on 7  February  2014 I  ra ised w i th  Mr  

S ingh and Giann i  tha t  we had not  communica ted  to  

the  b idders  tha t  the  pr i c ing  per  un i t  must  remain  the  10 

same,  so r ry,  tha t  we had communica ted  to  the  

b idders  tha t  the  pr ic ing  pe r  un i t  must  remain  the  

same or  be  i t  tha t  the  ba tch  s izes  had been  

reduced.  I  po in ted  out  to  them,  tha t  i t  was impor tan t  

to  re ta in  the  pr ice  because the  mandate  requ i red  

the  same pr i ce . ”  

Do you ca l l  Mr  Laher  hav ing  ra ised  tha t  o r  no t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  he  d id  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    But  then i f  I  can  take  you p lease to  -  

you w i l l  see  a t  paragraph 18,  Mr  Laher  re fe rs  to  the  fac t  20 

tha t  Mr  Ca l la rd  had put  up  a  t ranscr ip t  o f  the  d i scuss ion  in  

quest ion .   Now,  tha t  t ranscr ip t  you f ind  a t  page –  and 

fo r tunate l y  i t  i s  in  the  same f i le ,  a t  page 914.   Are  you 

there? MR SINGH:    914?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  914 is  a t ransc r ip t  headed  
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negot ia t ion  team meet ing  a t  Transnet  on  7  February  ex t rac t  

f rom v ideo record ing .   You w i l l  see  p resent  inc luded Mr  

Laher  and yourse l f  and Mr  G iann i .   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry ;  your  answer  was not  aud ib le .  

Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH:    Oh,  sor ry  s i r,  I  am a t  the  page yes I  see.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay and you do see tha t  accord ing  

to  tha t  page,  you were  present .   10 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  le t  me take you to  page 916 and 

le t  me ask you to  have a  look a t  l ine  seven the  r igh t  hand 

s ide ,  th is  i s  Mr  Laher :  

“Now tha t  we are  reduc ing  the  ba tches by  50% we 

want  the  same pr ice  and i f  we do not  keep the  

pr ice ,  then we got  a  b ig  p rob lem,  the  so r t  o f  dea l  

b reaker. ”  

So Mr  Laher  ra ises  tha t  i ssue,  does he not?   Oh,  I  take  i t  20 

tha t  w i l l  accept  tha t  -  you have read th is  t ransc r ip t ,  Mr  

S ingh?  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  we l l  then le t  me take you 

th rough -  a l r i gh t .   So a t  l ine  8 ,  I  read aga in ,  on  the  r igh t  
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hand s ide :  

“Now tha t  we a re  reduc ing  the  ba tches to  50% we 

want  the  same pr i ce  and i f  we do not  keep the  same 

pr ice  then we have got  a  b ig  p rob lem,  a  sor t  o f  dea l  

b reaker. ”  

You say:  

“Wel l ,  I  wou ld  have had a  p rob lem f rom Laher  f o r  

obv ious reasons ,  fo r  obv ious reasons and ou r  

mandate  says we must  ge t  i t ,  must  ge t  r id  o f  th is  

ba tch  pr i c ing  because we must  ge t  the  same p r ice .   10 

I  hope Br ian  has not  s igned o f f  on  i t  ye t . ”  

You say:  

“We have not  g iven i t  to  h im,  sor ry,  we have not  

g iven i t  to  h im,  i t  hey. ”  

G iann i :  

“No,  I  do  no t  th ink  bu t  tha t  i s  jus t  a  w ish ,  you know.   

In  fac t ,  some wou ld  be  laugh ing  you o f f  and th ink  

you are  smok ing  someth ing . ”  

Mr  Laher :  

“Yeah,  bu t  you  see we have a  b ig  i ssue then 20 

because i f  we do  not  ge t  tha t ,  sor ry  Taby,  i f  we do 

not  ge t  tha t  p r ice  sum. ”  

And then you go over  the  page to  917,  Mr  Laher  ca r r ies  on  

i t  l i ne  9 :  

“The issue we have around tha t  and i t  now comes 
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back to  eva lua t ions because they prov ided us  i f  we  

have to  go  back on  i t ,  i t  i s  c r i t i ca l  tha t  they g ive  us  

the  r igh t  p r ice  because i f  i t  i s  no t ,  some o f  the  o ther  

b idders  g ive  us  a  be t te r  p r ice  on  a  smal le r  ba tch . ”  

So do you see tha t  Mr  Laher  ra i ses  these issues  tha t  he  

se t  ou t  in  h is  a f f idav i t ,  and then Mr  G iann i  says:  

“No but  Yusuf  we have never  had batches and I  

th ink  we must  no t  confuse th i s  th ing . ”  

And so  i t  goes on,  and then i f  you go to  page 918 and i f  

you look a t  l ine  11 ,  12 ,  13 ,  14 ,  15  Mr  Laher :  10 

“Just  a  quest ion  shou ld  we not  have gone pre -award  

back to  a l l  b idders  and sa id  fo r  80% g ive  us  a  

pr ice . ”  

Now Mr  Laher  gave ev idence about  th is  t ranscr ip t  and to  

the  best  o f  my knowledge he sa id  t ha t  shou ld  be  50%.  

MR SINGH:    S i r,  so  where  a re  you? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  l ine  15 .  

MR SINGH:    915? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    15 ,  yeah page 918.   So on the  face  

o f  i t  Mr  Laher  appears  to  have ra ised these issues w i th  20 

you.  Would  you agree?  

MR SINGH:    I t  wou ld  seem r igh t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  do you have any comment  on  h is  

concerns?  

MR SINGH:    Bur,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  i s  Mr  Laher…[ in tervene]  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh,  sor ry,  w i l l  you  no t  p lease 

jus t  speak i n to  the  m ic rophone,  p lease,  I  know i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  

because you have been look ing  a t  the  f i les  a t  the  same 

t ime,  I  unders tand tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  Mr  Cha i r,  in  response to  th is  Mr  Laher  

i s  ra is ing  issues  tha t  re la te  to  p rocu rement  in  tha t  we  

shou ld  have -  I  wou ld  assume what  he  i s  t ry ing  to  –  the 

po in t  he  is  t ry ing  to  make is  tha t  we shou ld  have g iven  

everybody the  oppor tun i ty  to  have  b id  on  an  equa l  foo t ing ,  

i f  we now reduc ing  the  b id  s i ze .   10 

And Mr  Cha i r,  Mr  G iann i  was the  –  how can I  ca l l  i t ,  

the  procu rement  sub jec t  mat te r  exper t ,  tha t  was f rom TFR 

a t  the  t ime,  he  had run  the  procurement  p rocess up  to  tha t  

po in t  in  t ime and  we wou ld  have taken ou r  cue f rom h im in  

te rms o f  th is  mat te r.   In  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  Mr  

Laher  hav ing  made or  had the  concerns tha t  he  had s t i l l  

con t inued w i th  the  negot ia t ion  process -  went  th rough the  

process,  rece ived the  p r ices ,  rece ived the  b reak pr i ce  

input  f rom the  OEM’s ,  wh ich  was quant i f ied  a t  the  

2 .7b i l l i on  tha t  we  have d iscussed and accepted the  same 20 

eventua l l y,  and a lso  par t i c ipa ted  i n  the  BADC d iscuss ions  

on  the  24 t h  o f  February,  when these mat te rs  were  

d iscussed,  and d id  no t  ra ise  any o f  these concerns a t  tha t  

s tage e i the r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  what  do  you make o f  the  content  
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o f  h is  concerns?   I  mean,  what  h is  ev idence was,  i s  he  

ra ised i t  w i th  you ,  he  go t  a  sense tha t  you and Giann i  bo th  

d id  no t  agree w i th  h im and he  cons ide red you  senior  

peop le ,  tha t  was  the  th rus t  o f  h is  ev idence,  what  i s  your  

comment  to  the  to  the  mer i t s  o f  h i s  ob jec t ion?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  have sa id ,  I  th ink  the  main  

i ssue tha t  Mr  Laher  was ra is ing  was an issue o f  fa i rness in  

te rms o f  p rocu rement  and as  I  sa id ,  I  wou ld  have defer red  

to  Mr  G iann i  a t  the  t ime in  te rms o f  whatever  h is  v iew was  

in  re la t ion  to  the  fa i rness o f  the  procu rement  p rocess,  10 

because tha t  was  h is  a rea o f  exper t i se .   

In  te rms o f  the  issue o f  the  quantum o f  ba tch  

pr ic ing ,  I  th ink  Mr  G iann i  even goes on to  say tha t  -  in  the 

t ranscr ip ts  you w i l l  see  tha t ,  he  says:  

“That  we gave an  ins t ruc t ion  to  say we wou ld  ra the r  

no t  have an impact  o f  b reak pr i c ing . ”  

But  as  I  have exp la ined a l ready,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  bus iness 

case and the  RFP contempla ted  a  cost  assoc ia ted  w i th  

ba tch ing  and sp l i t t ing .   Our  go ing  in  pos i t ion  i n to  the  

negot ia t ion  was tha t  we wou ld  l i ke  no t  to  incur  a  cost  and 20 

tha t  i s  a lways you ’ re  go ing  in  pos i t ion  in  a  negot ia t ion ,  you 

w i l l  p robab ly  never  end up get t ing  a  zero  cost  because as  I  

sa id  commerc ia l l y,  i t  i s  no t  -  i t  wou ld  no t  be  v iab le  fo r  the  

b idders  to  b id  on  a  1000 locomot i ves  and s t i l l  supp ly  you  

the  same 1000  locomot ives  on  a  d i f fe ren t  ba tch  s i ze ,  
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commerc ia l l y  i t  wou ld  jus t  no t  make sense fo r  them.  

They wou ld  have  to  recoup tha t  cost  in  some way,  

shape or  fo rm and Mr  G iann i  bas i ca l l y  ac tua l l y  says tha t ,  I  

th ink  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  he  says:  

“You know,  i t  wou ld  be  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  us  to  ach ieve 

tha t  and in  some cases maybe someone w i l l  th ink  

tha t  you a re  ac tua l l y  smok ing  your  socks. ”  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  then le t  me dea l  w i th  the  

next  i ssue and tha t  i s  cos t  esca la t ion .   So i f  we go back to  

the  schedu le  tha t  i s  a t tached to  the  ETC inc rease memo 10 

and th i s  i s  a t  Bund le  BB4B you w i l l  see  tha t  tha t  schedu le  

or  tab le  a t…[ in te rvene]  

MR SINGH:    Jus t  g ive  me the  page aga in?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    BB4B,  so  th is  i s  the  Ca l la rd ,  one o f  

the  or ig ina l  one,  a t  718.  

MR SINGH:    I  am there ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You w i l l  see  f rom tha t  tab le  tha t  

marg ina l  le t te r  E  or  no te  E  re f lec ts :  

“That  cos t  to  f i x  esca la t ion  to  end  o f  cont rac t  tha t  

accounted fo r  6 .7b i l l i on  o f  the  16  b i l l i on  odd 20 

increase. ”  

Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now,  le t  me take you to  Mr  Chaube ’s  

ev idence.   Th i s  you f ind  in  Exh ib i t  BB8B.  
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MR SINGH:    I  am there ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And he dea ls  w i th  th is  a t  page 46.   

He says tha t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Myburgh what  i s  the  

bund le?   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The bund le  i s  BB8[B .1 ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  and the  page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  marked  on the  sp ine ,  Chaube.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and the  page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The page -  th is  bund le  on l y  has the  10 

red  number ing ,  Cha i rperson i t  i s  red  number  page 46,  four  

s ix .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  Mr  Chaube says by  way o f  

summary a t  pa ragraph 10.19 is :  

“Th is  cost  i tem is  marked in  Tab le  2  o f  the  memo.   

We have dea l t  w i th  the  computa t ion  o f  th is  cos t  

re l ied  on  the  acce lera ted  de l i very  schedu le  as  pe r  

Tab le  1  o f  the  memo the  resu l t  o f  3 .5b i l l i on ,  le t  us  

to  conc lude tha t  th is  cos t  was  over  es t imated  20 

approx imate l y  3 .2b i l l i on . ”  

And perhaps I  can jus t  take  you before  we b reak to  

parag raph 10.21  wh ich  seems to  be  key to  Mr  Chaube ’s  

op in ion .   He says :  

“The South  A f r i can Reserve  Bank th rough i t s  
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Monetary  Po l i cy  Commi t tee ,  in  ach iev ing  i t s  p r imary  

purposes o f  ensur ing  p r ice  s tab i l i ty  ad jus t s  in te res t  

ra tes  to  ach ieve i t s  in f la t ion  ta rge t  o f  th ree  to  6%.  

Our  mode l  assumes the  upper  bound o f  th is  ta rge t  

go ing  fo rward  l i kewise  in  the  Un i ted  S ta tes ,  and he 

dea ls  w i th  th is  because the  OEM’s  they had loca l  

and fo re ign  content ,  l i kewise ,  in  the  Un i ted  S ta tes ,  

the  Federa l  Open  Market  Commi t tee  se t  an  in f la t ion  

ta rge t  o f  2%,  a  targe t  to  wh ich  the  US Federa l  Open  

Market  Commi t tee  had been s t rugg l ing  to  ra ise  10 

in f la t ion  s ince  the  2008 f inanc ia l  c r i s i s ,  cons ide r ing  

th is  I   cons ide red  fu tu re  in f la t ion  assumpt ions as  a t  

March 2014 o f  6%,  loca l l y  and 2% in te rnat iona l l y  to  

be  reasonab ly  conserva t ive . ”  

Then a t  paragraph 10.23 he says:  

“Paragraph 58 o f  the  memorandum notes  tha t  a  

fo rward  look ing  i n f la t ion  assumpt ion  o f  6% per  year,  

[18 .54% over  3 .5  years ] ,  i s  appropr ia te  and tha t  

there  shou ld  be  no quest ion  over  the  16 .8% 

esca la t ion  app l ied .   The concern  here  is  tha t  a  ra te  20 

o f  7 .35% per  year  as  opposed to  6% per  year  i s  

needed to  ar r i ve  a t  an  esca la t ion  cost  o f  6 .7b i l l i on . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  see tha t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now i f  I  cou ld  take  you then  p lease 
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to  what  you say  in  response to  tha t  and th is  you f ind  in  

Bund le  5C page 1492.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  1412?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1492,  Cha i rperson I  see i t  i s  one  

th i r t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you want  to  comple te  the  par t i cu la r  

quest ion  o r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am now go ing  to  take  Mr  S ingh to  

h is  vers ion ,  so…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  a  conven ien t  t ime to  b reak.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  le t  us  take  the  l unch break 

then we w i l l  resume a t  ha l f  past  two,  we ad journ .   

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr S ingh I  was going to  take you to  

what  you have to  say about  the cost  escalat ion and I  had 

asked you to  have a look at  Bundle 5(c)  and to  turn  to  page 

1492.   You deal  wi th  th is  commencing at  1492 paragraph 

268 th rough to 1494 paragraph 274 and amongst  the  points  20 

that  you make,  paragraph 271 at  the top of  page 1493 is  

that  Choubey should have used indust ry speci f i c  in f la t ion  

ind icators fo r  each d i f fe rent  count ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Myburgh i t  looks  l ike th is  

bundle which is  5 (c) ,  I  th ink that  i s  the one you are us ing.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes i t  is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  has got  some pages that  are not  

paginated.   So I  have been – I  see that  i t  moves f rom page 

40 -  408.2 to  1564 pages in  between.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Are they a l l  miss ing? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Seem to be miss ing and I  do not  know 

what  would have happened because that  is  a  lo t  o f  pages.   

I f  you th ink I  might  be able to  fo l low depending on how 

much you wi l l  be  asking in  re la t ion to  what  I  do not  have 

whi le  somebody is  work ing on get t ing  – oh I  see you do not  10 

have a jun ior  today.   I  th ink – I  do not  know whether  the – 

the Regist rar  could do anyth ing.   Do you want  us to  adjourn 

so that  we can go… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  th ink that  we may subject  to  your  

guidance Chai rperson – i f  we may be able to  – I  am not  

exact ly  sure of  the extent  o f  the  miss ing pages but  i f  i t  

comes to th is  par t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Of  the examinat ion a l l  I  am doing is  I  

am paraphrasing.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr S ingh’s.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Vers ion and I  am going to  ask h im to 

expla in i t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   To respond.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  you are miss ing cer ta in  par ts… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am – I  th ink I  am miss ing in  the region of  

800 pages.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  that  –  I  th ink that  would be – that  

is  00:03:14 I  th ink then perhaps we need to t ry  and sor t  that  

out .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Yes but  I  th ink somebody could work  

on i t  whi le  you are cont inu ing i f  you are going  to  be 

paraphrasing what… 10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes cer ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Whatever.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So f rom when – so that  someone can 

work on i t  what  pages are miss ing DCJ? 

CHAIRPERSON:   From – the last  page under 1000 is  408.2 

and then the next  page is  1564.   I  do not  know whether  i t  

was in  th is  work  st ream Mr Myburgh but  I  do know that  

recent ly  I  had occasion to  deal  wi th  a bundle that  had 

documents that  were not  paginated in  i t .   So – 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   As I  understand th is  DCJ th is  is  not  an 20 

issue of  the pages not  be ing paginated i t  i s  an issue of  the 

pages being miss ing real l y  f rom… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja the pages are miss ing here.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   408 unt i l  1564.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja the -  i t  i s  two issues but  the more 
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ser ious one is  pages that  are miss ing.   There are some 

pages that  are  not  paginated of  cer ta in  – of  cer ta in  

documents as wel l .   So at  some stage that  can be looked at .   

But  the – the page – page numbers that  I  gave you are 

pages that  a re miss ing.   I  th ink  wi th  regard to  the other  

documents that  I  say are not  paginated they actual l y  inc lude 

Mr S ingh’s aff idav i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes because th is  Bundle (c ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Th is is  5(c)  and the aff idavi t  o f  Mr S ingh 

that  I  am … 10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay we actual l y  should be  in  5(c)  

DCJ maybe there is  a… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Th is is  5(c) .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  you have everyth ing af ter  1564.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  have not  checked but  I  have got  

o ther  – ja  I  have got  o ther  pages but  I  do not  know whether  

everyth ing is  there.   So somebody would need to  just  go 

through and check.   On the  face of  i t  I  mean I  have got  a  lo t  20 

of  pages but  somebody would just  need to check whether  

the paginat ion is  sequent ia l  –  they are enormous in  pages.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So I  th ink we can cont inue on the 

understanding you have ind icated and maybe in  the  
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invest igat ion team somebody could… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight  thank you DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr S ingh at  pages 1492 and 1493 

you make the point  that  Choubey –  th is  is  a t  paragraph 271 

should have used indust ry speci f i c  in f la t ion ind ica tors for  

each d i f ferent  count ry and at  272 you go on to  contend that  

Choubey ignores the fact  that  a  p remium would be charged 

by the OEM’s to  assume the r i sk of  fu ture pr ice escalat ions.  

 And then i f  I  could take you p lease to  page 1985 10 

Chai r  which I  hope you have 1985.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  should.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So before we get  to  85 perhaps I  can 

take you to  1982.   That  is  the commencement  of  –  of  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have got  1982.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Commencement  of  a  repor t  that  you 

have put  up.   Who does th is  repor t  emanate f rom? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Kroni t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And who is  he? 

MR SINGH:   He is  the d i rector  o f  –  one of  the d i rectors of  20 

Ul te r io r  Consul tancy.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And who are  they? 

MR SINGH:   They are some of… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sorry would you speak in to the 

microphone p lease.  
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MR SINGH:  Sorry.   They are a f i rm of  f inancia l  consul tants.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   F inancia l  consul tants.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And is  i t  your  content ion that  th is  

person is  an expert?  

MR SINGH:   Yes Mr Chai r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And that  repor t  runs f rom 1982 

through to 1996,  is  that  cor rect?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now th is  gent leman i f  I  can take you 10 

to  1985 deals w i th  cost  escalat ion to  end of  pro ject  o r  

cont ract  –  i tem F which we are dea l ing wi th  and i f  you go to  

1986 he makes the two points that  you make – a f ter  the 

schedule he says:  

“Using the assumed weight ings above 

resul ts  in  an h is to r ica l  indust ry  speci f i c  

in f la t ion ind icator  o f  4 .2 fo r  the US. ”  

 And then he says at  the last  paragraph:  

“S imi lar ly  an indust ry speci f ic  index can be 

const ructed for  the local  component .   I  20 

est imate th is  to  be 7.7. ”  

 So there he is  us ing as  you had said Mr S ingh 

indust ry speci f ic  in f la t ion ind icators.   One for  the US,  one 

for  South  Af r i ca.   Is  that  correct?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  you have a look over  the 

page at  1987 under the heading To Inc lus ion of  Risk  

Premium the th i rd  paragraph he says:  

“Est imat ing the  cost  us ing only local  

in f la t ion measured by CPI  impl ies  that  the 

r isk premium was in  excess of  1 .5% per  

annum.  I  would est imate that  1 .5% would be  

a reasonable a l lowance for  th is  r i sk premium 

as the OEM’s wou ld a lso a im to seek a prof i t  

f rom th is  t ransact ion. ”  10 

 And in  effect  th is  gent leman makes the – here the  

two points that  I  have – that  you made in  one of  your  

aff idavi t s .   Cor rec t .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   You want  to  address us on 

that  issue fur ther  or  expand upon what  I  have paraphrased.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  i f  I  am a l lowed.   The paraphrasing by 

Mr Myburgh is  re la t ive ly  accurate in  that  we do not  agree 

wi th  Mr Choubey’s assessment  that  the – the forward 

looking escalat ions is  overstated  by 3.2 b i l l ion and Mr Chai r  20 

the crux of  the mat ter  re la tes to  the issue that  Mr Choubey 

inc ludes in  paragraph 10.23 of  h is  aff idavi t .   I f  we could just  

re ference back to  that .   Mr Chai r  that  is  in  Exhib i t  BB8(b) .1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   D id you say 10.  
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MR SINGH:   23.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   23 so that  i s  a t  page 47 is  i t?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  a t  page 47.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   P lease go ahead Mr S ingh.  

MR SINGH:   Thank you Mr Myburgh.   Mr Chai r  i f  you look at  

paragraph 10.23 effect ive ly  Mr Choubey is  basica l l y  saying  

at  paragraph 58 o f  the memorandum notes:  

“That  the forward looking  in f la t ion 

assumpt ion of  6% per  year  18.54 over  3.5 is  10 

appropr ia te and that  there is  – there should  

be no quest ion  of  the 16.8% as per  

escalat ion appl ied.   The concern here is  that  

the rate of  7 .35% per year  as opposed to 6  

is  needed to  arr i ve at  the escalat ion cost  o f  

6 .7 b i l l i on. ”  

 So what  he is  in  effect  saying Mr  Chai r  i s  that  the 

6% in h is  mind he bel ieves is  appropr ia te whereas we – or  

the memo purpor ts  that  7 .35 would  be appropr ia te to  just i fy  

the fu l l  6  b i l l ion.   Okay.   So in  effect  we deal ing  wi th  a 20 

d i f ference of  1 .35%.  Okay.   So Mr Chai r  what  we have 

expla ined is  that  in  ar r iv ing at  the  – okay le t  us pu t  i t  th is  

way rather.   This percentage Mr Chai r  whether  i t  be the 6 or  

the 7.35 is  made up of  two components.    

 F i rs t ly  i t  i s  made up of  le t  us  ca l l  i t  the under ly ing  
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factors that  would resul t  in  an escalat ion.   So you would 

have steel ,  you would have copper,  you would have labour,  

you would have a l l  o f  the components that  would resul t  in  

an escalat ion.   The second par t  o f  th is  Mr Chai r  would – or  

the second component  of  th is  6% or  7.35% wou ld be a 

premium that  the  OEM’s would charge you to  assume that  

r isk because what  we have done here is  that  we have sa id 

to  them,  we do not  want  to  take any escalat ion r i sk  in to the 

fu ture.   So we want  you to  g ive us a f i xed pr ice.   So they 

are assuming escalat ion r i sk.    10 

 Now for  that  they would have to  charge you some 

sor t  o f  r isk premium.   So those two components Mr Chai r  

would make up the 6% or  7.35%.  

 So now that  we know that  we have the components  

now we can understand how does each one o f  these 

components actua l ly  get  made up.  

 So i f  we take the f i rs t  component  Mr Chai r  where  

you look at  the under ly ing factors that  a re… 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  basica l l y  the economic s i tua t ion.  

MR SINGH:   Yes the economic s i tua t ion.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Labour increases,  s teel  increases and a l l  o f  

those types of  th ings.   Those Mr Chai r  would g ive  you an 

ind icat ion of  the f i rs t  component .   Okay.   

 Now Mr Choubey as we have sa id in  our  aff idavi t  
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takes a re la t ive ly  s impl is t i c  approach and he says:  L is ten,  

US in f la t ion would be X,  South Af r ican in f la t ion wou ld be Y 

and as a resul t  o f  that  he bel ieves 6% is  an appropr ia te  

ind icator.   

 Whereas in  our  case Mr Chai r  what  we are saying is ,  

the basket  o f  components that  make up a locomot ive i t  i s  

much more compl icated than jus t  looking at  CPI  or  PPI  

which again i s  a  basket  o f  components that  resul ts  in  i t .  

 What  we are saying is  we have to do what  the OEM’s 

would have done because they would have not  s imply  10 

looked at  PPI  – they would have not  s imply looked at  CPI .   

They  would  have sa id here is  my 10 000 i tems or  maybe 

that  i s  an – and here is  my 3 000 i tems that  make up a 

locomot ive.   Each one of  these i tems wi l l  be affected by the 

fo l lowing ind ices and then taken a v iew as how those 

ind ices would e i ther  increase or  decrease over  the per iod of  

t ime over  the cont ract  per iod.   And then they would have 

come up wi th  the numbers that  they had g iven us.    

 That  would  in  our  v iew g ive us a  more real is t i c  va lue  

in  te rms of  what  the OEM’s  had done.   Because Mr  Chai r  I  20 

can assure you dur ing the negot ia t ion per iod that  is  exact ly  

what  happened and I  th ink through the legal  team we wi l l  

submi t  to  the commission two documents I  th ink i t  is  a  – a  

Bombardier  Transport  and a GE document  Mr Chai r  that  is  

par t  o f  the s igned locomot ive agreements  
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 But  what  i t  w i l l  show you Mr Chai r  is  that  the – 

remember there is  no escalat ion.   Par t  o f  the locomot ive 

agreements there is  no s igned – there is  no escalat ion 

formula because i t  is  a l ready in  the  pr ice.  

 So you wi l l  not  f ind in  the locomot ive agreements an 

escalat ion formula for  the locomot ive pr ice i tse l f .   But  what  

you wi l l  f ind in  the locomot ive agreements is  an escalat ion  

formula for  par ts  because the – the par ts  re la t ing  to  the 

locomot ives were  not  p r iced as par t  o f  the locomot ive cost  

pr ices.    10 

 So in  the schedules you wi l l  f ind that  the – each of  

OEM’s would have put  escalat ion formulas re la t ing to  pr ice.   

Those escalat ion  formulas  for  par ts  Mr Chai r  wi l l  g ive you 

an ind icat ion of  the complexi t y  of  these formulas that  were  

used by the OEM’s to  p ro ject  what  these escalat ions would 

look l i ke and they are not  as s imple  as CPI  and PPI ’s .   They 

are re la t i ve ly  – I  would not  say mind-boggl ing but  they are  

not  as s impl is t ic .  

 So that  is  why we actual ly  then sa id we would – in  

order  to  predict  what  the escalat ion cost  would  be you 20 

would have to  const ruct  th is  as a composi te  index of  what  

the OEM’s would have v iewed to pro ject  the cost  and that  is 

what  our  aff idavi t  says and that  is  what  Mr Kroni t  in  h is  

independent  assessment  had done.  

 Mr Chai r  then we look at  the second par t  o f  the – o f  
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the makeup of  the 6 or  the 7.3% which is  the premium for  

having taken the r isk.  

CHAIRPERSON:   One second Mr S ingh.   Yes cont inue Mr 

S ingh.  

MR SINGH:   So Mr Chai r  the second par t  o f  the –  of  the 

equat ion would be to  look at  the percentage that  we could  

ascr ibe to  the OEM’s assuming the r i sk – which is  the r isk  

opin ion.  

 Now Mr Chai r  in  –  in  our  case we assumed that  to  be  

in  the region of  1  to  3% and Mr Kroni t  has basica l ly  sa id he  10 

bel ieves that  1 .5% would be more appropr ia te fo r  those –  

for  that  type of  r i sk.  

 So Mr Chai r  i f  you look at  paragraph 10.23 i t  is  a  

case of  reconci l ing the 6% versus the 7.35%.  So the  

d i f ference of  3  b i l l ion between what  Mr Choubey says is  

just i f iab le and what  we say is  just i f iab le is  represented by  

1.3% and that  could – and that  in  our  v iew emanates f rom 

the fact  that  Mr Choubey as you would see. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   1 .3 or  1 .35? 

MR SINGH:   Oh sor ry 1.35.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   R igh t .   And that  1 .35% Mr Chai r  emanates f rom 

what  we say is  i f  you use indust ry speci f ic… 

CHAIRPERSON:   The two components.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Being – i f  you use indust ry speci f i c  factors to  

determine the escalat ion rate as Mr Kroni t  has done he 

ended up wi th  a composi te  index of  6 .2%.  

 And then i f  you take the r i sk premium that  you have 

to add to that  which is  le t  us say 1.5 you end up wi th  a 

number of  7 .8 or  –  ja  7.7 which compares to  the 7.35 which  

we had inc luded in  the memo.  

 So that  is  how we bel ieve that  th is  number should  

have been calcu lated and therefore we bel ieve that  the 06.7 10 

b i l l ion is  just i f iab le Mr Chai r.  

 And you wi l l  note  Mr Chai r  that  in  10.23 Mr Choubey 

does not  re fer  to  a r isk premium.   He is  s i lent  about  a r isk 

premium being added to the numbers.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So can I  then take you perhaps just  

on that  issue le t  me take you to  what  Mr Choubey says in  

rep ly.   Could you turn p lease to  page 1829 of  Bundle 5(c) .   

So at  1829 can I  d i rect  your  at ten t ion p lease to  paragraph 

73.    

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And he deals wi th  the point  that  you 

have just  made.   He says:  

“ I  d i f fer  wi th  Mr – f rom Mr S ingh’s v iew that  

a  r isk premium was not  a l lowed for  in  my 

appra isa l  o f  a  reasonable escalat ion cost . ”  
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 And then le t  me take you to  75 at  page 1830.  

“Over the f i ve  year  per iod immediate ly  

preceding March 2014 the ro l l ing  one year  

local  South Af r ican producer  pr ice in f la t ion  

rate averaged 4.1% wel l  be low the in f la t ion 

rate of  6% assumed in  my assessment  of  a  

reasonable ETC.”  

 I f  I  could take you to  the last  three l ines he says:  

“Therefore the expected cost  a r is ing f rom 

PPI  fa l l ing outs ide a Reserve Bank’s 3% to 10 

6% target  i s  minus 0.8%.  An a l l  inc lus ive  

escalat ion rate (escalat ion rate  p lus r isk  

premium) of  more  than 6% is  not  war ranted. ”  

 I t  says at  76.  

“The approach adopted by Mr S ingh and 

Kroni t  is  not  in  the in terest  o f  Transnet  

because i t  ignores the upside  r isk of  

in f la t ion fa l l ing below 6% thereby tak ing the  

v iew that  the min imum inf la t ion wi l l  be 6% 

and a l lows for  an addi t ional  1  to  3% as a 20 

r isk premium wi thout  substant ia t ing the 

amount . ”  

 A t  77 he says:  

“ I  mainta in that  the assumpt ion of  6% 

adopted in  my appra isa l  o f  the  ETC is  
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conservat ive being the upper bound of  the  

Reserve Bank’s MPC target  range o f  3  to  6% 

and a l lows for  a  r i sk premium of  c i rca 2%.”  

 You want  to  comment  on that?  

MR SINGH:   Thank you Mr Cha i r.   Mr Chai r  I  th ink in  

response to Mr Choubey’s response.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Remember to  face the mic.  

MR SINGH:   Oh sorry S i r.   In  response to Mr Choubey ’s  

supplementary I  th ink aff idavi t  or  supplementary response 

Mr Chai r  Mr Choubey now wants us to  bel ieve that  10 

notwi thstanding what  he sa id at  paragraph 10.23 which I  

re ferred you to  which he sa id 6% was a reasonable  number.   

He would  now l i ke us to  bel ieve that  the  6% as actual ly  sp l i t  

in to  two components.   4% being as I  expla ined to  you the  

economic factors and 2% being a r isk p remium.    

 Yet  he does not  ment ion that  in  h is  10.3 – 23  

paragraph nei ther  does he ment ion i t  is  any of  h is  preceding  

paragraphs.   Yet  our  memo to the board expl i c i t l y  sa id that  

the 6% that  we considered as escalat ion d id not  inc lude a –  

a considerat ion for  the r isk premium that  would have been 20 

charged.   And at  that  s tage we d id  not  have a v iew of  what  

the r i sk premium was but  we said,  l is ten i t  is  in  the  region 

of  a  percent  there fore the 7.35% looks reasonable.   Okay.  

 Now Mr Choubey backed – or  in  my v iew at tempts to  

backt rack and says,  but  I  considered the r i sk p remium in  
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the 6% and he says the r i sk – the – in  paragraph 77 he 

says:  

“Actual ly  the r i sk premium was 2%. ”  

 I f  you look at  the  l ine of  paragraph 77.   So in  actual  

fact  he is  saying  the 6% in h is  v iew was made up of  two 

components being 4% economic factors and 2% being the  

r isk premium.   So we understand that  now.   And I  am saying  

Mr Chai r  in  my v iew Mr Choubey is  be ing d is ingenuous by  

now backt racking  to  accommodate  the r isk premium in h is 

or ig ina l  6% assessment .  10 

 Secondly Mr Chai r  paragraph 75 says:  

“The f ive year  – f ive year  per iod immediate ly  

preceding March 2014. ”  

 Now Mr Choubey is  fu l l y  aware that  escalat ions are  

a fo rward  looking issue because you are  looking  in to the  

fu ture.   F ive years worth of  h is to ry i s  no way enough to  

predict  what  is  go ing to  happen in to  the fu ture.  

 Mr Chai r  a t  that  t ime we were actual ly  in  South 

Af r ica we looking at  above in f la t ion  sa la ry  increases and we 

ment ion that  in  the memo.   I  th ink at  that  s tage government  20 

set t led on 6 or  7% or  8% as a wage increase.  

 That  was the env i ronment  in  which  the OEM’s were 

coming in to and there was no way that  they were going to  

say,  okay we are going to  accept  4%.   That  was h is tor ic .  

 So Mr Chai r  in  th is  case we – we re ject  Mr  
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Choubey’s v iew again in  that  he t r ies to  come back and say 

no the r i sk premium was inc luded and a lso the fact  that  the 

– the fo rward looking escalat ion  should be more  in  the 

region of  4%.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   And then can I  take you to  

one other  passage.   Mr Choubey as you know a lso puts in  a 

response to Mr Kroni t  –  could I  ask you turn to  page 204 in  

the same f i le .   Sorry not  204 – 2004 – 2004.   

MR SINGH:   2004 I  am there S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now I  just  want  to  p ick up on the two 10 

points that  you have addressed.   The indust ry speci f ic  

in f la t ion and the r isk premium.   At  6 .8 he says:  

“Mr Kroni t  argued fo r  indust ry  speci f ic  

in f la t ion factors and proposed factors and 

weights in  model l ing the composi te  in f la t ion  

rates in  h is  assessment  of  the reasonabi l i ty  

o f  the 6.7 b i l l i on cost  fo r  fu tu re escalat ion. ”  

 Mr Kroni t ’s  approach presents wi th  chal lenges fo r  

the fo l lowing.   F i rs t  sub-paragraph.  

“The 1064 memo does not  p rovide for  a  fu l l  20 

basket  o f  factors (or  components)  to  

consider  when determin ing a composi te  

in f la t ion rate. ”   

 He provides examples of  such factors.   And then i f  

you go to  the next  sub-paragraph.  
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“The 1064 memo does not  p rovide weights  

for  the factors in  quest ion. ”  

 Then at  6 .9.  

“The in f la t ion model l ing approach proposed 

by  Mr Kroni t  is  complex (and not  b r ie f  as per  

the pr inc ip le  of  pars imony)  makes 

assumpt ions that  are h igh ly subject ive and 

as  a resul t  does not  genera l i se wel l  across  

the four  OEM’s. ”  

 That  is  what  he says about  indust ry speci f ic  in f la t ion  10 

factors.   And then at  6 .10 Mr Kroni t ’s  argued for  a  r isk  

premium over  and above h is  in f la t ion assumpt ion.   He 

est imated 1.5%  to  be a reasonab le r i sk premium and d id  

not  p rovide reasons to  substant ia te h is  est imate.   And then 

at  6 .11 Mr Choubey makes the point  that  he has made in  h is  

answer to  you and then at  6 .12.  

“ I  submi t  therefore sa id Mr Choubey that  in  

an a l l  inc lus ive escalat ion rate – escalat ion 

rate p lus r isk premium of  more than 6% on 

the basis that  the  f ive year  h is tor ica l  adduce 20 

a pr ice in f la t ion  averaged 4.1  and the 

Reserve Bank’s upper bound for  in f la t ion of  

6  is  not  war ranted.   A rate of  6% in  

assessing the cost  o f  fu ture in f la t ion does 

not  on ly cover  the OEM’s for  the r isk of  
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in f la t ion exceeding expectat ions but  a lso  

passes the benef i ts  o f  in f la t ion fa l l ing below 

expectat ions to  the OEM’s. ”  

 Have you got  any addi t iona l  comments or  

submissions that  you wish to  make in  re la t ion to  that?  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  i f  you look at  paragraph 6.  And 

6.9 the only compel l ing reason that  Mr Choubey g ives 

against  us ing a composi te  index or  an  indust ry speci f ic  

index as we cal l  i t  is  the fact  that  i t  makes the ca lcu lat ions 

h igh ly subject ive and – and as a resul t  does not  genera l i se 10 

across – wel l  across a l l  for  OEM’s.  

 And he is  a lso inconsistent  in  that  appl ied in  the 

model l ing of  the business case.    Now Mr Chai r  Mr Kroni t  

d id  – was not  in  the s imi lar  advantageous posi t ion that  Mr 

Choubey was in .   Mr Choubey had access to  a l l  o f  

Transnet ’s  in format ion at  a l l  mater ia l  t imes.   I f  as I  sa id to  

you the object ive  of  th is  exerc ise  is  to  put  ourselves in to 

the shoes of  the  OEM’s as to  how they would have done 

what  they d id and i f  p roducing an indust ry spec i f ic  or  

composi te  index would resul t  in  us being able to  predict  20 

what  that  va lue would have been Mr Choubey would have 

been in  a bet ter  posi t ion to  have done that .   Because he 

had access to  a l l  re levant  in fo rmat ion at  a l l  re levant  t imes.  

 Mr Chai r  there are engineers at  TFR that  actual l y  sa t  

and looked at  these fo rmulas because Mr Chai r  I  do not  
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know what  escala t ions actual ly  resul t  in  an increase in  the 

locomot ive pr ic ing.  

 So when the OEM’s came and said th is  i s  a  number  

as I  expla ined to  you previously the engineers had to s i t  

and make sense of  the fact  that  these factors f i rs t l y  i f  i t  was 

copper – so  the  copper index that  was chosen was the 

re levant  one that  the amount  of  copper that  was going in to  

a locomot ive was reasonable because that  a lso then 

determines the – the pr ice of  the locomot ive and the  

predicted escalat ions.  10 

 So people at  TFR know th is .   People at  Transnet 

know th is  – they have gone through th is .   So for  Mr  

Choubey to  say that  th is  process is  h igh ly subjec t ive Mr  

Chai r  in  my v iew is  unacceptable.   He says i t  w i l l  –  that  i t  

would genera l i se  across a l l  four  OEM’s – i t  would not  

because each s ing le OEM came up wi th  the i r  own formulas 

that  was tested by Transnet .   Th is  in format ion exis ts  wi th in  

Transnet  because Mr Laher,  Mr Smi t  even Regiments as we 

saw th is  morn ing a l l  o f  them had access to  th is  in format ion.    

 Mr Kroni t  in  an ef for ts  to  get  to  an  understanding of  20 

whether  the numbers were reasonable or  not  we provided 

h im access to  the issues – the  par ts  schedules  that  I  

ment ioned previously that  we can 00:33:45 the commission  

which he then used to understand for  which would be the le t  

us say the b ig [? ]  i tems re lat ing to  how you would const ruct  
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th is  index.   So that  is  how he has come to th is  conclus ion 

Mr Chai r.  

 In  terms of  paragraph 6.10 where Mr Choubey says 

that  Mr Kroni t  does not  g ive reasonable reasons to  provide 

– to  substant ia te h is  est imate Mr Chai r.  

 Mr Chai r  in  my v iew Mr Kroni t ’s  assessment  of  1 .5% 

is  below the r i sk premium that  Mr Choubey h imsel f  accepted 

of  2% as I  just  expla ined to  you previously.  

 So why Mr Kroni t  would have to  just i fy  th is  I  do not  

see the reason fo r  especia l ly  when i t  is  be low Mr Choubey ’s  10 

own assessment  of  2%.  

 Mr Chai r  in  te rms of  6 .11 I  th ink I  have a l ready deal t  

wi th  that  issue in  terms of  the h is tor ic  not  be ing a predictor  

o f  the fu ture.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   Then can I  turn Mr S ingh to 

the last  component  that  I  sa id I  was going to  lead you on 

and that  re la tes to  cont ingency.   Could I  ask you to  go back 

to  Cal lard and to the tab le at  page 718 that  is  Exhib i t  

BB4(b) .   We going to  come back to  the f i le  that  you have 

been deal ing wi th  now but  do you have the tab le  at  718?  20 

Are you at  718? 

MR SINGH:   I  am Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You wi l l   see that  a t  marg inal  le t ter  G.  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A t  approximate ly  a fu r ther  10% at  
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least  to  cover  th is  cost  and that  is  what  we refer  to  as  

cont ingencies and the amount  is  4 .9  b i l l ion,  i s  that  r ight?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And that  is  a  10% cont ingency? 

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Could I  then take you to  what  Mr  

Choubey has to  say and hopefu l l y  th is  i s  the last  t ime that  

we have to p lay  gymnast ics wi th  a l l  o f  our  f i les.   So 

Choubey as you know is  BB8(b)1.   And i f  I  could ask you 

p lease to  tu rn to  page 49 and there you wi l l  see a heading 10 

Cont ingencies and i t  commences at  paragraph 10.29.   Are  

you there? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“Cont ingency costs at  2 .23 b i l l i on  made up 

7.4% of  the capi ta l  costs of  the locomot ives 

in  the business case.   In  comput ing th is  cost  

I  adopted a conservat ive approach by 

reta in ing the  2.232 b i l l ion.   This equates to  

a cont ingency cost  percentage of  7 .6% of  20 

the capi ta l  costs of  the locomot ives.   I  then 

added an addi t ional  cont ingency for  the  

costs of  capi ta l  spares,  opt ions and 

var ia t ions to  keep in  wi th  the assumpt ions in  

the memorandum.  This increased the  
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cont ingency costs  to  2.8 b i l l i on. ”  

 10.30.  

“The memorandum used a  10% cont ingency 

rate to  ostensib ly  a l low for  an addi t ional  

cont ingency cost  on escalat ion ,  fore ign 

currency,  TE scope and batch pr ice  

adjustment .   I  was of  the v iew that  a  

cont ingency reserve need not  have been 

held for :  

 Escalat ion and fore ign cur rency r isk 10 

because Transnet  was a l ready charged to  

have the escala t ion and fo re ign  cur rency 

r isk t ransferred to  the OEM’s.  

 Batch pr ic ing ad justments because 

as th is  cost  was not  just i f ied. ”  

 And then 10.31.  

“The DE scope a l though a l lowed for  in  our  

costs i s  s t i l l  to  be invest igated.   Should th is  

cost  be found to be reasonable cont ingency 

reserve might  be requi red etcetera. ”  20 

 So that  is  what  Mr Choubey says.   I f  I  could take you 

to  – back to  your  aff idavi t .   Th is i s  Bundle 5(c)  and ask you 

p lease to tu rn to  page 1497 where you answer those 

paragraphs.   1497.    

 So you deal  wi th  th is  commencing at  284 at  page 
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1497.  

“ I  deny that  the cont ingency va lue should be 

2.8 b i l l i on as concluded by Choubey. ”  

 And then you go on to  say at  286.  

“ I  would respect fu l l y  request  that  the 

Chai rperson reads paragraph 72 to  75 of  the 

BOD memorandum the same wou ld c lear ly  

ind icate to  the Chai rperson the  extent  to  

which Choubey incorrect ly  s tates  facts and 

thus arr i ves at  an unsubstant ia ted  10 

conclus ions and or  unsubstant ia ted  

opin ions. ”  

 Paragraph 72 to  75 sets  out  the reasons for  

cont ingencies being as fo l lows:  

 Capi ta l  spares beyond warranty per iod.  

 Var ia t ion orders and opt ions and re locat ion costs.  

 You say at  288.  

“Choubey in  h is  assessment  only a l lows an 

amount  of  533 per  locomot ive in  respect  o f  

the above costs which in  my v iew is  20 

re la t ive ly  low. ”  

 You say at  289 in  paragraph 10.30.  

“Choubey states  that  the memorandum to  

the BOD al lowed for  a  10% due to forex  

adjustments,  escalat ions,  batch  pr ic ing  
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ad justments and the ro le  of  TEE th is  i s  

categor ica l l y  denied as the cont ingency 

reserve was for  the reasons stated above. ”  

 So that  is  –  that  is  what  you say and then perhaps I  

can just  take you to  Mr Kroni t .   He does not  deal  wi th  th is  in  

much deta i l  o r  i f  a t  a l l  but  le t  me take you to  what  he does 

say.   In  the same bundle at  page 1988.   You wi l l  see there  

Mr S ingh at  the foot  o f  1988 there is  a  heading Cont ingency 

and Mr Kroni t  says:  

“Paragraph 18 of  the memo conf i rmed that  10 

cont racts were s igned to the va lue of  49.5  

b i l l ion.   Purchase value d id not  inc lude the  

cont ingency amount  of  10% which was 

requested as a buffer  for  the  purposes set  

out  in  paragraph 72 to  75 of  the memo.   I  am 

sat is f ied that  the requested cont ingency 

amount  d id  not  cover  any i tems a l ready 

catered for  ( ie  fu ture escalat ion and 

currency hedging) .   The 10% value is  

determined wi th  reference to the  cont ract  20 

va lue.   I ts  quantum is  a va lue judgment  by  

management  and the board of  d i rectors and 

I  cannot  express an opin ion on th is  g iven 

the in format ion at  hand. ”  

 So that  paraphrases real l y  the – the ev idence of  –  o r  
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the v iew – the opin ion or  Mr Choubey,  your  v iew and the  

v iew of  the Mr Kroni t .   What  would you l i ke  to  say on th is  

top ic?  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  Mr Myburgh has done a  good job of  

paraphrasing the – the issue at  hand.   Mr Chai r  the issue at  

hand here again very s imply Mr Choubey says X we say Y.   

The d i f fe rence between X and Y is  around 2.1 b i l l ion.   Now 

we can again go  through the nuts and bol ts  between Mr  

Choubey and mysel f  and Mr Kroni t  but  the crux  of  the 

mat te r  is  what  makes up 2.1.  10 

 Mr Chai r  you wi l l  understand and have cognisance o f  

the fact  that  a  cont ingency is  what  i t  means.   I t  is  for  

unforeseen c i rcumstances.  

 In  th is  case Mr Chai r  the memo out l ines  the 

c i rcumstances fo r  which the cont ingency was premised.   

Par ts ,  modi f i cat ions and so on.    

 The – le t  us deal  wi th  the 2.1 b i l l i on d i f fe rence.   Mr 

Chai r  in  my v iew the 2.1  b i l l i on d i f ference is  re la t ive ly  easy 

to  expla in.   We do ment ion that  the par t  o f  the cont ingency 

was to  a l low for  the re locat ion  of  the OEM’s and i f  I  –  i f  I  20 

recal l  cor rect l y  Mr Chai r  the va lue that  was ascr ibed to  that  

was I  th ink was in  the region of  about  1.5 b i l l ion or  so.  

 So Mr Chai r  2 .1 b i l l ion of  the d i f ference can be qui te  

easi l y  expla ined by 1.5 b i l l ion tha t  then leaves you wi th  a  

va lue of  750 mi l l ion as which makes up the 2.1  b i l l ion 
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d i f ference between Mr Choubey and mysel f .  

 And again Mr Chai r  wi th  the – wi th  the cont ract  as  

large  as th is  the cont ingency amount  i s  not  an amount  that  

is  actual ly  cont racted.   So there is  no-one that  is  wr i t ing out  

a  cheque fo r  that  amount  to  the OEM’s.   That  cont ingency 

amount  has to  go  through another  Transnet  process for  that  

amount  to  actua l ly  be commit ted to  an  OEM for  any 

par t icu lar  reason.  

 Mr Chai r  again  you wi l l  see that  in  these two 

schedules that  we wi l l  p rov ide to  the commission re la t ing to  10 

the par ts  and too ls you wi l l  see Mr Chai r  the par ts  and too ls 

scheduled actual l y  was not  known the day on which the 

locomot ive cont ract  was s igned.   Par ts  p r ic ing and the par ts  

schedules and the extent  o f  the par ts  would only be 

conf i rmed at  a  la te r  date which was ca l led design f reeze 

date.  

 Now that  in  i t se l f  would say that  the date on which 

we s igned th is  agreement  we had no idea of  what  the 

quantum of  par ts ,  too ls ,  modi f i cat ions or  the l i ke would 

have been requi red for  these locomot ives and hence we 20 

bel ieve that  a  10% cont ingency would be bet ter  p laced than 

the 7.5 % cont ingency which again is  the d i f ference of  the  

2.1 b i l l i on that  ex is ts  between Mr  Choubey’s assessment  

and our  assessment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So le t  me then take you as  I  have 
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before to  what  Mr Choubey says in  response.   Cou ld I  ask  

you to  tu rn in  the same bundle 5(c)  to  page 1821.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have not  p icked th is  up Mr Myburgh but  

probably i t  is  somewhere.   Does Mr  – is  i t  Kroni t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Kroni t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes does he qua l i f ied h imsel f  somewhere 

in  the repor t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No not  that  I  can see – I  have seen 

Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes because obv iously for  as fa r  as I  am 10 

concerned in  these mat te rs one would expect  that  he would 

be somebody who has the expert i se.   I  ra ise the issue wi th  

Mr Choubey as wel l  so – but  i f  –  i f  he has not  done so he 

probably  can do so i t  would be good i f  we can get  

someth ing that  qual i f ies h im.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    Chai rperson to the best  o f  my 

recol lect ion we d id obta in i t  f rom h im.   There  must  – might  

have been some miscommunicat ion between us and the 

evidence leaders or  the people that  we communicated to  but  

i t  was one of  the aspects that  we made sure we d id  obta in.   20 

So I  wi l l  –  we wi l l  p lace our  f ingers  on i t  and make sure that  

i t  comes to the commission i tse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.   Okay no that  is  a l l  r ight .   I  

just  saw h is  academic qual i f i cat ions which appear legal  and 

I  am sure he – but  there  is  someth ing e lse so –  so that  
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would be helpfu l .   Okay.   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So at  page 1821 are you there  Mr  

S ingh? 

MR SINGH:   1821.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  the page? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1821 in  Bundle 5(c)  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   1828.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1821.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr S ingh perhaps I  could just  take  

you to  paragraph 36.  

“The cont ingency amount  of  2 .8 b i l l ion f rom 

my assessment  of  a  reasonable ETC 

expl i c i t ly  a l lowed for  capi ta l  spares to  the  

tune of  c i rca R600 mi l l ion and impl ic i t l y  

a l lowed fo r  the remain ing and unforeseen 

cost  i tems in  the balance of  c i rca 2.2  

b i l l ion. ”  

 Paragraph 37.  20 

“Having considered the costs associated  

wi th  the expense i tems noted in  the 1064 

memo and ra ised by  Mr S ingh in  h is  aff idavi t  

I  mainta in that  a  cont ingency of  2 .8 b i l l ion at  

the t ime suff iced.   The tab le below provides 
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a  sp l i t  o f  the recommended cont ingency 

costs of  2 .8 b i l l i on. ”  

 And then he sets  out  in  a tab le costs in  re la t ion to  

capi ta l  spares,  opt ion,  CSR re locat ion costs,  un located –  

unal located – I  beg your  pardon and that  comes to 2.8 

mi l l ion.   He says at  39:  

“Having a l lowed for  the cost  o f  capi ta l  

spares,  opt ions and the CNR re locat ion  

costs an unal located amount  of  c i rca 1.1  

b i l l ion remains wi th  a BT re locat ion cost ,  10 

costs of  var ia t ion orders and unforeseen 

costs.   I  mainta in…” 

 He says at  39.  

“That  the 4.95 b i l l ion as a cont ingency cost  

was excessive. ”  

 You wish to  address – wel l  perhaps what  I  could do 

is  I  can then take you to  page 2008 where he responds to  

Mr Kroni t . -  2008.    

 And you wi l l  see there he deals wi th  cont ingency at  

paragraph 8 and as  I  have i t  Mr S ingh he essent ia ls  says 20 

the same th ings he has got  the same table.   Do you want  to  

respond to that  p lease? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  again in  terms of  h is  assessment  of  

capi ta l  spares or  545 000 Mr  Chai r  that  amount  would  

equate to  in  the region of  about  500 000 per  loco.  
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 Mr Chai r  I  do not  exact ly  know what  one wheel  on a 

locomot ive would  cost  but  I  would th ink i t  would be more  

than 500 000.   So in  my v iew the 500 000 is  on ly in  –  

inadequate per  locomot ive.  

 And Mr Chai r  you wi l l  see that  he has opposed scr ip t  

1  which he obta ins that  f rom the memorandum on the 15 t h  o f  

January 2014 memorandum resul ts  of  best  and f ina l  o ffer  

responses Mr Cha i r.  

 Now th is  i s  again  before he locomot ive agreements  

actual ly  f ina l ised.   Now Mr Chai r  you wi l l  recal l  that  I  10 

a lways took the commission back to  the cont ractual  

commitment  that  we have wi th  the OEM’s.  

 This was best  and f ina l  o ffe r  we d id not  have a  

cont ractual  commitment  wi th  the OEM at  the t ime.   So by  

the t ime we actual ly  got  in to the  cont ractual  commitment  

wi th  the OEM schedule 6 which is  a  schedule tha t  I  have 

been ta lk ing about  in  terms of  par ts  and schedules and 

too ls was a schedule that  was actual l y  then put  in to the  

actual  locomot ive  agreement  and those schedules ind icated 

that  we would on ly be able to  assess th is  once the  design 20 

f reeze stage of  the procurement  process had been 

achieved.  

 So again I  would th ink that  th is  would be an amount  

that  i s  understated at  th is  s tage.   Mr Chai r  in  terms of  the 

opt ions I  am again not  too fami l iar  wi th  the opt ions but  
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again the opt ions in  te rms of  Schedule 6 again stated  that  

we would be able  to  conf i rm that  a t  design  f reeze stage not  

a t  the date the 15 t h  January 2014 memo stage.  

 Mr Chai r  the CNR re locat ion costs of  9 .5 mi l l ion as  

you know and I  th ink there is  s ign i f icant  amount  of  ev idence 

has been led re la t ing to  that  and I  th ink Mr Myburgh may 

st i l l  go there I  am not  too sure but  again that  is  whol ly  

understated at  the 9.5 mi l l ion.   I  th ink that  number was 

more l i ke 00 mi l l ion and then BT’s re locat ion costs i s  

actual ly  not  inc luded here e i ther  which is  another  600 odd 10 

mi l l ion.  

 So Mr Chai r  f rom that  perspect ive I  would st i l l  

mainta in that  Mr Choubey’s assessment  i s  re la t ive ly  

conservat ive.  

 And I  th ink Mr Chai r  maybe i t  is  a lso worthwhi le  to  

ind icate that  Mr  Choubey fo r  the bet ter  par t  o f  h is  

assessment  in  terms – has mainta ined that  th is  i s  a  

Greenf ie lds pro ject  which would requi re that  you would look 

at  i t  w i th  a – wi th  a pro ject  that  –  that  has a h igher  r i sk  

associated wi th  i t .  20 

 Now i f  you look at  i t  as a Greenf ie ld ’s  p ro ject  Mr  

Chai r  you would assume that  there is  a  r isk premium that  

needs to  be a l located to  the cont ingencies in  th is  regard  

and that  is  the reason why we went  for  a  10% cont ingency 

and not  a  7.5 or  a  5% cont ingency.  



17 JUNE 2021 – DAY 411 
 

Page 117 of 249 
 

 Notwi thstanding the fact  that  we have taken care of  

the fo rex r i sk as wel l  as escalat ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight  I  would l ike now to – to  turn  

to  two procedura l  issues and maybe I  can re l ieve you of  the 

burden of  having to  have so many f i les open at  once.  

 I  want  just  to  rev is i t  f i rs t l y  the conclus ion of  the  

LSA’s before obta in ing the approval  o f  the board and I  th ink 

we have d iscussed th is  previously.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Te l l  me i f  there are some that  I  can get  r id  10 

of  here in  terms o f  f i les Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  th ink you could probably get  r id  of  

a l l  o f  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And I  am sure that  I  have – as soon 

as  I  say that  then I  wi l l  be asking you to  get  one back.   But  

we cer ta in ly  not  go ing to  need mul t ip le  f i les open now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Qui te  – which one we are going to  go 

to  I  suppose one would have to  see.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You wi l l  le t  us know as and when.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr S ing I  do not  know i f  you want  

to  just  take the  opportuni ty  to  c lose these var ious f i les  

because i t  –  i f  you need one just  now I  suppose i t  would be 

easier  to  p ick i t  out  f rom.   A l l  r ight .    

 So on th is  i ssue of  the conclus ion of  the LSA’s  

before the board obta in ing approva l  for  the increase in  the 

ETC I  th ink prev iously we agreed on the chronology and 

that  is  that  the board approved the increase in  the ETC we 

know on the 28 t h  o f  May 2014 but  the LSA’s had been 

s igned about  two months or  so before that  on the  17t h  o f  10 

March 2014.    

 And I  th ink I  had put  the proposi t ion to  you before  

that  i f  i t  was necessary to  get  board approval  for  the 

increase in  the ETC on 28 May 2014 had i t  not  been 

necessary to  do that  then before the LSA’s were concluded.   

I  th ink you have had  addressed that .   I  cannot  recal l  

o ffhand what  your  answer was.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  I  th ink  we – I  th ink we just  got  in to  

addressing i t  and I  do not  know i f  we completed i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay wel l  le t  us then deal  – I  do not  20 

want  to  unnecessar i l y  re- t raverse th ings but  there are one 

or  two th ings I  want  to  put  to  you i f  I  may.   

 Can I  ask you to  go to  Bundle 5 bu t  th is  t ime not  (c)  

Bundle 5(b)  the  f i rs t  par t  o f  your  documents and can you 

turn p lease to  page 1010.  
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MR SINGH:   1010.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja 1010.   This is  a  par t  o f  the 

procurement  p rocedures manual .   I  just  want  to  get  your  

comment  on one provis ion i f  I  may.    

 A t  paragraph 19.5 there is  a  heading Approval  to  

Award Business Af ter  the PTN – Post  Tendered 

Negot ia t ions.   I f  you drop down to 19.5.3.  

“ In  instances where the re levant  AC that  

s tands for  Acquis i t ion Counci l  has  

author ised PTN – Post  Tender  Negot ia t ions  10 

f rom a shor t  l is t  o f  prefer red b idders the  

u l t imate award of  the business whether  

awarded to one or  more than one shor t  

l is ted contender  i .e .  a  sp l i t  award should  

again be presented to  the re levant  AC which 

approved the prefer red b idder /shor t  l is t . ”  

 I  just  want  to  – to  get  your  comment  on whether  that  

happened before the cont racts were s igned.    

MR SINGH:   Mr Chai r  as I  th ink we ment ioned before the – 

the shor t  l i s t ing o f  the b idders was approved by the board I  20 

th ink on the 24 t h  –  24 t h  o r  26 t h  o f  –  somet ime in  January 

2014 and at  the same stage I  th ink  Mr Chai r  they de legated 

to  the Group Chief  Execut ive to  take a l l  necessary steps to  

conclude the cont ract  i f  I  am not  mistaken Mr  Chai r.  Or they 

referred us back to  the BADC which  we then d id in  February 
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before concluding  the cont ract .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   So le t  me just  understand 

th is .   So the board we know – we go back to  January.   I  am 

t ry  – i f  we need to go back to  the documents we wi l l  but  we 

know that  in  January both the  BADC and the  board 

approves th is  shor t  l is t  o f  candidates.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   R ight .   Before the cont ract  would s ign 

d id you go back to  the board to  get  approval?  

MR SINGH:   No.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No.   Okay and you say just  so that  I  

understand that  –  p lease i f  I  have got  i t  wrong te l l  me that  I  

have and we can rev is i t  i t .   You say wel l  there was no need 

for  that  and you ment ion two th ings.  

  F i rs t ly  you say that  the board delegated author i t y  to  

Mr Molefe.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And secondly you say in  any event  we 

went  back to  the BADC.  

MR SINGH:   I  th ink that  i s  what  I  ment ioned.   In  that  20 

January meet ing.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   I f  we had – i f  we could refer  back to  the 

resolut ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.   Let  us go to  that  because I  th ink 
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the word ing is  in . .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now that  you f ind in  Bundle BB4(f )1.   

Remember Mr Laher ’s  got  a  whole lo t  o f  sub-bundles.   

BB4(f )1 and that  wi l l  be in  Transnet  Bundle 4A.   So Mr  

S ingh th is  f i le  compr ises var ious sect ions.   I t  is  the last  tab.  

MR SINGH:   Ja I  have got  that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And – my notes are cor rect  you should 

f ind the resolut ion at  page 379.   Are you there? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So the recommendat ion and perhaps 

just  fo r  the sake of  the record i f  you go to  371 th is  i s  a  

memorandum to the board of  d i rectors.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   From Mr Molefe 17 January  2014.   

This is  the memo you had in  mind I  take i t .  

MR SINGH:   Th is is  the memo yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay.   A t  379 the recommendat ion:  

“ I t  is  recommended that  the Transnet  board  

of  d i rectors the th i rd  bul le t  po int  approved 20 

the recommendat ion of  the shor t  l is t  o f  

tenderers as a resul t  o f  the tender and 

evaluat ion process for  negot ia t ions and 

award of  business. ”  

 And then under that :  
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“Delegate  a l l  necessary  powers to  the  Chief  

Execut ive  to  s ign  and approve and conclude 

a l l  necessary documents to  g ive effect  to  the  

above resolut ions. ”  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now those resolut ions were to  

approve the recommendat ion of  the shor t  l is ted tenderers 

and evaluat ion process fo r  negot ia t ion and award of  

business.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Do you read th is  to  mean that  the 

power to  conclude the cont ract  was delegated to  Mr  Molefe? 

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.   Because i t  does say and 

award of  business.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   But  approve the  

recommendat ion of  the shor t  l is t  o f  tenderers as a resul t  o f  

the tender and evaluat ion process for  negot ia t ions and 

award of  business.    

MR SINGH:   Yes and… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So there was going to  be – there were  20 

going to  be negot ia t ions and an award of  business.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You say that  Mr Molefe was delegated 

the power to  conc lude the cont ract .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   I r respect ive how much i t  was fo r.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So up unt i l  now the only business 

case that  had been approved by  the board was for  38  

mi l l ion.  

MR SINGH:   38 b i l l ion ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry.  

MR SINGH:   I  beg your  pardon.   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So he could do as he p leased.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  wi th in  the – the conf ines of  the process.   10 

So he could not  for  example go and buy 01:04:16 fo r  1064 

locos fo r  example .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  what  he could do is  – cont racted a 

41% increase in  ETC.  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now i f  you have a look at  the  

procurement  p rocedures manual  d id  that  not  have to go  

back to  the board  before he could do that?  I  mean but  for  

th is  de legat ion you accept  that  one would have to  go back 

to  the board before the LSA’s were s igned? 20 

MR SINGH:   No S i r.   Because the PTN that  you quoted f rom 

basica l ly  says you –  the PTN bas ica l l y  –  the Post  Tender 

Negot ia t ions was approved by the acquis i t ion counci l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   R ight .  

MR SINGH:   R ight .   I t  then envisaged that  once th is  PTN 
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was concluded i t  would then need to go back to  the  AC.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   The acquis i t ion counci l .   In  th is  case the 

acquis i t ion counc i l  was the board.   But  as you can see the 

resolut ion that  was 00:05:15 basica l ly  was not  for  the  – they 

approved the recommendat ion of  the shor t  l is ted tenderers  

as  a resul t  o f  the tender and eva luat ing processes for  the 

negot ia t ions.   I f  i t  s topped there we would then need to go 

back.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes but  can I  just  ask you – are you 10 

sure… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry My Myburgh p lease do not  

forget  your  quest ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The c lar i f icat ion  or  answer you g ive  now 

appeared to  me –  appears to  me to be not  the same as the  

one you gave a few minutes ago.   I  may have 

misunderstood someth ing.  

MR SINGH:   Sure .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh sa id  ear l ier  on to  you is  your  20 

posi t ion that  th is  resolut ion gave Mr Molefe the mandate to  

negot ia te and award the business and – for  h igher  than the 

amount  that  had been ment ioned and you sa id yes.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And he asked you whether  he could  do as  
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p leased -   you sa id wi th in  the conf ines of  the process.   And 

then he sa id to  you;  you agree that  but  for  th is  resolu t ion he 

would have had to go back to  the  board and I  understood 

you to  be saying no.   But  what  you are saying now is  i f  the  

resolut ion had stopped af te r  negot ia t ions he wou ld have 

had to go back,  is  that  r ight?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So are the two not  inconsistent?  Am I  

miss ing someth ing? 

MR SINGH:   So maybe – maybe I  misunderstood Mr  10 

Myburgh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.   Oh so in  the ear l ier  proposi t ion you 

would have sa id he should go – he would go back.  

MR SINGH:   He should have – yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Myburgh was your  

understanding the  same as mine? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No that  –  we l l  that  is  what  I  thought  i t  

should be but… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  am indebted to  you c lar i f y ing  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So in  other  words what  – on your  

in terpretat ion the board then decided to depart  f rom 1953 of  
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the procurement  manual .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now could i t  do that?  

MR SINGH:   So i t  was the board.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  the board cannot  just  do anyth ing.  

MR SINGH:   No wel l  the PPN which  is  1953.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Is  evolved f rom the board.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  see.   Now Mr S ingh are you sure  

when you read the Delegat ion to  Mr Molefe you accept  there 10 

is  a  d is t inct ion typ ica l ly  between the conclus ion  of  the  

cont ract  and the  execut ion of  a  cont ract .   In  other  words 

when you look at  the four th bul le t  po int  is  i t  not  perhaps 

capable of  be ing in te rpreted as meaning that  what  the board 

was saying,  is  yes you can s ign these documents and you 

can approve what  you must  but  i t  does not  mean that  you 

can go and negot ia te and conclude whatever  cont ract  you 

want  to .   Was i t  not  author is ing h im to s ign? 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  I  do not  see the d is t inct ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  le t  me put  i t  to  you what  I  th ink Mr  

Myburgh maybe having in  mind because that  is  what  I  am 

having in  mind too.   But  he wi l l  ind icate i f  he had someth ing  

d i f ferent .    

I  understand that  somet imes maybe i t  is  no t  
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somet imes i t  is  a l l  the t ime or  most  of  the t ime that  when 

there is  a  procurement  process – tender p rocess that  is 

be ing fo l lowed i t  would be fo l lowed and there would come a  

point  where the re levant  commit tee or  the re levant  person 

wi th  author i t y  maybe i t  i s  the B id  Adjudicat ion Commit tee 

p icks the winner  as i t  were and says,  th is  is  the – th is  i s  the  

b idder  that  we are p ick ing that  should get  the cont ract .  

 But  a f ter  that  has been done there may st i l l  be a 

number of  issues that  must  be d iscussed or  negot ia ted wi th  

that  b idder  before there is  the actual  s ign ing or  conclus ion  10 

of  the cont racts.    

 I  though Mr Myburgh maybe having  that  in  mind but  

Mr Myburgh you – you wi l l  ind icate.   Is  your  posi t ion that  

that  p rocess does not  mean anyth ing real ly  e  – that  is  Mr  

Molefe would have been mandated to  take the process up to  

the s ign ing of  the cont ract  a f ter  negot ia t ing whatever  

needed to be negot ia ted.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  le t  me put  i t  to  you th is  way.   

This bul le t  po int  4  word ing is  not  speci f ic  to  the locomot ive 

or  i t  is  not  speci f ic  to  th is  memorandum f i rs t l y.  20 

 I t  is  a  gen – i t  is  –  I  wi l l  not  say gener ic  but  i t  is  

pret ty  much put  in to 90% of  the memos that  e i ther  go to  the  

board BADC or  to  the board i t se l f  because the board does 

not  get  involved in  execut ing cont racts.  

 So that  i s  the – the – how can I  ca l l  i t?   The – the  
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word ing that  e ffect i ve ly  empowers the Group Chief  

Execut ive to  take  the act ion f rom the t ime that  the  board  

approves to  f ina l  execut ion of  the  cont ract .   So th is  i s  the  

empower ing i f  you want  to  ca l l  i t  leg is la t ion that  empowers 

h im to do i t .  

 And that  has been the standard pract ice at  Transnet 

f rom the t ime I  can remember.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you – but  what  you do say is  that  as 

far  as you are concerned i t  a l lows h im – i t  a l lowed h im to  

take the process r ight  up to  the end.  10 

MR SINGH:   From here to  the end yes Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

MR SINGH:   And Mr Chai r  a lso just  to  maybe ampl i fy  the 

point  i f  you look at  what  we looking at  here th is  i s  cer ta in ly  

a recommendat ion f rom us – the people that  s igned th is  to 

the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja .  

MR SINGH:   So should the board  have requested that  th is 

not  be the case they would have taken a resolut ion  cont rary  

to  th is  and sa id,  l is ten you wi l l  do PTN or  post  tender 20 

negot ia t ions and come back to  us.   Tel l  us the outcome of  

them we wi l l  then te l l  you whether  to  conclude or  not .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

MR SINGH:   And maybe Mr Chai r  as I  sa id I  do not  know 

what  the resolut ion of  th is  th ing says.   This is  just  what  we 
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have submi t ted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MR SINGH:   The board may have minuted someth ing  

d i f ferent  I  do not  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  then i f  Mr Molefe could do as he 

p leased and he could cont ract  h imsel f  for  the 41% increase 

in  the ETC why was i t  necessary to  go to  the board and get  

approval  on the 28 t h  o f  May fo r  the increase in  the ETC 

which Mr Molefe had a l ready cont racted.  10 

MR SINGH:   So Mr Chai r  the  Delegat ion of  Author i t y  

f ramework actual ly  addresses th is  po int  that  Mr Myburgh 

ra ises.   What  we are deal ing wi th  here Mr Chai r  as Mr  

Myburg qui te  correct l y  po inted out  is  that  i t  is  deal ing wi th  

the procurement  event  and i t  is  deal ing wi th  the  

procurement  process which is  governed by the  ETN which is  

the procurement  procedure manual  and i t  basica l l y  sa id,  go  

and do your  post  tender negot ia t ion and i f  need be come 

back to  the AC. .  

 We have now said by v i r tue of  th is  th ing you do not  20 

need to come back to  the AC.   So on the procurement  s ide 

Mr Molefe was author ised to  complete the procurement 

process which he  d id th rough s ign ing the agreements that  

as we now know 50 b i l l ion.  

 However Mr Chai r  there is  an anci l la ry p rocess to  
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th is  which is  the capi ta l  process.   Now the capi ta l  p rocess 

is  the process that  we have been deal ing wi th  wi th  Mr 

Choubey and MNS and ourselves in  terms of  the va lues.  

 Now when we approve a pro ject  on the capi ta l  s ide  

Mr Chai r  a  va lue is  a l located to  i t .   That  va lue remains there 

as a cont ro l  f igure because i t  is  a  – i t  is  a  budgeted number  

and you – i f  the budget  changes then cer ta in  processes 

need to be fo l lowed to change that  number.  

 Now in  th is  case the board – the  board approved 

38.6 on the bas is on which we have expla ined.   That  10 

number – that  38 .6 would have been a l located a warrant  in 

the Transnet  system which would a t t ract  that  p ro ject .  

 Once we have now concluded the cont racts we knew 

that  the 38 had now gone to  50 f rom a cont ractual  

perspect ive and 55 inc lud ing cont ingencies.  

 Now a  capi ta l  process Mr Chai r  would have requi red  

us to  go th rough a process to  amend the 38  to  the  

cont ractual l y  commit ted 55 so that  when Transnet  now 

spends they are spending against  a  capi ta l  a l located budget  

that  is  55 and cont ractual l y  commit ted agreements of  50  20 

b i l l ion.  

 So that  is  the separat ion of  the two processes.   So 

the board needed to approve the 55 in  o rder  for  us to  

amend the 38 to  55 f rom a capi ta l  p rocess perspect ive.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And what  would have happened i f  the 
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board had refused to do that?  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  in  effect  I  cannot  speculate as to  what  

would have happened but  i t  has never  happened  in  my 

h is tory that  the board d id not  approve i t .   The board d id in  

fact  approve i t .   The Delegat ion o f  Author i ty  actual ly  does 

make provis ion fo r  these type of  instances and Mr Chai r  the 

– to  that  extent  the s ign i f icance and mater ia l i t y  f ramework 

which is  a  document  between the shareholder  and the  

company a lso recognised the fact  that  these instances wi l l  

occur  when the capi ta l  pro jects exceed the i r  va lues and we 10 

would have to  e i ther  go fo r  approval  o r  not i f icat ion to  the – 

to  the re levant  Min is t ry  that  these th ings have occur red.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes but  I  am not  sure that  addresses 

the quest ion.   I  mean what  would have happened i f  they d id  

not?  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  I  guess then –  I  actual l y  do not  know 

because I  have never  come across i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   But  does that  not  show that  the 

board real ly  d id  need to agree f i rs t .  

MR SINGH:   Not  necessar i ly  because i f  you look at  the –  20 

how can I  ca l l  i t?   The  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  guess – I  guess i f  you want  to  make 

sure that  the – the – you do not  have that  s i tuat ion  ar is ing 

you get  the board  to  agree f i rs t .  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  in  essence Mr Chai r  that  is  what  I  wi l l  
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g ive.  

CHAIRPERSON:   01:16:39.  

MR SINGH:   Yes so in  th is  case Mr Chai r  f rom our  

perspect ive when I  say our  I  am ta lk ing about  management  

we had presented to  the BADC I  th ink  on the 26 t h  –  24 t h  o f  

February or  so where we had ind ic ted and l is ten we have 

now completed post  tender negot ia t ions and th is  i s  what  the 

p ic ture looks l ike and th is  was the – remember in  the 

morning when I  re fe rred to  a number of  52 b i l l ion that  is  the  

feedback that  we had g iven to  the BADC at  that  po in t .   They  10 

then fu r ther  took a  reso lu t ion  to  say:   L is ten ,  management .   

Go ahead and conc lude the  cont rac t .   So had they had an 

issue w i th  the  va lue  a t  the  t ime they cou ld  have s topped 

th is  and sa id :   L is ten ,  th is  i s  no t  in  accordance.   Maybe 

ra ised concerns around why th is  th ing  is  now go ing  f rom 38  

to  55  and what  a re  the  reasons and so  on .    

 And we,  bas ica l l y,  ou t l ined the  same reasons a t  

tha t  s tage tha t  we probab ly  ou t l ined in  the  board (?)  

meet ing(? ) .   So tha t  was done  to  them on the  24 t h .   

Notw i ths tand ing  tha t ,  they  s t i l l  con t inued to  say:   L is ten ,  20 

go  ahead and s ign  th is .   And the  l ocomot ive  cont rac ts  were  

e f fec t i ve l y  on l y  s igned,  I  th ink ,  on  the  17 t h  o f  March.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    17  March,  yes .  

MR SINGH :    17 t h  o f  March .   So,  there  was a  pe r iod  o f  

th ree  weeks w i th in  wh ich  i f  they  requ i red  us  to  no t  s ign ,  
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they  cou ld  have,  bas ica l l y,  taken a  dec is ion  to  say  do  not  

s ign .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And Mr  S ingh,  can I  jus t  take  you –  I  

am not  sure  tha t  they are  pa r t i cu la r ly  re levant  now,  g iven  

tha t  you have accepted tha t  bu t  fo r  the  de legat ion ,  one  

wou ld  have to  go  back to  the  board .   Can I  ask  you to  go  to  

Bund le  5(c)?  

MR SINGH :    5 (c )?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i t  i s  a  document  tha t  we added  

over  lunch.   Someth ing  tha t  you have ment ioned ear l ie r  in  10 

your  ev idence,  to  page 2339.   I t  hand pag ina ted.   I t  w i l l  be  

added to  the  bund le  fo rmal l y  in  due course .    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    These are  the  m inutes  o f  the  BADC 

meet ing  tha t  you have made ment ion  o f ,  he ld  on  the  

26 t h  o f  February  2014.   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you see a t  page 2340 a t  the  top :  

“The purpose o f  the  presenta t i on  was to 

request  the  commi t tee  to  approve  the  award  o f  20 

bus iness fo r  the  464  d iese l  locomot ives  and 

599 e lec t r i c  locomot ives . . . ”  

And then a t  page 3 ,  there  seems to  be  someth ing  o f  a  

debate .   There  is  a  f igure  ment ioned o f  R 52 b i l l i on .   I  th ink 

you have sa id  tha t  was the  amount  a t  the  t ime,  bu t  I  jus t  
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want  to  take  you to  what  was u l t imate ly  reso lved,  i f  I  

unders tand the  m inutes  cor rec t l y.   I f  you  go to  page 2348.   

That  i s  my or  hand pag ina t ion  and i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  

d rop down to  paragraph 8 .12 ,  there  i t  records :  

“Supp ly  o f  465  new d iese l  locomot ives  fo r  

genera l  f re igh t  bus iness.  

The commi t tee  agreed tha t  the  f ina l  to ta l  cos ts  

o f  ownersh ip  w i l l  be  tab led  to  the  commi t tee  

fo r  cons idera t ion  in  due course  and fu r ther  

submi t ted  to  board  fo r  in fo rmat ion  purposes. . . ”  10 

And then,  essen t ia l l y,  the  same dec is ion  was made in  

respect  o f  the  599 e lec t r i c  locomot ives .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    I  can  see tha t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry?  

MR SINGH :    I  can  see tha t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  jus t  wanted to  ask  you.   When I  

looked a t  these minutes ,  I  no t iced someth ing  tha t  I  wanted  

to  quest ion  you on.   Perhaps you  can shed some l igh t  on  

th is .   A t  page 2347 a t  paragraph 8 .1 ,  i t  says :    

“P rocurement  o f  1064 locomot ives  fo r  TFR 20 

Genera l  Fre igh t  Bus iness,  the  te rms o f  

re fe rence fo r  the  appo in tment  o f  an  

independent  exper t  w i l l  be  fo rmula ted  and 

f ina l i sed by  the  Board  S teer ing  Commi t tee  

compr i s ing  the  Commi t tee  Cha i rperson,  
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Cha i rperson o f  R isk  and Mr  S ingh.    

The Board  S teer ing  Commi t tee  w i l l  gage the  

sk i l l s  requ i red  and appo in t  a  serv i ce  p rov ide r.   

Go ing  fo r  the  exper t  w i l l  ass i s t  the  board .  

Management  w i l l  f ina l i se  the  process o f  

appo in t ing  an  independent  exper t .  

Conversa t ion  on  how the  mat te r  w i l l  be  

f ina l i sed w i l l  be  communica ted  to  the 

cha i rperson. . . ”  

Now what  was the  ro le  –  what  was the  an t ic ipa ted  ro le  o f  10 

th is  –  o f  th is  exper t  to  the  board?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  th is  wou ld  go  back to  the  -  aga in  

someth ing  tha t  emanated f rom the  bus iness case.   In  te rms  

o f  be ing  ab le  to  govern  someth ing  l i ke  th is ,  i t  was 

env isaged tha t  the  –  there  wou ld  be  a  s teer ing  commi t tee  

tha t  wou ld  manage th is  acqu is i t ion  p rocess,  bu t  over  a  

per iod  o f  t ime,  i t  became,  I  guess,  less  fo rmal ised and th i s  

independent  exper t  p rov is ion  was never  ac tua l l y  

imp lemented.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  we l l ,  tha t  i s  what  I  wanted to  20 

ask  you.   Why not?   I t  was dec ided here .   You were  

supposed to  be  invo l ved in  choos ing  the  exper t .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  exact ly  reca l l  bu t  I  

th ink  the re  was some d i scuss ion  be tween Mr  Mole fe  and 

the  Cha i rman o f  BADC at  the  t ime and i t  was ag reed tha t  
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we shou ld  no t  cont inue w i th  th is  p rocess.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  why  d id  the  board  need an  

exper t?   Because as  I  unders tand your  in te rp re ta t ion  is  

tha t  the  board  had to ld  Mr  Mole fe  tha t  he  cou ld  do  what  he  

wanted to .  

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r.   Th is  i s  a  mat te r  a r is ing  f rom 

prev ious m inutes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    So ,  i t  had emanated  somet ime before .   I  am 

not  exact ly  sure  when.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  we  are  in  February  now.  

MR SINGH :    Ja .   So,  th is  wou ld  have been car r i ed  fo r  f rom 

a  number  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  p rec ise ly,  bu t  i t  i s  subsequent  

to  the  January  meet ing .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t ,  as  your  in te rpre ta t ion ,  i s  in  

January,  the  board  sa id  to  Mr  Mole fe  tha t  you can go and  

conc lude whatever  cont rac t  you want  to .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ye t  here  in  February,  the  BADC,  the 

commi t tee  o f  the  board  i s  ag i ta t ing  about  the  fac t  tha t  the  

board  ac tua l l y  needs an exper t .    

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  am –  as  I  sa id  –  look,  maybe I  

shou ld  have sa id  th is  even before  we s ta r ted ,  bu t  I  –  these  
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m inu tes  were  g i ven to  us  now.   Maybe i f  I  can  have a  

coup le  o f  m inutes  –  we l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sure .  

MR SINGH :    . . .we cou ld  dea l  w i th  i t  in  –  I  do  no t  know 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Le t  us  jus t  dea l  w i th  what  you know.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  d id  the  board  need an exper t  

fo r?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  as  I  sa id .   In  my v iew,  th is  was  10 

conce ived a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  th is  p rocess,  and i t  was 

conce ived on the  bas i s  tha t  g iven the  fac t  tha t  we were  

buy ing  qu i te  a  s ign i f i can t  number  o f  locomot ives  fo r  the  

f i rs t  t ime,  a  t ransact ion  o f  th is  s ize  and a l so ,  i t  was 

e lec t r i c  and d iese l  locomot ives ,  there  wou ld  have  been a  

need fo r  someone to  adv ice  the  board  in  te rms o f  cap i ta l  

cos ts  and,  you know,  a l l  o f  those  type o f  techn ica l  th ings  

tha t  the  board  may had quest ions on .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  what  –  so  tha t  we –  I  unders tand 

th is .   You yourse l f  because o f  the  s ize  o f  the  cont rac t  20 

needed t ransact ion  adv i sors?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You went ,  and you got  McK insey and 

Reg iments .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    We have t raversed on tha t ,  bu t  what  

i s  contempla ted  tha t  the  board  wou ld  have i t s  own exper t .  

MR SINGH :    In  te rms o f  the  techn ica l  aspects .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i t  was someth ing  tha t  was ra ised 

here  as  la te  as  26  February  2014.  

MR SINGH :    Based on the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    . . .on  th is  document .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And now we get  to  the  po in t  o f  why  

was th is  no t  pu t  in to  ac t ion?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  reca l l  exac t l y,  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  I  th ink  

one was.   Who was th is  exper t  go ing  to  be?  Where  are  we 

go ing  to  f ind  the  exper t?   And as  t ime went  on ,  i t  became 

i r re levant .   As  you wou ld  have  seen,  we were  a lmost  

conc lud ing  the  cont rac t ,  ye t  we had not  dec ided who the  

exper t  was go ing  to  be .   So,  by  the  re f lec t ion  o f  t ime,  the  

proposa l  became i r re levant .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  proposa l  wou ld  become,  i f  i t  i s  

a  p roposa l ,  i r re levant  i f  you  have s igned the  cont rac t ,  bu t  

i f  you  have not  s igned the  cont rac t ,  i t  wou ld  be  h igh ly  

re levant ,  even a t  las t  m inute  because i f  the  board  fe l t  tha t  

i t  needed exper t  adv i ce  be fore  i t  cou ld  g ive  a  f ina l  go-
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ahead,  then tha t  cou ld  be  cr i t i ca l ,  espec ia l l y  when you are  

dea l ing  w i th  b ig  amounts .    

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  os tens ib le ,  they gave us  

the  go-ahead notw i ths tand ing  the  fac t  tha t  th is  mat te r  

a r is ing  was s t i l l  no t  conc luded.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  remember,  th is  quest ion  by  

Mr  Myburgh is .   I t  seeks to  say:   A re  you rea l l y  co r rec t  in  

unders tand ing  the  reso lu t ion  to  mean tha t  the  board  had  

g iven a  go -ahead  and i t  was not  go ing  to  be  invo lved in  the  

mat te r  anymore?  And he is ,  in  e f fec t ,  say ing .   Them,  tha t  10 

is  th is  commi t tee  o f  the  board ,  want ing  an  exper t  i s  

incons is ten t  w i th  the  no t ion  tha t  they were  no t  go ing  to  

have anyth ing  to  do  w i th  the  mat te r  anymore ,  where  he  

wants  to  know what  you w i l l  say  to  tha t .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  in  response to  tha t .   The very  

same commi t tee  in  the  very  same meet ing ,  bas i ca l l y,  te l l s  

us  to  go  ahead and conc lude the  cont rac t ,  wh ich  is  on  

page 2341.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  tha t  m ight  ra ise  the  quest ion .   What  

d id  you unders tand th is  par t  o f  th is  p roposa l  o r  request  to  20 

be  fo r  then?  Because one wou ld  have thought  tha t  i f  a t  the  

t ime you though t  tha t  i t  was unwarranted because the  

board  had sa id  go  ahead,  then one wou ld  have thought  tha t  

you wou ld  ra ise  tha t  i ssue then to  say:   Why do you want  

tha t  because you have g i ven us  a l l  the  mandates?  



17 JUNE 2021 – DAY 411 
 

Page 140 of 249 
 

MR SINGH :    Indeed.   Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.   As  I  have sa id .   I  

have not  looked a t  these se ts  o f  m inutes  in  sequence.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    I  am jus t  speak ing  o f  the  –  o f  my memory  a t  

th is  po in t  in  t ime but  as  you –  in  te rms o f  the  quest i on  tha t  

you are  ask ing :   Would  th is  have changed the  

in te rpre ta t ion  o f  what . . .?   Remember  th is  i s  the  BADC.   

Th is  i s  the  Board  Acqu is i t ion  and D isposa l  Commi t tee .   The  

or ig ina l  reso lu t ion  tha t  we were  look ing  fo r  tha t  empowered  

Mr  Mole fe  came f rom the  board  i t se l f .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  the  members  o f  the  – th is  commi t tee  

wou ld  be  members  o f  the  board  i t se l f .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    And tha t  de legat ion  wou ld  have happened in  

January.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  what  does remain  is .   I f  

members  o f  the  fu l l  board  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .who happened to  be  members  o f  th is  20 

commi t tee  as  we l l ,  i f  they  take  th is  pos i t ion ,  the  same 

issue w i l l  a r i se  t o  say bu t  why do you ask  fo r  an  exper t  

because you were  pa r t  o f  the  board  tha t  sa id  we must  go 

ahead.   So,  in  other  words,  we go back to  the  quest ion .   

One wou ld  have  expected tha t  you hav ing  been a t  tha t  
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meet ing  o f  th is  commi t tee ,  you  wou ld  have ra i sed the  

issue:   Why do you want  an  exper t  because the  board  has  

a l ready g iven us  a l l  the  mandates?  And i f  i t  i s  no t  ra ised,  

one  wonders  what  your  unders tand ing  was because one  

wou ld  have thought  tha t  you wou ld  say bu t  why do we need  

an exper t  because you are  no  longer  go ing  to  be  invo lved 

in  th is  mat te r?   You have g iven i t  to  us .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  cannot  answer  fo r  the  board .   

Maybe the  board  shou ld  be  asked tha t  quest ion .   As  I  

unders tand i t .   No board  members  were  asked fo r  a f f idav i t s  10 

in  te rms o f  the  1064 locos.   So,  they shou ld  te l l  you  what  

they unders tood.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    I t  i s  poss ib le (?)  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . I  am ta lk ing  about  you because  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Bu t  I  have to ld  you what  I . . .   Mr  Cha i r,  I  have 

to ld  you . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you do not  know what  you may have  

unders tood.  20 

MR SINGH :    I  to ld  you what  my unders tand ing  was .   That  

in  my v iew,  th is  had –  i t  was past  i t s  exp i r ing  da te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So ,  i s  you r  v iew tha t  there  was no need  

fo r  an  exper t  a t  tha t  s tage?   

MR SINGH :    I f  we had a l ready got ten  to  a  po in t ,  Mr  Cha i r  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    . . .o f  award ing  the  con t rac t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    . . . the  board  in  i t s  v iew a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime 

had the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i t  requ i red  to  make the  dec is ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  o f  course ,  the  m inutes  do  not  

re f lec t  you say ing :   Why do you need an exper t?   I s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH :    No,  no .   Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  in  the  mat te rs  

a r is ing ,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    I  sa id ,  Mr  Cha i r,  these i tems are  recorded in  

the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    . . . sec t ion  ca l led  mat te rs  a r is ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    So ,  yes ,  i t  does not  record  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You see . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja ,  I  jus t  wanted to  po in t  ou t  

someth ing  to  you .   Wel l ,  what  we  know i s  as  la te  as  the  

26 t h  o f  February  2014,  wh ich  was  th ree  weeks be fore  the  

LSA’s  were  s igned,  a t  leas t  s i x  members  o f  the  board ,  on  

the  face  o f  i t ,  the  en t i re  BADC members  wanted an exper t  
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to  be  appo in ted .    

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  i f  they  wanted they shou ld  have  

appo in ted  one.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then what  i s  a lso  in te res t ing  is .   

I f  you  look a t  347 ,  you see i t  reco rds  under  parag raph 8 .1 :   

The mat te r  was  in  p rogress,  and i t  was fo r  whose  

a t ten t ion?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    2347.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  was fo r  your  a t ten t ion ,  Mr  S ingh.    

MR SINGH :    I  no te  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And so ,  what  d id  you do about  th is?  

MR SINGH :    As  I  sa id  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Noth ing?  

MR SINGH :    [ laughs]  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  w i th  the  g reates t  

o f  respect .   I  know he has sa id  i t  on  numerous occas ions  

tha t  you a re  there  to  ascer ta in  ce r ta in  fac t s  bu t  there  i s  a  

l ine  to  be  drawn wi th  c ross-examinat ion  and I  w i l l ,  w i th  the 20 

greates t  o f  respect ,  submi t  my lea rned f r iend is  busy in  the  

manner ism in  wh ich  he  do ing  and  the  way he is  do ing  i t  

and the  quest ion  he  is  pu t t ing ,  tha t  ventures  in to  the  rea lm  

o f  c ross -examinat ion .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  ta lk  about  the  d is t inc t ion  
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be tween ask ing  quest ions to  es tab l i sh  the  t ru th  and  cross-

examinat ion  fo r  qu i te  some t ime.   The issue occup ied  my  

mind as  to  what  the  d i f fe rence wou ld  be  but  to  the  ex ten t  

tha t  there  wou ld  be  a  d i f fe rence,  maybe you might  o f fe r  

some ins igh t .   I t  may be tha t  i t  m igh t  be  as  s imp ly  tha t  a  

c ross-examiner  i s  advanc ing  the  in te res t  the  pa r ty  tha t  

they rep resent  wh ich  an  ev idence leader  in  the  

Commiss ion ,  such as  th is ,  does not  have.    

 But ,  you know,  when i t  says  you –  when the  ru le  

says an  ev idence leader  i s  en t i t led  to  ask  quest ions to  10 

es tab l i sh  the  t ru th ,  obv ious ly,  there  are  d i f fe rences,  you 

know.   P rob ing  is . . .   So ,  I  am jus t  say ing .   I  know tha t ,  you 

know,  peop le  make tha t  d is t inc t ion  and maybe there  is  tha t  

d is t inc t ion  bu t  p rac t ica l l y  i t  m igh t  be  d i f f i cu l t .    Bu t  f rom 

what  Mr  Myburgh  is  do ing ,  I  have  –  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  he  

has gone tha t  fa r.   So.   But  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t .   I  am sure  you 

wou ld  concede,  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I  have  p laced my ob jec t ion  on  

record .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    And we w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  i f  

necessary  in  due course .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   That  i s  f ine .   

Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja ,  we l l ,  perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  ask 
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you  aga in ,  Mr  S ingh.   I t  re f lec ts  tha t  the  mat te r  was in  

p rogress,  and i t  i s  fo r  your  a t ten t i on .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Perhaps,  I  shou ld  no t  have sa id  tha t  

you d id  no t  do  anyth ing  in  –  i t  was my in te rpre ta t ion  o f  

what  you wou ld  have sa id .   Perhaps I  shou ld  s imp ly  ask  

you then.   What  d id  you do th is  be ing  fo r  your  a t ten t ion?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  sa id  i n  –  f rom my reco l lec t ion ,  

Mr  Cha i r,  I  was under  the  impress ion  tha t  th is  ma t te r  had 

been c losed ea r l ie r  in  the  procu rement  p rocess because as  10 

I  have sa id ,  i t  ac tua l l y  emanated f rom the  incept ion  o f  the 

process.   So,  now,  wh ich  is  qu i te  a  wh i le .   So,  I  am 

actua l l y  su rpr i sed tha t  th is  c lause(? )  i s  an  open i tem on  

the  24 t h  o f  January  2014.   So,  as  I  sa id .   I  wou ld  have to 

go  back and ac tua l l y  re fe rence in  unders tand ing .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sure .    

MR SINGH :    What  was the  –  o r  reconc i l ing  in  my m ind why  

is  i t  tha t  I  th ink  tha t  th is  mat te r  was c losed p rev ious ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   I  wou ld  l i ke  then  to tu rn  

to  anothe r  top ic  and tha t  i s  the  fa i lu re  to  ob ta in  m in is te r i a l  20 

approva l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  to  c lose  o f f  on  tha t  i tem.   D id  you  

propose to  submi t  an  a f f idav i t  a f te r  you have had the  

oppor tun i ty  o f  reconc i l ing  why you thought  tha t  someth ing  

tha t  had been dea l t  w i th  ear l ie r?  
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MR SINGH :    Sure .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  jus t  do  no t  wan t  to  leave i t  hang ing .  

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r,  we w i l l  do  tha t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    We wi l l  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Mr  S ingh,  I  want  to  dea l  

w i th  the ,  as  I  have ment ioned,  fa i lu re  to  ob ta in  m in is te r i a l  

approva l  fo r  the  i ncrease.   Cou ld  I  take  you to  your  -  one 

o f  your  a f f idav i t s?   Th is  i s  Bund le  5(c )  and can I  ask  you,  10 

p lease,  to  tu rn  to  page 1443? 

MR SINGH :    1443?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    1443.   Now what  you say – sor ry,  te l l  

me when you are  there .  

MR SINGH :    I  am there ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  you say a t  pa ragraph 52 is :  

“ I  s tand by  the  contents  o f  the  memorandum of  

the  Board  o f  D i rec tors  da ted  23 May,  

spec i f i ca l l y  paragraph 17 o f  the  sa id  

memorandum,  where  i t  s ta tes :  20 

“A l though the  approva l  f rom the  Min is te r  was 

not  sub jec t  to  a  f ina l  cos t  o f  R 38.6  b i l l i on  fo r  

good governance and fo r  in fo rmat ion  

purposes,  the  le t te r  w i l l  be  sent  to  the  DPE 

adv is ing  o f  the  f ina l  ETC. . . ”  
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Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you were ,  in  fac t ,  the  au thor  o f  

th is  memorandum,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r,  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then you go on a t  54  to  say:  

“The DOA f ramework  e f fec t i ve  1  June 2013,  

approved by  the  Board  o f  D i rec tors  in  May  

s ta tes . . . ”  

And you then quote  parag raph or  C lause 515 under  the  10 

head ing ,  Increase in  Est imated Cost ,  and i t  reads:  

“ Increase  in  ETC Pro jec ts  a l ready approved by  

the  shareho lder  m in is te r  must  be  repor ted  to  

the  shareho lder  m in is te r  i f  the  increase is  in  

excess o f  15%. . . ”  

Now I  th ink  i t  i s  common cause tha t  th is  increase  was in  

excess o f  15%.   Is  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And as  I  unders tand what  you  

content  and you must  cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  i s  tha t  one 20 

d id  no t  need approva l  o f  the  Min is te r.   One need to  s imp ly  

to  repor t  i t  to  the  Min is te r /  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  f rom what  I  have seen and 

cer ta in ly  f rom the  repor t s ,  i t  appears  tha t  tha t  a lso  was not  
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done.   When was i t  repor ted  to  the  Min is te r?  

MR SINGH :    I  have no reco l l ec t ion  o f  whethe r  i t  was  

repor ted  to  the  M in is te r  o r  no t .   I  am not  aware  o f  tha t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You are  no t  aware  o f  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    No.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Who wou ld  have had to  repor t  i t?   Would  

i t  have been the  board  o r  the  CEO or. . .?  

MR SINGH :    I t  wou ld  have –  the  le t te r  wou ld  have had to  

be ,  I  wou ld  assume,  d ra f ted  by  the  company secre tary.   I t  

wou ld  then go to  Mr  Mole fe  fo r  recommendat ion  and then 10 

wou ld  have gone  to  Mr  Mkwanaz i  fo r  h im to  s ign  to  sent  

to . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  i t  was Mr  Mole fe ’s  job?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  I  wou ld  assume so  or  someone tha t  

wou ld  be  p ick ing  up  these issues f rom the  board  i t se l f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t ,  o f  course ,  tha t  takes me back to  

tha t  emai l  s t r ing  tha t  we have dea l t  w i th  th is  morn ing  

where  you were  cor respond ing  w i th  –  i s  i t  Ms Huma? 

MR SINGH :    Mis ter.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ms.   Where  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

MR SINGH :    Mis ter.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . you  sa id  t o  her  tha t :  

“ I  hope th is  he lps ,  bu t  we w i l l  be  prov id ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You sa id  m is ter?  
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MR SINGH :    Mr  Huma,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mis ter?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry.   I  beg your  pardon.   You sa id :  

“ I  hope th is  he lps ,  bu t  we w i l l  be  p rov id ing  the  

DPE wi th  a  fu l l  repor t  on  the  t ransact ion  once  

the  Board  o f  D i rec tors  have approved same. . .  

That  i s  what  you sa id .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You d id  no t  p rov ide  tha t  repor t?  10 

MR SINGH :    We l l ,  i t  was under  the  knowledge tha t  there  

wou ld  be  a  PFMA process tha t  wou ld  requ i re  tha t  to  

happen.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    H ’m.   Now,  cou ld  I ,  p lease,  ask  you  

to  tu rn  to  page 1913?   

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Th is  i s  o f  Bund le  5(c) .    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  an  a f f idav i t  o r  a  s ta tement  by  

Mr  Sedumene(?)  s ta r t ing  a t  page 1912,  and he then dea ls  20 

w i th  your  content ions,  as  he  puts  i t ,  a t  paragraph 3  a t  page  

1913 and  he  se ts  ou t  an  argument  here .   I  am assuming 

you had an oppor tun i ty  to  read i t .   I t  runs f rom paragraphs  

3 .1  to  3 .18  a t  page 1915,  where  he  contends tha t  the  

ob l iga t ion  was not  s imp ly  to  repor t  bu t  tha t  you ac tua l l y  
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needed to  ge t  permiss ion .   To  a  la rge  ex ten t ,  I  suppose 

these a re  quest ions o f  law.   Do you have any comment  on  

th is  se t  o f  submiss ions by  Mr  Sedumene? 

MR SINGH :    I  am not  sure  where  Mr  Sedumene ge ts  the  – 

or  comes to  the  conc lus ion  tha t  PFMA approva l  i s  requ i red .   

He is ,  obv ious ly,  re ly ing  on  the  incor rec t  de legat ion  o f  

au thor i t y  o r  s ign i f i cance in  mater ia l i t y  f ramework  to  do  

tha t .   The de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  and s ign i f i cance in  

mater ia l i t y  in  f ramework  tha t  we have out l ined  in  the 

a f f idav i t  tha t  you  re fer red  to  i s  the  cor rec t  de legat ion  o f  10 

au thor i t y  and i t  requ i res  tha t  we mere ly  repor t  the  increase  

to  the  Min i s te r.    

 In  th is  regard ,  Mr  Cha i r,  we have a lso  re fe r red  you  

to  the  Werksmans repor t  as  we l l  as  the  Fundudz i  repor t ,  

were  a lso  –  do  not  take  content ion  w i th  the  manner  in  

wh ich  the  approva l  re la t ing  to  the  increase f rom 38 to  45  is  

done.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  I  suppose the  more  fundamenta l  

d i f f i cu l t y,  and I  wou ld  ask  you to  address th is  i s ,  tha t  even 

on your  own in te rpre ta t ion  tha t  was not  done.    20 

MR SINGH :    I  am not  –  as  I  have sa id ,  I  am not  aware  o f  

whethe r  i t  was or  whether  i t  was not  done.   I  know 

Werksmans has i nd ica ted  in  the i r  repor t  tha t  there  i s  no  

ev idence to  suggest  tha t  a  le t ter  had been sent  to  the  

Min is te r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  perhaps I  shou ld  pu t  tha t  more  

accura te ly.   You  are  no t  aware  –  you have no ev idence 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . to  the  e f fec t  tha t  i t  was done? 

MR SINGH :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  th ink  Mr  Mole fe ,  he  –  i f  I  reca l l  h is  

ev idence cor rec t l y,  he  accepted tha t  u l t imate ly  th is  wou ld  

have been h is  respons ib i l i t y  and I  th ink  he  accepted tha t  i t  

was not  done but  I  s tand to  be  cor rec ted .   A l r igh t .   Le t  me 10 

then move to  another  top i c  and tha t  re la tes  to  the 

re loca t ion  o f  CNR f rom Pre tor ia  to  Durban.    

 Now,  Mr  S ingh,  what  I  am go ing  to  do  is .   I  am 

go ing  to  g ive  you  a  sor t  o f  a  thumbna i l  ske tch  o f  th ings.   I  

th ink  I  have on ly  had one or  two quest ions to  ask  you.   So,  

I  hope tha t  we can work  th rough the  res t  o f  the  s tu f f  qu i te  

qu ick ly.   You know tha t  the  person who gave ev idence  

about  th is  was a  Mr  Consa lves?  

MR SINGH :    Th rough –  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.  20 

MR SINGH :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .   And what  h is  a f f idav i t  re f lec ts  i s  

tha t  on  the  11 t h  o f  March 2014 and  le t  me jus t  pos i t ion  th is .   

Th is  was towards  the  end o f  your  tenure  a t  Transnet .   As  

we know,  i t  was f rom August  you went  over  to  –  you were  
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seconded to  Eskom.   So,  on  11  March 2014,  CNR 

submi t ted  an  in i t ia l  cos t ing  o f  R 9 .7  m i l l ion  and I  th ink  we 

have a l ready seen tha t  because  Mr  Choubey re fer red  to  

tha t .   Then on the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l ,  CNR conc ludes what  we 

re fer  to  as  a  BDSA,  Bus iness  Deve lopment  Serv i ces  

Agreement ,  w i th  Becks.    

 I t s  benchmark  is  R 280 mi l l ion  and  i t  w i l l  ge t  a  fee  

i f  i t  ach ieve tha t  benchmark .   That  was subsequent ly  

increased to  R 580 mi l l ion .   So tha t  i s  in  Apr i l .   Then in  

Ju l y  –  th is  i s  now in  2015.   That  i s  why the  ro le  tha t  you  10 

have p layed becomes impor tan t .   In  the  next  year,  a  

cost ing  o f  R 647 mi l l ion  was submi t ted  to  Transnet  and th i s  

was ag reed by  Mr  Gama in  a  var ia t ion  order  on  the  23 r d  o f  

Ju l y  2015,  and tha t  i s  shor t l y  be fore  you le f t  and the re  is  a  

consequence o f  th is .   Beck ’s  pocketed R 67 mi l l ion .   So 

tha t  i s  the  rough arch i tec tu re .   A l r igh t?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Consa lves tes t i f ied  tha t  you 

s igned the  agreement  w i th  CNR and Transnet .   Do you  

conf i rm tha t?   20 

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   So le t  me take you to  

Mr  Consa lves ’ f i l e .   One o f  the  ear l ie r  o r ig ina l  f i l es ,  BB5.   

BB5,  Cha i rpe rson .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  I  cou ld  take  you,  p lease,  to  page  

RG-238?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  here  you w i l l  f ind  a t  238 an 

ana lys is  o f  cos ts  increases,  and i t  i s  qu i te  a lengthy  

document ,  bu t  i t  p rov ides or  s igna ture  a t  249.   You w i l l  see  

there ,  i t  was s igned by  Mr  Je f f  Wang,  the  CEO of  CNR 

Rai l ing  S tock  South  A f r i ca  and then i t  p rov ided fo r  your  

s ignature .   You say you d id  no t  s ign  th is?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  have any reco l lec t ion  o f  10 

s ign ing  th is .   I  do  no t  –  I  d id  no t  s ign  th is ,  Mr  Cha i r,  nor  do  

I  reca l l .   Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  th is  approva l  on  the  23 /07/2015 

tha t  Mr  Gama had g iven,  I  th ink  wou ld  ind ica te  who the  

de legate  o f  au tho r i t y  who s igned th is ,  in  ac tua l  fac t  was.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  i f  I  cou ld  take  you,  p lease,  to  

your  bund le ,  5 (b)?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So,  th is  i s  –  5 (b) ,  page 1011.   I  do  

no t  know i f  i t  i s  o f  any par t i cu la r  re levance,  bu t  I  guess i t  

i s  –  i t  needs to  be  de termined.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you say . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    1011.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So,  i t  i s  an  ex t rac t  f rom Mr 

Consa lves ’ ev idence a t  1011.   I f  you  go to  l ine  21 .   The  
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vers ion  tha t  we have on f i le  i s  on l y  be ing  say – s igned by  

Je f f  Wang.    

“We do not  have a  ve rs ion  tha t  was s igned by  

Ano j  S ingh as  we l l . ”    

The ev idence leader  says:    

“But  can you conf i rm tha t  you are  aware  o f  the  

s igned ve rs ion  wh ich  was s igned on beha l f  o f  

Transnet  by  Ano j  S ingh and on beha l f  o f  the  

consor t ium by Mr  Je f f  Wang. ”    

Mr  Consa lves:    10 

“Cor rec t ,  Cha i r. ”    

And you w i l l  see  la te r  on  tha t  S iyabonga Gama conf i rms 

tha t  th is  i s  accep ted.   As  I  read h i s  ev idence.   He says tha t  

you s igned th is  cont rac t .    

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r,  aga in ,  i f  tha t  s igned copy does 

ex i s t ,  he  shou ld  have p rov ided the  Commiss ion  so  we 

cou ld  dea l  w i th  i t .   As  o f  today,  we  s t i l l  do  no t  have  a  copy 

o f  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   But  –  we l l ,  no t  tha t  we have 

been ab le  to  loca te .    20 

MR SINGH :    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  do  I  unders tand your  ev idence to  

be  tha t  you cannot  reca l l  whether  you s igned i t  o r  no t?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  –  I  was not  –  as  fa r  as  I  reca l l  I  am 

not  the  de legated autho r i t y  to  s ign  th is .   So,  I  wou ld  no t  
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have s igned th is .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .  

MR SINGH :    And aga in ,  he  says  tha t  –  you w i l l  see  la te r  

on  tha t  Mr  Gama conf i rms tha t  th is  i s  accepted.   I  do  no t  

th ink  Mr  Gama has conf i rmed tha t  e i the r.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You know tha t  –  we l l ,  I  th ink  tha t  I  

have put  i t  to  you tha t  Becks is  Gupta  l inked.   I t  i s  one o f  

the  f i rs t  l i ne ,  as  Money- f lows ca l l s  i t ,  “money launder ing  

en t i t y ”?   Do you know tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  f rom what  you have sa id ,  yes .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now I  wan t  to  jus t  take  you to  the 

ser ies  o f  concerns tha t  were  ra ised by  Mr  Laher  in  re la t ion  

to  the  proposed cost  o f  R 647 mi l l ion .   Can we go,  p lease,  

to  Transnet  Bund le  4(a )?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then go  r igh t  to  the  end aga in  to  

the  BB4( f )  d iv ide r.  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  page d id  you say we shou ld  go  to?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  s ta r t  by  go ing  to  20 

page 238,  p lease .   That  i s  pa r t  o f  Mr  Laher ’s  a f f idav i t .   A t  

parag raph 71,  he  says:  

“ In  June 2015,  I  was ins t ruc ted  by  S ingh to  

rev iew proposa ls  re la t ing  to  the  proposed 

move. . . ”  
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And then a t  72 ,  he  says:  

“My comments  on  these proposa ls  and my  

concerns on  the  f inanc ia l  po in t  o f  v iew are  

ar t i cu la ted  in  emai l  cor respondence dated  

21 June 2015 and  22 June 2015. . . ”  

Now tha t  emai l  cor respondence,  you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 471.   

Now,  Mr  S ingh,  you w i l l  see  a t  471 tha t  i t  i s  f rom Laher  

sent  on  the  21s t  o f  June and i t  i s  CC’d  to  you.   Now,  I  jus t  

wanted to  ask  you to  conf i rm or  to  comment  on  th is .   Mr  

Gama,  in  h is  ev idence,  made ment ion  o f  the  fac t  tha t  there  10 

was a  Re locat ion  Commi t tee .   A commi t tee  tha t  was tasked  

and to  dea l  w i th  th is  i ssue o f  re loca t ion  and tha t  you were  

par t  o f  tha t  commi t tee .   Would  you accept  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  seem to  reca l l  tha t ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  beg your  pardon?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  seem to  reca l l  tha t .   Someth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you conf i rm tha t  you have asked 

Mr  Laher  to  look  in to  th is  i ssue?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  I  do  no t  20 

want  to  have to  go  th rough . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you g ive  an  answer?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  le t  me. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    In  the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  I  do  want  to  

have to  go  th rough these 18 po in ts ,  bu t  you accept  tha t  

Mr  Laher  ra i ses  a  number  o f  mater ia l  concerns about  the  

cost ing?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  rea l l y,  jus t  wanted to  ask  you  

th is .   On what  bas is  were  these concerns reso lved? 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  these concerns,  f rom my 10 

perspect ive ,  wou ld  have been dea l t  w i th  by  Ms Mo le te(? )  

who was the  po in t (? )  person a t  the  t ime,  dea l ing  w i th  the  

re loca t ion .   She was the ,  le t  us  ca l l  i t ,  the  pro jec t  manager  

respons ib le  fo r  the ,  le t  us  ca l l  i t ,  re loca t ion  p ro jec t . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  there  was a  commi t tee?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    She was pa r t  o f  the  commi t tee?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    As  you were?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  my quest ion  aga in  –  we l l ,  pu t  

another  way.   Were  you sa t is f ied  tha t  these concerns had 

been met?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  the  memo tha t  was then  

presented fo r  us  to  recommend to  Mr  Gama,  we –  I  was  
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comfor tab le  tha t  Ms Mole te  wou ld  have a t tended to  these  

mat te rs .   I  d id  no t  ge t  to  go  back to  Mr  Laher  and say:   

L is ten ,  have these th ings be ing  reso lved sa t is fac to r i l y?   I  

do  no t  th ink . . .   [Speaker ’s  vo ice  drops –  unc lear ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  Mr  Laher ’s  ev idence is .   No 

one came back to  h im.  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  i t  seems l i ke  he  d id  resend i t  to  Ms 

Mdle tshe on the  3 r d  o f  Ju ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    On the  21 s t  o f  June.  

MR SINGH :    No,  I  am say ing .   The or ig ina l  emai l  was sent  10 

to  Ms Mdle tshe on the  21s t  o f  June .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  and then on the  3 r d  o f  Ju ly  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Copy ing  us  and then he,  I  wou ld  assume,  

resend i t  to  her  on  the  3 r d  o f  Ju ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    3 r d  o f  Ju ly.  

MR SINGH :    Why he resend i t ,  I  am assuming,  fo r  her  to  

e i ther  fo l low i t  up  or  she may have requested the  fac t  tha t  

he  resend i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  jus t  so  tha t  I  unders tand your  20 

ev idence.   You as  a  member  o f  the  Re locat ion  Commi t tee ,  

were  you sa t is f ied  tha t  Mr  Laher ’s  concerns had been met ,  

bear ing  in  m ind tha t  you were  the  one who asked  h im to  

look  in to  th is .  

MR SINGH :    By  v i r tue  o f  the  fac t  tha t  I  had thought  tha t  
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Ms Mdle t she was  tak ing  care  o f  th ings.   You see,  I  th ink  

a lso ,  one o f  the  th ings tha t  I  cer ta in ly  have re ference to 

w i th  a t  the  t ime was tha t  we  concent ra ted  on the  fac t  tha t  

we a re  look ing  a t  CNR for  var ious spec i f i c  reasons wh ich  is  

in  the  mandate  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  bu t  f rom my perspect ive  

a t  the  t ime,  Mr  Cha i r,  you wou ld  apprec ia te  i t  tha t  I  was 

ac tua l l y  look ing  a t  the  re loca t ion  as  a  p ro jec t  and the  

pro jec t  was made  up o f  two peop le  tha t  were  re loca t ing .   I t  

was jus t  no t  CNR.   I t  was CNR and  BT(?) .    

 So,  f rom tha t  perspect ive ,  and aga in  Mr  Cha i r,  one 10 

o f  the  th ings tha t  we wou ld  –  tha t  I  th ink  I  need to  h igh l igh t  

i s  tha t  the  commi t tee  was not  a  –  how can I  say  –  

fo rmul ised commi t tee  tha t  sa t  in  a  room and then sa id :   

Okay,  we have no rece ived a l l  o f  these th ings.   Le t  us  now 

dea l  w i th  each one in  tu rn .    

 I t  was a  fo rm o f  commi t tee  tha t  was made up o f  

peop le  tha t  were  –  how do I  pu t  th is  –  tha t  had the  ab i l i t y  

to  unders tand whether  these th ings were  sens ib le  o r  no t  

because remember,  Ms Mdle t she,  Mr  J iyane and TFR and  

TE were  the  peop le  tha t  ac tua l l y  rece ived the  or ig ina l  b ids  20 

f rom. . .    

 Then a  dec is ion  was made to  say :   Okay,  a l l  four  

cannot  bu i ld  in  Pre tor ia .   We need  to  re loca te  too .   So,  the  

quant i f i ca t ion  o f  th is  p rocess wou ld  have been under taken  

to  unders tand what  the  dev ia t ion  is  f rom,  what  was 
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submi t ted  or  what  i s  now be ing  requested.   And these 

ind iv idua ls  were  best  p laced to  be  ab le  to  do  tha t  and tha t  

i s  one o f  the  reasons why Mr  Laher  was incorpora ted  in to  

th is  th ing  to  unders tand tha t  because he had a  meet ing  

w i th  –  repor t (? )  was submi t ted  and  what  wou ld  now be 

requ i red  wou ld  be  –  how do I  say  –  a l loca ted  fo r  th is  

re loca t ion .    

 From my perspec t ive ,  Mr  Cha i r.   As  I  sa id ,  I  wou ld  

have expected tha t  be tween Mr  Laher  and Ms Mdle tshe  

tha t  these issues wou ld  have been reso lved pr io r  to  the 10 

memo coming to  us .   In  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  Mr  Cha i r.   When I  

compared the  two va lues be tween  CNR and BT,  they were  

no t  s ign i f i can t ly  d i f fe ren t .   I  th ink  the  number  was 647 tha t  

you ment ioned fo r  CNR.   I  th ink  Mr  Myburgh d id  ment ion  a  

va lue  o f  6474 fo r  CNR and I  th ink  the  number  fo r  BT was  

around s ix  hundred mi l l ion .    

 So,  to  me the  numbers  d id  no t  look  s ign i f i can t ly  

d i f fe ren t  hav ing  gone th rough  the  process tha t  the  

commi t tee  wou ld  have gone th rough.   So,  f rom a  

reasonab le  pe rspect ive ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  was re la t i ve ly  20 

comfor tab le  tha t  the  two numbers  were  re la t i ve l y  in  the 

ba l lpa rk  and there fore  was comfo r tab le  tha t  the  va lues –  

the  memorandum cou ld  be  suppor ted .    

 And aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r,  you w i l l  have apprec ia t ion  

tha t  these th ings ,  as  I  wou ld  –  the  memo tha t  went  fo r  
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app rova l  to  Mr  Gama was not  a t  au thor i t y  to  pay(?) .   There  

wou ld  have been a  cont rac t .   There  wou ld  have had  to be  a 

process tha t  agreed tha t . . .  

MECHANICAL INTERRUPTION :   [02 :01 :18]  

MR SINGH :    So ,  the  approva l .   Yes,  approved the  amount  

and Mr  Cha i r  what  tha t  wou ld  have done,  as  I  exp la ined 

ear l ie r,  i t  wou ld  have re leased s i x  hundred mi l l ion  fo r  BT 

and i t  wou ld  have s i x  hundred and fo r ty -seven mi l l ion  fo r  

CNR f rom tha t  cont ingency amount  o f  f i ve  b i l l i on  tha t  we  

had c reated th rough the  increase  f rom 38 to  50 ,  what  we  10 

have d iscussed  th is  morn ing  because remember  the  

purpose o f  tha t  memo was to  re lease those amounts  fo r  

wh ich  spend ing  wou ld  then occur  aga ins t .   And here  wou ld  

be  then a  subsequent  p rocess tha t  wou ld  need to  jus t i f y  

the  va lues tha t  then were  spent  aga ins t  each o f  those  

ac t iv i t ies . . .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  what  I  jus t  wanted then to  ge t  

your  comment  on .   Le t  us  j us t  have a  look a t  one o f  these  

bus iness deve lopment  se rv i ces  ag reements .   Aga in  –  and I  

want  you to  go  back to  Consa lves,  Exh ib i t  BB5.   Go to 20 

page 216.  

MR SINGH :    [Speaker  unc lea r  –  moved away f rom 

microphone]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    BB5.   One o f  the  or ig ina l  f i l es .  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .   And can you p lease tu rn  to  page  

216?  That  i s  where  you see the  cover  sheet  o f  the  

Bus iness Deve lopment  Serv ices  Agreement  be tween CNR 

and Bus iness Expans ion  S t ruc tured Products ,  BEX.   I  jus t  

want  to  maybe ask your  comment  on  one th ing .   I f  you  go  

to  page 221,  d i rec t  you r  a t ten t ion  to  parag raph 2 .5 .  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    221,  paragraph 2 .5 .  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  says  the re :  10 

“S ince BEX has under taken to  negot ia te  and  

f ina l i se  the  dea l  w i th  TFR on a  r i sk  bas i s ,  i t  i s  

agreed between  both  par t ies  t ha t  BEX is  

en t i t led  to  an  agency commiss ion . . . ”  

Now you dea l t  w i th  th is .   You rece ived CNR’s  proposa l .   

You asked Mr  Laher  to  look  in to  i t ,  e t  ce tera .   D id  you eve r  

ge t  a  sense o f  BEX hav ing  p layed any ro le  in  the  

negot ia t ions  and the  f ina l i sa t ion  o f  th is  dea l?  

MR SINGH :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    D id  you even know who BEX was?  20 

D id  you know anybody f rom BEX? 

MR SINGH :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Your  –  bo th  answers  were  no?  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  s i r.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you were  speak ing  away f rom the  
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m ic .  

MR SINGH :    No. . .   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And perhaps jus t  fo r  the  sake o f  

comple teness.   I f  I  cou ld  ask  you  to go  to  259?  You w i l l  

see  tha t  there  is  the  invo ice  tha t  was rendered to  CNR by 

BEX and pa id  in  an  amount  o f  R 67 mi l l ion  exc lud ing  VAT 

and inc lud ing  VAT R 76 mi l l ion .   Th is  be ing  the  f i r s t  l i ne  o f  

the  Gupta  launder ing  en t i t y.    

MR SINGH :    I  see tha t ,  s i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  you tu rn  then to  anothe r  

cont rac t?   And thankfu l l y  th is  t ime hav ing  comple ted  the  

locomot ives ,  we can speak about  someth ing  e lse .   Neote l .   

And I  want  to  dea l  w i th  the  2014 Maste r  Serv i ces  

Agreement  Negot ia t ions  and Asse t  Buy Back Agreement .   

Th is ,  as  you may remember,  was  someth ing  dea l t  w i th  in  

ev idence by  Mr  Van der  Westhu izen.   Can I  ask  you,  

p lease,  to  f i sh  ou t  Exh ib i t  BB7,  one o f  the  or ig ina l  exh ib i t s ,  

ear l ie r  on  and go to  A ,  BB7(a)?   And cou ld  I  ask  you,  

p lease,  Mr  S ingh,  to  tu rn  to  page 13?  20 

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  a t  the  mater ia l  t ime,  Mr  Van 

der  Westhu izen was an Execut ive  Manager,  Off i ce  o f  Ch ie f  

In fo rmat ion  Off i cer  a t  Transnet .   I  jus t  want  to  take  you,  i f  I  

may?  I  am go ing  to  t ry  and pa raphrase as  much as  I  can.   
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I  want  to  take  you th rough paragraphs 47 to  56 .   I t  says  a t  

Paragraph 47 tha t :  

“There  were  two s t reams inc luded in  the  

negot ia t ions  w i th  Neote l ,  namely  a  Commerc ia l  

S t ream which  he  was respons ib le  fo r  the  

negot ia t ion  and f ina l i sa t ion  o f  the  te rms o f  the  

2014 MSA and a  Techn ica l  S t ream which  was 

respons ib le  fo r  the  negot ia t ion  o f  the  techn ica l  

de ta i l s  o f  the  serv i ces  to  be  rendered by  

Neote l .   I  was pa r t  o f  the  Transnet  Negot ia t ion  10 

Team in  the  Commerc ia l  S t ream. . . ”    

Then he says a t  parag raph 49:  

“The content ious issue du r ing  the  negot ia t ions 

was the  aspect  re la t ing  to  the  buy back by  

Transnet  o f  the  assets  and in f ras t ruc tu re  wh ich  

const i tu ted  i t s  ITC network  a t  the  t ime. . . ”  

And i f  I  can  then take  you fo rward ,  p lease,  to  page 16,  

parag raph 51?  He says:  

“The invest iga tors  o f  the  Commiss ion  

presented me wi th  cor respondence wh ich  20 

re f lec t s  tha t  a  meet ing  took p lace between 

Franco is  van de r  Merwe f rom Neote l  and S ingh 

on 8  December  2014 in  Umhlanga.  

I  am not  aware  what  the  purpose o f  th is  

meet ing  was and  why the  Transne t  CFO wou ld  
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meet  d i rec t l y  w i th  the  supp l ie r  w i thout  

inc lud ing  anyone f rom the  Transnet  

Negot ia t ing  Team.  

Th is  was not  no rmal  p ro toco l  and  what  m ight  

have been d iscussed a t  th is  meet ing  is  no t  

known to  me. . . ”  

Paragraph 52:  

“ In  an  a t tempt  to  reso lve  the  s ta lemate ,  S ing 

became invo lved  as  d id  Sun i l  Josh i ,  the  CEO 

of  Neote l .  10 

They convened a  meet ing  on  11 December  

2014 wh ich  took p lace a t  the  S low Lounge in  

Sandton,  a t tended by  myse l f  and  S ingh f rom 

Transnet ,  Sun i l  and Franco is  van de r  Merwe 

f rom Neote l . . . ”  

Paragraph 53:  

“A t  some s tage dur ing  th is  meet ing ,  S ingh and  

Sun i l  separa ted  themse lves f rom Franco is  and 

I  in  o rder  fo r  them to  d iscuss the  f ina l  te rms o f  

the  repurchase o f  the  assets  and in f ras t ruc ture  20 

f rom what  I  reca l l . . . ”  

Paragraph 5 :  

“No feedback was prov ided to  us  a f te r  the 

meet ing  be tween  S ingh and Josh i  bu t  a t  some 

po in t  dur ing  11  o r  12  December  2014,  we must  
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have been ins t ruc ted  to  meet  on  

13  December  2014 to  f ina l i se  the  MSA. . . ”  

Paragraph 55:  

“The  f ina l  meet ing  to  f ina l i se  the  MSA occur red  

on Saturday,  13  December  2014 a t  the  o f f i ce 

o f  Neote l  in  Midrand.  

S ingh ar r i ved a t  the  o f f i ces  o f  Neote l  and I  

handed h im the  f ina l  d ra f t  o f  the  negot ia ted  

MSA and re levant  approva l  documents .  

We have exchanged p leasant r ies  and I  10 

depar ted .  

I  la te r  learn t  f rom media  a r t i c les  tha t  an  en t i t y  

ca l led  Homex was pa id  by  Neote l  fo r  a l leged ly  

fac i l i ta t ing  negot ia t ions  be tween  Neote l  and 

Transnet  by  be ing  presented  w i th  two 

cont rac ts  tha t  was os tens ib le  conc luded  

between Homex and Neote l . . . ”  

And then he goes  on to  say:  

“Hav ing  read these documents  and based on 

my invo lvements  in  the  negot ia t ions  w i th  20 

Neote l ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  comment  as  fo l lows:  

(1 )  I  d id  no t  meet  any persona l  

rep resenta t i ve  o f  Homex  dur ing  our  

negot ia t ions  w i th  Neote l .  

(2 )  Transnet  had every th ing  to  lose  and  
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no th ing  to  w in  by  de lay ing /no t  s ign ing  the  

MSA.   As a  ne twork  t rans i t ions  i t  wou ld  have  

taken years  to  comple te .   On ly  Neote l  wou ld  

have benef i ted  as  they communica ted  to  

Transnet  tha t  shou ld  the  dea l  no t  be  conc luded 

before  exp i ra t ion  o f  the  LOI ’s ,  a  month l y  fee  

wou ld  esca la te  t o  R 57 mi l l ion  pe r  month  f rom 

what  I  reca l l .   Neote l  knew they he ld  a l l  the 

cars ,  so  as  to  speak,  as  they cou ld  swi tch  o f f  

the  Transnet  ne twork  wh ich  wou ld  have led  to  10 

d isas t rous consequences fo r  Transnet .  

(3 )  Transnet  knew f rom the  s ta r t  o f  the  

RFP process tha t  any t rans i t ion  wou ld  take  

years  and cost  Transnet  a  s ign i f i can t  amount  

o f  money.   Transnet  d id  no t  have  any opt ions  

bu t  to  s ign  th is  new MSA o r  to  ex ten t  the 

cur ren t  MSA w i th  Neote l  as  s ign i f i can t ly  

in f la ted  costs .   A t  no  s tage was  i t  a  v iab le  

op t ion  no t  to  s ign  the  new MSA agreement  

wh ich  was bus iness cr i t i ca l  to  Transnet .  20 

(4)  I  fa i l  to  unders tand how any 

rep resenta t i ve  f rom Homex wou ld  have been 

ab le  to  ge t  the  par t ies  to  reach an ag reement  

in  a  s ing le  day and they cou ld  ca lcu la te  f rom 

the  day upon wh ich  Homex con t rac ted  w i th  
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Neote l ,  12  December  2014 and the  day on  

wh ich  I  de l i vered  the  MSA in  i t s  f ina l  fo rm to 

S ingh,  13  December  2014.   The MSA was 

s igned on 15 December  2014. . . ”  

Now perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  take  you to  these two  

agreements?   The one you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 494,  bu t  th is  i s  

now in  Exh ib i t  BB7(b ) .   So,  i t  i s  Mr  Vo lm ink ’s  a f f idav i t  i s  in  

A and annexures,  the  ones tha t  we are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th ,  

a re  in  B .  

MR SINGH :    [Speaker  unc lea r ]  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    BB7(b) .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  a t  page 494 you w i l l  f ind  one o f  

the  agreements .  

MR SINGH :    494? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    494.    

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You w i l l  see  i f  you  go to  504 tha t  i t  

i s  s igned.   Th is  i s  an  agreement  be tween Neote l  and  

Homex.   A t  404,  i t  i s  s igned by  Sun i l  Josh i .   Tha t  i s  the  20 

gent leman tha t  you a l leged ly  met  w i th .   And then there  i s  

another  agreement  a t  507 and tha t  i s  a lso  s igned  by  Mr  

Sun i l  Josh i ,  the  person you a l leged ly  met  w i th .   And in  

be tween these two agreements  i s  an  invo i ce  a t  page 505  

rendered by  Homex to  Neote l  fo r  an  amount  inc lud ing  VAT 
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o f  some R 41 mi l l ion .    

 Now what  we do know is  tha t  Homex was  

Mr  Essa ’s  company.   Money-F lows have determined tha t  

th is  money was pa id .   Homex,  we know as we l l ,  was one o f  

the  f i rs t  l i ne  Gup ta  money launder ing  en t i t ies .  So,  another  

t ransact ion  tha t  you were  invo lved in .   Another  –  one o f  the 

BDSA’s  where  the re  was th is  la rge  k ickback pa id .    

 What  i s  your  comment  on  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Van  

der  Westhu izen?   Do you accept  tha t  you went  to  these 

meet ings,  tha t  you in te rvened,  and tha t  i t  p roduced a  10 

s igned MSA qu i te  qu ick ly?  

MR SINGH :    Le t  us  dea l  w i th  the  issues in  t u rn .   So,  

Mr  Van de r  Wes thu izen does qu i te  cor rec t l y  summar i se  

f rom what  I  reca l l  the  events  tha t  led  to  the  MSA becoming  

content ious be tween Transnet  and Neote l .   Mr  Cha i r,  the 

background tha t  Mr  Myburgh has not  covered is  tha t  the  – 

th is  was Neote l ’s  second b i te  o f  the  cher ry.   The  

background hand,  th is  i s  tha t  there  was an award  to  

Neote l .    

 The award  was then over tu rned by  Mr  Mole fe  and  20 

tha t  over tu rn  was  then aga in  ove r tu rned to  bas ica l l y  award  

to  Neote l .   So,  in  tha t  p rocess,  Mr  Cha i r,  as  you wou ld  

unders tand,  the  negot ia t ing  power  o f  Transnet ,  obv ious ly,  

d im in ished qu i te  s ign i f i can t ly  because o f  the  change in  

award  f rom Neote l  f i rs t ,  then to  another  b idder  and then 
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back to  Neote l .    

 And second ly,  Mr  Cha i r.   The negot ia t ing  power  o f  

Transnet  was a lways –  we l l ,  Transnet  was a lways go ing  to  

be  on  the  back(? )  because Neote l  found the  i n f ras t ruc ture .   

So,  bas i ca l l y,  we had a  gun to  our  head in  te rms o f  

negot ia t ing  w i th  Neote l .   And Neo te l  was -  as  you can see 

the  l i s t  o f  i ssues s ta r ts  a t  49 .4 .1  on  page 14 and runs r igh t  

up  un t i l  49 .4 .7 .5  to  –  on  page 15.    

 So,  and th is  was  a  s ign i f i can t  per iod  o f  t ime tha t  

the  teams were  t ry ing  to  negot ia te  these cont rac ts ,  Mr  10 

Cha i r.   The . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  S ingh.   I  thought  I  was  

look ing  a t  the  r igh t  f i l e .   Mr  Myburgh.  

MR SINGH :    Oh,  sor ry.   I  am us ing . . .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  look ing  a t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    . . . the  page . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The pages tha t  you are  ment ion ing  do  

not  co inc ide  w i th  my pages.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    He is  re fe r r ing  to  Mr  Van der  

Westhu izen ’s  a f f idav i t ,  Cha i rperson.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  BB7(b ) .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  Exh ib i t  BB7(a) .   We swi tched 

back to  the  A Bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Which  has go t  the  a f f idav i t  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have got  B .   Okay.  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH :    So ,  i t  i s  BB7(a) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    So ,  the  po in t  I  was t ry ing  to  make Mr  Cha i r  i s  

tha t  Neote l ,  bas i ca l l y,  he ld  a l l  the  cards  in  th is  negot ia t ing  

process.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  10 

MR SINGH :    And the  a t t i tude tha t  Neote l  had taken is  

demonst ra ted  by  the  l i s t  o f  i ssues tha t  was s t i l l  

ou ts tand ing  a t  th is  la te  s tage o f  the  negot ia t ion  p rocess  

wh ich  was –  wh ich  is  re f lec ted  in  parag raph 49.4  wh ich  is  

on  page 14 and goes on to  page 15 wh ich  is  a  long l i s t  o f  

i ssues tha t  s t i l l  needed to  be  f ina l i sed.    

 And,  bas i ca l l y,  on  paragraph 50,  Mr  Van de r  

Westhu izen does s ta te ,  and cor rec t l y  so ,  tha t  the  

negot ia t ions  became very  s t ra ined towards the  end  

November  and ea r ly  December.    20 

 And Mr  Cha i r,  you wou ld  a lso  apprec ia te  tha t  

Mr  Van der  Westhu izen cor rec t l y  conc ludes l a te r  on  in  h i s  

s ta tement  tha t  we were  a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime pay ing  a  

premium for  ne twork  se rv i ce  because we were  on  a  month-

to -month  bas i s  w i th  Neote l  and tha t  va lue  I  th ink  was in ,  
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l i ke ,  R 16 mi l l ion  or  c lose  to  R 16 mi l l ion .    

 And i f  memory  serves,  I  th ink  the  month ly  fee  

wou ld  have normal ly  been in  the  reg ion  o f  about  R 40 to  

R 45 mi l l ion ,  I  th ink .   I f  memory  serves.   So,  i t  was a 

s ign i f i can t  p remium.   And yes,  as  Mr Van der  Westhu izen 

says,  there  was more  incent ive  fo r  Transnet  to  s ign  than 

Neote l  to  s ign  a t  any g iven po in t  in  t ime.    

 The a t tempt  to  reso lve  the  s ta lemate ,  Mr  Cha i r,  

ac tua l l y  was suggested by  Mr  Van  der  Westhu izen h imse l f ,  

i f  I  reca l l ,  i f  no t  the  negot ia t ing  team which  led  to  th is  10 

meet ing  tha t  was  a t tended to  by  Josh i  and myse l f .   And 

aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r,  there  i s  no th ing  –  I  do  no t  th ink  there  is  

anyth ing  un toward  in  me and Mr  Josh i  meet ing  and  d iscuss  

th is  mat te r  because as  Mr  Van der  Westhu izen has 

cor rec t l y  ou t l ined  tha t  a  s ta lemate  has been reached  by  

the  two pa r t ies .    

 And th is  meet ing  was rea l l y  a  se tup  to  engage w i th  

Neote l  const ruc t i ve l y  a t  a  sen io r  management  leve l  to  

ensure  tha t  we  get  to  a  po in t  where  the  two  par t ies  

regu lar i se  our  re la t ionsh ip  go ing  fo rward  fo r  the  long te rm  20 

wh ich  was what  the  ou tcome o f  the  MSA process was  

supposed to  be .    

 And tha t  was the  d iscuss ion  be tween Mr Josh i  and  

myse l f ,  and f rom my perspect ive ,  I  made i t  qu i te  c lea r  to  

Mr  Josh i  tha t :   L is ten ,  we have  gone th rough a  tender  
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p rocess.   You have submi t ted  a  pr ic ing  proposa l  and you  

have submi t ted  cer ta in ,  o r  you have compl ied  w i th  the  

tender,  the  requ i rements  o f  the  RFP.   That  i s  what  –  tha t  i s  

wh ich  you were  ac tua l l y  appra i sed on.    

 So,  very  s imp ly  pu t .   P lease comply  w i th  those  

cond i t ions  and conc lude a  cont rac t  because a l l  o f  these  

o ther  i ssues tha t  you have ra i sed  is  cont rary  to  what  you 

have submi t ted  and tha t  i s  why my team has the  issues  

w i th  you.   My team does not  have issues w i th  you o ther  

than the  fac t  tha t  you agreed in  the  tender  p rocess to  do  10 

cer ta in  th ings.    

 So,  a l l  they  are  say ing  is .   Do what  you agreed to  

do .   And tha t  i s  the  d iscuss ion  tha t  we had w i th  Mr  Josh i  

and tha t  was the  reason why there  was no feedback  

because i t  was up to  Mr  Josh i  to  make su re  tha t  h is  team 

unders tood what  the  negot ia t ing  parameters  were .    

 And tha t  then led  to  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  MSA on,  

I  th ink ,  accord ing  to  Mr  Van de r  Westhu izen on the  15 t h  o f  

December  or  14 t h  o f  December.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  I  th ink ,  rea l l y,  what  I  wanted to  20 

ask  you is .   Can you th ink  o f  any reason why  Neote l  

dec ided to  pay Homex R 41 mi l l ion?  

MR SINGH :    I  have no idea.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Le t  me jus t  take  you  to  the  

agreements .   Th i s  i s  B ,  BB7(b) .   I  have shown you them,  
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bu t  I  jus t  want  to  take  you to  one o f  two c lauses.   A t  page  

496 . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  what  page a re  you on,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    496.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Paragraph  4 .1  towards the  foo t  o f  

the  page.   The consu l tan t ,  tha t  i s  Homex under takes to  

fac i l i ta te  the  successfu l  conc lus ion  o f  the  asset  sa le  

re fer red  to  i n  the  Master  Serv ice  Agreement .   D id  Homex 

do tha t?   10 

MR SINGH :    I  have no idea.   I  have no. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  beg your  pardon?  

MR SINGH :    I  sa id  I  have no idea.   I  have no in te rac t ion  

w i th  Homex.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   And i f  you go then to  page 509,  

parag raph 4 ,  towards the  foo t  o f  the  page.    

“The consu l tan ts  agrees to  under take to  

ana lyse  the  requ i rements  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  what  page you sa id?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    509,  parag raph 4 ,  towards the  foo t  20 

o f  the  page.  

“The consu l tan ts  agrees to  under take to  

ana lyse  the  requ i rements  o f  bo th  Neote l  and 

Transnet  to  f ind  a  workab le  so lu t ion  to  the  

impasse in  negot ia t ions . . . ”  
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D id  Homex do tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  cannot  comment  on  tha t  

because I  had no  in te rac t ions w i th  Homex.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  then why i f  Homex were  no t  

invo l ved,  why d id  Neote l  pay them th is  money?  Have you  

got  any idea?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  I  jus t  ask  you to  comment  on  

paragraph 51 o f  Mr  Van de r  Westhu izen ’s  a f f idav i t .   I  th ink  

you have dea l t  w i th  much o f  the  res t .   And tha t  i s  a t  page  10 

16 o f  BB7(a) ,  where  he  ta l ks  about  th is  meet ing  tha t  you 

had w i th  Van der  Merwe on the  8 t h  o f  December  in  

Umhlanga.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  aga in ,  we have requested the  

Commiss ion  to  p resent  us  w i th  th is  cor respondence and we 

have not  rece ived th is  to  da te .   So,  we have dea l t  w i th  th is  

in  the  a f f idav i t ,  and we have sa id  we d id  no t  have th is  

meet ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Can you reca l l  th is  meet ing?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And why i s  tha t  you  became 

invo lved,  aga in?  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Why d id  you become invo lved in  

th is?  
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MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  was a  s ign i f i can t  

p rocu rement  event .   I t  was one o f  those tha t  needed to  go  

to  the  BADC,  and I  th ink ,  i f  I  am not  m is taken,  I  do  no t  

th ink  i t  went  to  the  board ,  bu t  i t  is  -  was par t  o f  the  CFO’s  

por t fo l io  to  oversee procurement  events .   So,  th is  is  –  th is  

was pa r t  o f  th is .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  d id  you  then,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  

you  became invo lved a t  th is  s tage to  reso lve  the  impasse.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  a t  the  request  o f  the  negot ia t ing . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   And I  have shown you tha t  the  10 

Homex agreement  tha t  ta lks  about  them in te rven ing  to  

reso lve  the  impasse o r  f ind ing  a  way to  reso lve  the  

impasse.   You have seen those words and tha t  language,  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  bu t  I  have desc r ibed what  my 

invo lvement  in  tha t  was.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  I  then have on ly  two o ther  smal l  

th ings to  dea l  w i th .   The one re la tes  to  Mr  Gama ’s  lega l  

fees in  a  d i f fe ren t  e ra  and rea lm now a l l  togethe r.   Cou ld  I  

ask  you to  tu rn  to  Transnet  Bund le  3?  20 

MR SINGH :    [Speaker  unc lea r  –  away f rom mic rophone]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have not  taken –  I  have not  ad journed  

fo r  a  b reak.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  cer ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because I  was  th ink ing .   Le t  me a l low 
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you  to  f in ish  in  case you are  c lose  to  f in ish ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So ,  bu t  i f  the  w i tness or  anybody fee l s  

there  is  need to  take  a  break,  le t  me know.   Mr  S ingh,  a re  

you f ine?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   So,  le t  us  cont inue and 

t ry  and f in ish  be fore  we can take  a  break then.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you ,  Cha i rperson.   I  am not  

go ing  to  be  much  longer.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes-no,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Those may  prove to  be  famous las t  

words be fo re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  you are  look ing  fo r. . .?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja ,  I  am –  Transnet  Bund le  3 .   You 

w i l l  a lso  see on the  sp ine ,  i t  i s  Exh ib i t  BB16,  16  and 17.    

MR SINGH :    Okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Can I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  tu rn  to  

page 25?  20 

MR SINGH :    I  am there ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Th is  i s  an  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mapoma.   

And I  want  to  d i rec t  your  a t ten t ion ,  p lease,  to  parag raphs 9  

and 10 a t  page 25.    

“S imply  pu t .   Transnet  was to  pay  to  Mr  Gama 
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what  i t  was supposed to  recover  f rom h im as 

i t s  cos ts  in  the  h igh  cour t  app l i ca t ion  and in  

the  Transnet  Barga in ing  Counc i l .  

I  cannot  exp la in  the  log ic  beh ind  the  board  

dec is ion .  

I  was not  par ty  to  i t  and was not  there  when i t  

was taken.  

However,  I  ac t ion  i t  as  I  was ins t ruc ted .  

I  a lso  re fe r  the  Commiss ion  to  the  handwr i t ten  

no tes  da ted 28 March 2011 I  made  a t  the  t ime 10 

on the  two b i l l s .  

One f rom Bowman Gi l f i l l an  and one f rom 

Evershare . . . ”  

And then a t  10 :  

“ I  wou ld  have  d iscussed the  mat te r  w i th  

Mr  Ano j  S ingh a t  the  t ime,  as  my notes  s ta tes .  

However,  I  do  no t  reca l l  the  de ta i l s  o f  the  

conversa t ion .  

The Commiss ion  is  a lso  re fer red  to  the  

memorandum tha t  I  wro te  to  Mr  S ingh dated 20 

23 March 2011. . . ”  

Now tha t  memorandum you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 104.  

MR SINGH :    104? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  does i t  s ta r t?   A t  102?  Oh,  tha t  
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i s  a  le t te r,  no t  a  memorandum.  

MR SINGH :    No,  th is  a  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    105,  Langa A t to rneys.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Cha i rperson,  perhaps I  cou ld  –  

cou ld  I  ask  i f  we  cou ld  have a  shor t  b reak and I  can then 

jus t  check these re ferences.   I  am sor ry.   They – someth ing  

must  have gone wrong,  bu t  I  do  no t  have more  than ten  

m inutes ’ quest ions . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . fo r  Mr  S ingh a f te r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  take  a  –  sha l l  we make i t  

the  shor t  ad journment?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  cer ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  le t  us  make i t  the  shor t  ad journment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  15-minutes .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    . . .occu r red .    That  was the  anomaly  20 

tha t  i s  be ing  invest iga ted  and those annota t ions tha t  I  have  

shown you,  those were  the  annota t ions tha t  then resu l ted  

in  those payments  be ing  made.  

 So a t  paragraph 12.1  a t  page 31,  Mr  Mapoma,  th is  

i s  another  a f f idav i t ,  sa id :  



17 JUNE 2021 – DAY 411 
 

Page 180 of 249 
 

Regard ing  the  f i rs t  payment  i t  came about  as  

fo l lows.   Fo l lowing my dea l ings w i th  Langa 

A t to rneys,  who presented a  r id icu lous ly  in f la ted  b i l l ,  

I  was opposed to  pay ing  Mr  Gama’s  fees.   Th is  was  

an unpopu la r  dec is ion  and I  came under  p ressure  

w i th in  the  organ isa t ion  to  f ina l i se  the  issue.   In  th is  

contex t  I  he ld  a  d iscuss ion  w i th  Mr  Makhwanaz i  

(who I  dea l t  w i th  c lose ly  on  the  issue)  wh ich  

cu lm inated in  h im ins t ruc t ing  me to  pay 75% of  

Transnet ’s  t ax  cost  to  Mr  Gama.  (On the  bas i s  tha t  10 

he  incu r red  l iab i l i t y  fo r  such costs . )   G iven tha t  I  

was unhappy w i th  th is ,  and one  can unders tand  

why,  as  I  have exp la ined,  I  esca la ted  the  mat te r  to  

Mr  S ingh who approved the  payment .   I  re fe r  in  th is  

regard  to  my handwr i t ten  annota t ions da ted 28  

March on va r ious  tax  b i l l s  a t tached to  Ms Mohlap i ’ s  

a f f idav i t  on  costs . ”  

Those are  the  ones tha t  I  have taken you to .   So  here  he  

says tha t  he  esca la ted  the  mat te r  to  you,  he  was  

concerned,  and you approved the  payment .   What  do  you  20 

say?  

MR SINGH :   Oh,  sor ry .   So,  Mr  Cha i r ,  as  I  sa id  I  do  no t  

reca l l  Mr  Mapoma esca la t ing  th is  mat te r  to  me.   Mr  Cha i r ,  

the  background to  th is  mat te r  I  th ink  wou ld  be  re levant  to  

the  Commiss ion  is  tha t  when the  board  was se i zed w i th  
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th is  mat te r  o f  Mr  Gama,  g iven the  fac t  tha t  Mr  Gama had 

gone th rough a  d isc ip l ina ry  process wh ich  resu l ted  in  h is  

d ismissa l  and me be ing  in  the  p rev ious board ,  they had 

asked me to  recuse myse l f  f rom the  dec i s ions re la t ing  to  

Mr  Gama which  then I  p rompt ly  d id .    

So any issues re la t ing  to  Mr  Gama’s  re ins ta tement  

and the  issues re la t ing  to  these costs ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  was not  

p r ivy  to .   So i f  Mr  Mapoma had esca la ted  th is  i ssue  to  me,  

Mr  Cha i r ,  my response wou ld  have been exact ly  as  I  jus t  

responded to  you,  i s  tha t  I  have no ab i l i t y  to  assess 10 

whethe r  th is  i s  good,  bad or  ind i f fe ren t  because I  was not  

par t  o f  the  process tha t  made the  dec i s ion  to  approve  

these costs  o r  ag ree to  these costs  in  the  f i rs t  p lace .  

In  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  wou ld  no t  be  the  

de legated author i t y  to  be  ab le  to  approve these cos ts  and I  

my read ing  o f  th is ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  the  board  had a l ready taken a  

dec is ion ,  so  they had approved the  costs ,  so  there  was 

noth ing  to  approve in  essence.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You see,  Mr  S ingh,  the  board  had 

not  approved the  costs ,  there  was  a  se t t lement  agreement  20 

tha t  sa id  Transne t  wou ld  pay 75% of  Mr  Gama’s  H igh  Cour t  

cos ts .   There  was never  an  ag reement ,  was not  a  te rm o f  

the  se t t lement  tha t  Mr  Gama wou ld  be  pa id  75% of  

Transnet ’s  cos ts .   So what  Mr  Mapoma is  say ing  here ,  i s  

when he was ins t ruc ted  to  pay those costs  by  Mr  
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Makhwanaz i  he  was concerned,  came to  you.   That  i s  what  

he  is  say ing?  

MR SINGH :   No,  we l l  I  am say ing  I  do  no t  reca l l  th is ,  i t  

never  happened as  fa r  as  I  am concerned and,  as  I  sa id ,  i f  

he  had esca la ted  the  mat te r  to  me ,  I  have no knowledge o f  

th is .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then what  he  says in  

fu r therance o f  h i s  ve rs ion ,  i s  he  re fers  to  h is  handwr i t ten  

annota t ions where  he  says i t  i s  d iscussed w i th  Ano j .  

MR SINGH :   But ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  a lso ,  i f  you  look a t  what  he  10 

then says i s  tha t  the  dec is ion  was a lso  reco rded  in  the  

memorandums to  Mr  S ingh and Mr  Mole fe ,  re fe r  to  

parag raphs 10 and 12 o f  my second a f f idav i t .   We have 

gone th rough tha t  memorandum and we know tha t  I  am not  

a  s ignatory  to  tha t  memorandum.   So… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i f  he  needed somebody o r  i f  he 

needed the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i cer  to  approve payment  

wou ld  he  have any cho ice  o the r  than to  come to  you? 

MR SINGH :   That  was my or ig ina l  po in t ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  i s  tha t  I  

wou ld  no t  be  the  de legated author i t y  to  approve someth ing .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i f  he  needed the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  

Of f i cer ,  you wou ld  be  the  on ly  person i f  he  needed the  

Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  O f f i cer .  

MR SINGH :   I f  he  needed me but  he  d id  no t  need me in  th is  

case.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Yes,  you say he  d id  no t  need you 

in  th is  case?  

MR SINGH :   No,  S i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now why wou ld  he  need you i f  you were  

–  why wou ld  he  come to  you i f  he  d id  no t  need the  Ch ie f  

F inanc ia l  Of f i ce r?   Do you know? 

MR SINGH :   I  have no… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  he  run  some th ings by  you,  th ings  

tha t  a re  f inanc ia l?  

MR SINGH :   Mr  Cha i r ,  these th ings  wou ld  have been  pa id  I  10 

wou ld  assume out  o f  the  Group Lega l  budget .   So aga in  

Group Lega l  budget  tha t  wou ld  have been spent  aga ins t .   

But ,  Mr  Cha i r ,  as  you can see,  o ther  than the  handwr i t ten  

annota t ions wh ich  he  makes on these b i l l s ,  there  is  no th ing  

e lse  I  can say.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.   And then,  Mr  S ingh,  

can I  ask  you in  the  same f i le  to  tu rn  to  page 801?   I  want  

to  jus t  dea l  i f  I  cou ld  qu i ck ly  w i th  Aba loz i .   Now 801 is  a 

memorandum tha t  was addressed to  you by  Mr S i l inga.    20 

MR SINGH :   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you then approved the  payment  

o f  20  m i l l ion .   That  you see a t  802 ,  to  Aba loz i .  

MR SINGH :   Yes,  S i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you have any i dea what  you 
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were  ac tua l l y  pay ing  fo r?  

MR SINGH :   No,  on  the  bas i s  tha t  the  le t te r  f rom Mr  Mole fe  

had been a t tached.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  you d id  no t  know what  

you were  pay ing ,  you were  s imp ly  gu ided by  the  le t te r  tha t  

you –  i s  i t  the  le t te r  a t  803 tha t  you  are  re fe r r ing  to?  

MR SINGH :   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you made no fu r ther  enqu i r ies  or  

in te r rogat ion  o f  th is  t ransact ion?  

MR SINGH :   No,  S i r .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Why wou ld  Mr  S i l inga have needed you  

here?  

MR SINGH :   Mr  Cha i r ,  in  th is  one ,  i f  you  look a t  the  issue 

o f  the  budget ,  he re  you see the  se t t lement  amount  was not  

budgeted fo r ,  on  page 802.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was not  budgeted fo r?  

MR SINGH :   Yes,  on  page 802,  i f  you  look a t  parag raph 9 ,  

i t  sa id  budget  imp l ica t ions.  

“The se t t lement  amount  was not  budgeted fo r ,  the  20 

payment  there fore  w i l l  be  made ou t  o f  the  corpo ra te  

cent re . ”  

And then I  added my handwr i t ten  no te  to  say:  

“And w i l l  be  funded f rom overa l l  cos t  sav ing . ”  

So bas i ca l l y  Mr  S i l inga –  Mr  Mole fe  had crea ted the  
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l i ab i l i t y  in  te rms  o f  agree ing  to  pay.   Mr  S i l inga then 

ident i f ied  to  say we l l ,  I  do  no t  rea l l y  have the  money to  pay  

th is ,  so  where  am I  go ing  to  ge t  th is  money f rom?  So he  

then bas i ca l l y  p repared th is  memo to  say th is  l i s t en ,  can I  

go  ahead and pay th is  no tw i ths tand ing  the  fac t  tha t  I  do  

no t  have the  budget?   And then  he sa id  l i s ten ,  in  the  

overa l l  corpora te  cent re  budget  you can rea l loca te  

expenses to  cover  th is  and a t  tha t  t ime,  Mr  Cha i r ,  we had a  

cost  sav ings ta rge t  tha t  we were  ach iev ing ,  so  I  jus t  added 

the  po in t  tha t  we  wou ld  comfor tab le  in  te rms o f  be ing  ab le  10 

to  pay th is  amount  because o f  the  cost  sav ings i n i t ia t i ves  

tha t  we had put  in  p lace .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  why wou ld  i t  need to  come to  you?  

MR SINGH :   Because I  was the  CFO and the  budget  –  you  

cannot  ove rspend  on your  budget .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  i f  payment  i s  no t  

budgeted fo r  i t  must  come under  the  budget  o r  a l loca t ion  o f  

a  par t i cu la r  depar tment  o r  un i t?  

MR SINGH :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  they  do  not  have budget  fo r  tha t  i t  20 

must  come f rom somewhere  e lse .  

MR SINGH :   I t  must  be  a l loca ted  to  tha t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  must  be  a l loca ted  and you wou ld  be  

respons ib le  fo r  tha t .  

MR SINGH :   I  w i l l  be  respons ib le .  



17 JUNE 2021 – DAY 411 
 

Page 186 of 249 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh then perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  

ask  you,  do  you own shares o r  have you ever  owned 

shares in  a  company ca l led  Venus L im i ted?  

MR SINGH :   No,  S i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    As  I  sa id  to  you a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  

the  day I  was not  go ing  to  take  you th rough a l l  o f  your  

a f f idav i t s  and every th ing  tha t  i s  in  there ,  obv ious l y  i t  w i l l  

have to  be  read and d igested  but  perhaps I  cou ld  end by  

ask ing  you is  the re  anyth ing  –  I  know you a re  go ing  to  pu t  10 

in  an  a f f idav i t  in  re -examinat ion ,  so  as  to  speak,  i s  there  

anyth ing  tha t  you wou ld  l i ke  to  say by  way o f  your  –  the  

ev idence tha t  you  have g iven?  

MR SINGH :   Not  a t  th is  s tage.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  comple tes  ou r  quest ion ing  and 

inqu i r i es  o f  Mr  S ingh.   Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you .   Where  are  we w i th  the  

t ime l ines fo r  var ious th ings,  a f f idav i t s  and wr i t ten  

submiss ions?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  maybe jus t  to  f i l l  20 

you in ,  we have been rece iv ing  some documenta t i on  f rom 

Eskom dur ing  the  week.   I  th ink  th is  morn ing  we rece ived  

another  document  w i th ,  I  th ink ,  about  50  annexures 

there to .   The hope was tha t  we w i l l  submi t  an  a f f idav i t  

tomorrow in  response.   That  was our  a f f idav i t  in  response 
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to  the  las t  le t  us  ca l l  i t  i ssues in  main  tha t  Mr  Se leka… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    We are  s t i l l  hopefu l l y  go ing  to  

do  tha t .   I f  we cannot  ach ieve i t  by  tomorrow,  we w i l l  

ach ieve tha t  by  Monday.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    And then the re  is  the  issues o f  

our  rep l y .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    And then o f  course  Cha i rman 10 

ind ica ted  tha t  you want  some heads o f  a rgument ,  i f  I  can 

ca l l  i t  tha t ,  o r  submiss ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Per ta in ing  overa l l  to  the  Eskom 

s t ream.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    So  we s t i l l  p lan  to  do  whatever  

i s  necessary  to  ach ieve what  we  se t  ou t  o r  ag reed to  do ,  

Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Or  the  ar rangement  tha t  had 20 

a l ready been made in  regard  to  wr i t ten  submiss ions were  

made in  regard  to  Eskom.   Okay,  we had not  made any 

ar rangements  in  regard  to  Transnet .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    No ar rangements  been made,  

Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  on  beha l f  o f  Mr  S ingh.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  we have got  no  

prob lem wi th  tha t .   We are  go ing  to ,  however ,  ask  you  

espec ia l l y  in  l igh t  what  you sa id  th is  morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    To  be  a  b i t  pa t ien t  w i th  us ,  bu t  

t ime l ine  w ise ,  we  have taken note  o f  your  t ime l ines and  we  

w i l l ,  i f  you  do no t  m ind,  we can rever t  maybe on Monday  

w i th  poss ib le  da tes  in  tha t  regard .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay ,  tha t  is  10 

f ine .   See ing  tha t  I  m igh t  be  m ix ing  up  th ings tha t  were  

d iscussed under  the  Eskom work  s t ream maybe and 

th ink ing  tha t  they  were  d iscussed under  the  Transnet  work  

s t ream,  le t  me  check.   The  ar rangement  tha t  re -

examinat ion  wou ld  be  d ispenses w i th  bu t  ins tead a f f idav i t s  

wou ld  be  f i led ,  does tha t  –  have we reached tha t  

agreement  under  the  Transnet  work  s t ream or  no t?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    In  fac t ,  Cha i rperson,  you w i l l  

reca l l  when we s tar ted  o f f  on  the  Transnet  s t ream we 

reserved ou r  r igh t  no t  to  make an open ing  s ta tement .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Bu t  to  conso l ida te  whatever  we  

w ish  to  s ta te  a t  the  end o f  the  process,  so  we s t i l l  reserved  

tha t  r igh t  to  ins tead o f  do ing  “ re -examinat ion ”  to  submi t  an 

a f f idav i t .   There  is  a  number  o f  i ssues tha t  we w ish  to  dea l  
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w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    And  I  th ink  we have ind ica ted  to  

you a l so  in  chambers  tha t  we do not  th ink  a  day wou ld  

su f f i ce  and i t  wou ld  po tent ia l l y  be  be t te r  to  ra the r  jus t  go  

on  oath  and dea l  w i th  those issues  on oath .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   We wi l l  need  then to  

have a  t ime when we can f i x  the  t imef rames .   You 

suggested tha t  on  Monday you  might  be  ready.   Mr  

Myburgh,  do  you th ink  i t  wou ld  be  f ine  i f  we made 10 

ar rangements  tha t  in  regard  to  what  they need to  f i le  by  

when they must  f i l e  i t  tha t  we can d iscuss tha t  on  Monday?   

Wi l l  tha t  be  f ine?  How is  your  s i tua t ion?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  I  am not  sure  tha t  

my learned f r iend  w i l l  be  he re  on  Monday but  I  mean i f  we  

cannot  reach an agreement  i t  may  present  someth ing  o f  a  

d i f f i cu l t y .   I  mean,  I  do  no t  know how long my co l leagues 

need to  pu t  in  the  –  le t  us  ca l l  i t  the  re -examinat ion  

a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps  you cou ld  g ive  us  an  

ind ica t ion  now.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    We wi l l  rever t  on  Monday,  

Cha i rperson,  there  i s  a  number  o f  i ssues tha t  I  need to  

canvass w i th  bo th  my c l ien t  and my a t to rney and I  w i l l  –  we  
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under take to  make contac t  w i th  Mr  Myburgh.   On Monday  

we can te lephon ica l l y  t r y  and see i f  we can th rash out  

some k ind  o f  a r rangement  and i f  i t  i s  necessary  to  come 

and address you on the  issue we w i l l  make ourse lves 

ava i lab le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  th ink  then maybe what  we cou ld  

do  is  i f  on  Monday the re  cou ld  be  a  d iscuss ion  be tween  

both  s ides to  p rov i s iona l l y  agree some t imef rame tha t  

wou ld  be  sub jec t  to  my approva l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Then Mr  Myburgh can ta lk  to  me a f te r  

those d iscuss ions  and then I  can ind ica te .   I s  tha t  f ine?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  a  sens ib le  

p roposa l ,  thank you.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I t  is  acceptab le  to  us  too ,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   I t  now remains  fo r  

me to  thank you,  Mr  S ingh,  you have come to  the  

Commiss ion  numerous t imes to  be  ab le  to  g ive  you 

ev idence and sub jec t  you rse l f  to  quest ion ing .   Thank you  20 

to  your  lega l  team,  as  we l l .   Thank you,  Mr  Myburgh,  I  

know tha t  you and I  a re  no t  go ing  home as ye t  bu t  thank 

you ve ry  much fo r  a l l  your  coopera t ion ,  thank you.  

MR SINGH :   Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r  and Mr  Myburgh as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Sha l l  I  ad journ  fo r  a  few 
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m inu tes ,  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  we w i l l  ad journ  fo r  about  15  m inutes  

be fore  we resume and then we w i l l  dea l  w i th  the  ev idence  

o f  Mr  G igaba.   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Good even ing ,  Mr  G igaba.  

MR GIGABA :   Good even ing ,  Mr  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   I  guess a lmost  everybody 10 

e lse  has been he re  w i th  us  except  your  jun io r,  Mr  Myburgh.   

Good even ing  to  everybody.   Mr  So lomon is  there .   Good 

even ing ,  Mr  So lomon.  

MR SOLOMON :    Good even ing ,  Cha i r,  good even ing  to  

you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good,  thank you,  thank you.   Okay,  

p lease admin is te r  the  oa th  o r  a f f i rmat ion .   I  am sure  by  

now Mr  G igaba can rec i te  the  oa th .  

MR GIGABA :   By  hear t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

REGISTRAR :   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?  

MR GIGABA:    My name is  Malus i  Knowledge Nkangez i  

G igaba.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  t ak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  
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MR GIGABA:    No.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g ive  w i l l  be  the  t ru th  the  who le  t ru th  and  noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say  

so  he lp  me God.  

MALUSI  KNOWLEDGE NKANGEZI  GIGABA :   So  he lp  me 

God.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Okay,  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   Good even ing ,  Mr  

G igaba.  

MR GIGABA :   Good even ing ,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you s t i l l  have your  schedu le  w i th  

you?  

MR GIGABA :   Yes,  I  do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  I  p i ck  up  a t  page 36  p lease  

under  the  head ing  The Gupta  Money Counte r.  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ms Mngoma sa id  a t  pa ragraph 64 

tha t  on  one o f  the  v is i t s  to  the  Gupta  res idence when you  

were  s t i l l  the  Min i s te r  o f  DPE:  

“We a t tended a  funct ion  a t  the  Gupta  res idence.  

A jay  Gupta  took us  on  a  tour  o f  one o f  the  newly  
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renovated houses  in  the  Gupta  compound.   We were  

par t  o f  a  smal l  g roup o f  peop le ,  who were  unknown 

to  me.   He showed us a  room tha t  had been 

conver ted  in to  a  smal l  c inema and  in  another  a rea I  

saw a  sauna.   A t  one area I  saw a  dev i ce  wh ich  

looked l i ke  a  smal l  vers ion  o f  an  au tomated te l le r  

mach ine .   Mr  A jay  Gupta  demonst ra ted  how i t  

ope ra ted  by  punch ing  an amount  on  a  keyboard  o f  

the  mach ine  wh ich  was R10 000,  i f  I  reca l l  

cor rec t l y,  and i t  d ispensed the  cash notes  in  10 

denominat ions o f  100 and 200. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   I  was never  pa r t  o f  th is  tour,  I  have never  

seen an ATM.   I  ac tua l l y  –  i t  was the  f i rs t  t ime when I  read 

th is  a f f idav i t  tha t  I  knew tha t  a  p r iva te  ind i v idua l  cou ld  

have an ATM at  the i r  res idence.   I  was not  aware  o f  th is ,  i t  

i s  the  f i rs t  t ime I  hear  o f  i t  and i t  seems b izar re  to  me,  as  I  

sa id  in  my response tha t  Ms Mngoma wou ld  be  shown an 

ATM tha t  cou ld  d i spense an ent i re  R10 000.   I  do  no t  know 

how tha t  happens.   In  my own op in ion ,  i f  she  saw such a  20 

th ing  –  i f  she  i s  no t  l y ing  aga in  here  i n  th is  s ta tement  by  

herse l f  then i t  wou ld  mean tha t  she was a lone in  my  

absence when she saw such an ATM.   But ,  as  I  say,  i t  i s  

the  f i rs t  t ime I  hear  tha t  a  p r iva te  res idence cou ld  have an 

ATM because my  unders tand ing  is  tha t  an  ATM shou ld  be  



17 JUNE 2021 – DAY 411 
 

Page 194 of 249 
 

an  ava i lab le  ins t rument  to  the  pub l i c .   I  do  no t  know – I  do  

no t  know anyth ing  about  th is .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Have you any idea where  Ms  

Mngoma wou ld  have got  th is  because th i s  i s  one o f  those 

th ings tha t  cer ta in ly  i s  no t  a  mat te r  o f  pub l i c  record .  

MR GIGABA :   I  beg your  pardon?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Th is  i s  no t  one o f  those th ings tha t  

has been in  the  med ia  or  i s  a  mat te r  o f  pub l i c  reco rd .  

MR GIGABA :   As  I  have ind ica ted ,  Cha i rperson,  p rev ious l y ,  

tha t  Ms Mngoma’s  a f f idav i t  was the  works  o f  accompl ished 10 

l ies ,  very ,  very  concer ted ,  a  concer ted  e f fo r t  to  c rea te  –  to  

fabr ica te  a  s to ry  tha t  does not  ex i s t .   That  I  why –  I  have  

v is i ted  many peop le ,  S i r ,  I  have been a t  the  pr i va te  – a t  

the  o f f i c ia l  res idence o f  the  Pres ident ,  I  have v i s i ted  many 

peop le  who a re  wea l thy ,  I  have never  seen any o f  them,  

inc lud ing  leaders  o f  banks,  who have ATMs a t  the i r  p r iva te  

res idences.   I  th ink  she is  the  one who can best  answer  

th is  and probab ly  exp la in  how a  bank wou ld  ins ta l l  an  ATM 

at  a  p r i va te  res idence.   Which  bank is  th is?   There  are  

severa l  banks i n  th is  count ry .   To  my unders tand ing  there  20 

are  no  regu la t ions wh ich  prov ide  fo r  somebody to  have an  

ent i re  ATM because peop le  wou ld  need – i f  a  bank needs 

to  come and –  you know,  an  ATM does not  have money tha t  

you can w i thdraw tha t  i s  d rawn d i rec t l y  f rom the  bank,  i t  

means a  bank has to  de l i ver  cash loads in to  the  ATM.   Now 
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why wou ld  you have an ATM –  i f  you  wanted to  have 

access to  cash as  pr i va te  ind iv idua l ,  you wou ld  s imp ly  go  

in to  the  bank and  app ly  fo r  tha t  cash,  why wou ld  you have 

an ATM and wh ich  bank exact ly  wou ld  ins ta l l  such a  th ing?  

I f  i t  happened,  I  am not  aware  o f  i t ,  I  have never  seen such  

an ATM.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  I  must  jus t  exp la in  to  you tha t  

I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  Ms Mngoma’s  ev idence tha t  i t  was an 

ATM connected to  a  bank.   She went  on  to  exp la in  tha t  i t  

was rea l l y  in  the  fo rm o f  a  cash d i spens ing  mach ine .  10 

MR GIGABA :   What  i s  a  cash d i spens ing  mach ine ,  S i r?   I  

have never  seen a  cash d i spens ing  mach ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR GIGABA :   I  mean,  su re ly  i f  there  i s  –  i f  a  p r iva te  

ind iv idua l  needs to  have cash f rom the i r  bank,  they go  in to  

the  bank,  they w i thdraw money.   I  have never  seen  a  cash 

d ispens ing  mach ine ,  I  do  no t  know what  i t  looks  l i ke .   The  

on ly  cash d ispens ing  mach ine  I  am aware  o f  i s  an  ATM and  

I  have never  seen th is  ATM.   So I  cons ider  th is  to  be  l ies .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you  know tha t  there  was a  20 

c inema and sauna a t  Saxonwold?  

MR GIGABA :   I  have never  seen –  I  have never  been 

shown a  c inema and a  sauna.   I  wou ld  presume –  aga in ,  I  

have been to  p r i va te  res idences o f  many wea l thy  peop le ,  

they do  have saunas,  they do  have c inemas,  many o f  them,  
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i t  i s  m in i -c inemas.   And I  am sure  i f  I  were  to  fabr ica te  a  

s to ry  about  any r i ch  person I  wou ld  a lso  go  on to  say they 

have a  l ounge,  they have a  heated  poo l ,  they  have –  so  on  

and so  on  and so  on ,  bu t  a t  the  Gupta  res idence  I  have  

never  gone to  be  shown a  sauna and a  c inema.   In  ac tua l  

fac t  I  wou ld  be  surp r ised i f  anybody showed me tha t  th ing  

because what  i s  spec ia l  about  a  sauna and a  c inema? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then a t  paragraph 66 Ms Mngoma 

goes on to  say tha t :  

“Dur ing  February  2020 I  asked Mr  G igaba fo r  a  10 

d ivo rce .   Wi thout  expand ing  on the  de ta i l s  

sur round ing  the  persona l  c i rcumstances o f  my  

request  fo r  a  d ivorce ,  I  b r ing  the  fo l low ing to  the  

a t ten t ion  o f  the  Commiss ion . ”  

And she says a t  66 .1 :  

“Mr  G igaba asked me to  de lay  the  d ivorce  

proceed ings un t i l  a f te r  he  appears  be fore  the  

Commiss ion . ”  

And then you g ive  qu i te  a  lengthy  response to  tha t ,  tha t  

spans f rom paragraph 141 a l l  the  way to  149.   These are  20 

th ings tha t  I  th ink  you have ment ioned a l ready a lbe i t  i t  in  a  

d i f fe ren t  contex t  bu t  what  i s  your  response to  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   As  I  repeat  –  as  I  s ta ted  in  my a f f idav i t ,  i t  i s  

no t  t rue  tha t  she asked fo r  a  d ivorce  in  February  2020.   

She –  the  i ssue o f  the  d i vorce  was in i t ia ted  by  me in  –  I  
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th ink  i t  i s  in  August  o r  someth ing  l i ke  tha t ,  o f  

August /September  2020.   So i t  i s  no t  t rue  tha t  Ms Mngoma 

asked fo r  d i vo rce  in  February  2020 and tha t  I  asked he r  to  

de lay  un t i l  I  had appeared befo re  the  Commiss ion .  

 Mr  Cha i rman,  in  February  2020 I  d id  no t  know tha t  I  

wou ld  be  appear ing  be fore  the  Commiss ion .   A t  tha t  t ime I  

was respond ing  to  a  number  o f  a ff idav i t s  tha t  were  be ing  

submi t ted .   The  summons to  me to  appear  be fore  the  

Commiss ion  occur red  very  la te  las t  year  a f te r  wh ich  –  a f te r  

I  th ink  we –  they appeared th is  year  ear l ie r  in  the  year  and 10 

we appeared here ,  we were  requested to  de lay  ou r  

appearance unt i l  a t  a  la te r  s tage .   I  unders tand now tha t  

tha t  was in fo rmed by  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  she had submi t ted  

tha t  the  Commiss ion  obv ious ly  wanted to  look  a t ,  bu t  the  

issue o f  Ms Mngoma is  tha t  in  January  2021,  she is  the  one 

who approached me requested my  d ivorce  a t to rneys shou ld  

contac t  he rs ,  mak ing  a  number  o f  p leas.    

She in fo rmed me a t  the  t ime tha t  Mr  Tembeka 

Ngcuka i tob i  SC was very  exc i ted  about  the  prospect  o f  her  

submi t t ing  an  a f f idav i t  a t  the  Commiss ion  aga ins t  me and 20 

tha t  they were  in  conversa t ions w i th  the  a t to rneys  o f  the  

Commiss ion .   A t  tha t  t ime she showed me a  number  o f  

Whatsapp exchanges between herse l f  and the  a t to rneys o f  

the  Commiss ion  and she sa id  to  me tha t  her  a t to rneys had  

assured her  tha t  shou ld  I  agree  w i th  her  p roposa l  they  
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wou ld  preva i l  upon the  Commiss ion  no t  to  a l low her  to  

tes t i f y  on  the  grounds o f  spousa l  p r iv i lege.  

I  then had a  conversa t ion ,  as  I  say,  w i th  my  

a t to rneys and the  issue o f  us  p lead ing  w i th  them was not  

par t  o f  the  conversa t ion ,  the  issue  tha t  we were  d iscuss ing  

w i th  them was issues sur round ing  the  d ivorce .   I  d id  no t  

bo ther  to  say to  her  tha t  she shou ld  go  ahead and not  

come to  the  Commiss ion ,  i t  was  her  own dec is ion  and I  

th ink  tha t  i s  demonst ra ted  by  the  fac t  tha t  when she f i rs t  

was supposed to  appear  be fore  the  Commiss ion  she  10 

ins t ruc ted  her  a t to rneys to  say she was w i thdraw ing her  

par t i c i pa t ion  on  the  grounds tha t  the  Commiss ion  had 

doctored he r  a f f idav i t  and inser ted  in  the  a f f idav i t  th ings 

she had not  wr i t ten  and tha t  in  th is  a f f idav i t  tha t  was now 

before  the  Commiss ion  the re  were  th ings she had not  

wr i t ten ,  she was on ly  fo rced to  s ign  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  she  

had not  consented to .    

She d id  no t  say  when she was here ,  th rough the  

mouth  o f  her  a t to rney,  tha t  I  no  longer  wanted to  

par t i c i pa te  because I  am now p lead ing  spousa l  p r iv i lege.   20 

She now sa id  i t  was because  the  Commiss ion  had 

manipu la ted  her  ev idence.   So you can see tha t  you a re  

dea l ing  w i th  l ies ,  w i th  incons is tenc ies ,  you are  dea l i ng  w i th  

somebody who is  no t  w i l l i ng  to  te l l  the  t ru th  as  i t  i s .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  I  must  jus t  pu t  th is  to  you fo r  
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your  comment .   When I  pu t  your  vers ion  to  Ms Mngoma in  

re la t ion  to  paragraph 143.1 ,  2 ,  3  and 4 ,  she d ispu ted tha t  

she ever  sa id  to  you tha t  she wou ld  no t  appear  be fore  the  

Commiss ion  i f  you  met  cer ta in  cond i t ions  and she sa id  the  

same th ing  in  re la t ion  to  147 and  the  B lue  Va l ley  house.   

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t  o r  do  you  s tand by  your  

vers ion?  

MR GIGABA :   I  s tand by  my ve rs ion ,  Cha i rpe rson.   Ms 

Mngoma l ies ,  pa tho log i ca l l y.   She makes a  hab i t  o f  l ies ,  

she says th ings today,  she den ies  them tomorrow or  even  10 

on the  same day.   So these th ings tha t  a re  here ,  where  

wou ld  I  have found tha t  she had spoken to  Mr  Ngcuka i tob i?   

He is  a  respected member  o f  the  lega l  f ra te rn i t y  i n  South  

A f r i ca .   I  wou ld  no t  go  ou t  o f  my way jus t  to  fabr ica te  l ies  

about  somebody l i ke  tha t .   These  are  a l l  i ssues tha t  she  

to ld  me.   How wou ld  I  have known tha t  she  was in  

conversa t ion  w i th  the  a t to rneys o f  the  Commiss ion?   These  

are  th ings tha t  she showed me on  her  phone and a l l  o f  the 

issues wh ich  I  s ta te  here  inc lud ing  the  mat te rs  re la t ing  to  

my house a t  B lue  Va l ley  are  i ssues wh ich  we d i scussed  20 

w i th  her  because  she asked me what  about  I  g ive  her  tha t  

res idence and I  c lea r ly  s ta ted  tha t  the  res idence  is  the  

legacy o f  our  ch i ld ren ,  tha t  i t  was s t i l l  ow ing qu i te  a  lo t  o f  

money,  tha t  I  then sa id  to  her  i f  you  were  to  take  i t ,  you  

wou ld  have to  car ry  on  the  bond.   You know,  I  am wi l l i ng  to  
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g ive  you the  house but  you must  then car ry  on  the  bond.   

But  I  then even sa id  to  her  tha t  –  bu t  you can cons ide r  

se l l ing  the  house  and sp l i t t ing  the  cash o r  tak ing  the  who le  

cash,  wh ich  wou ld  be  d i f f i cu l t  in  today ’s  env i ronment  

because i f  you look a t  the  proper t y  market ,  i t  i s  a  buyer ’s  

market .    

I f  you  se l l  a  p roper ty  a t  th is  s tage,  you are  no t  

l i ke ly  to  make a  l o t  o f  money and so  we agreed tha t  tak ing  

the  house wou ld  no t  be  in  the  bes t  in te res ts  o f  the  d ivo rce  

se t t lement  and on ly  fo r  me to  learn  on  C i ty  Press 10 

a f te rwards tha t  she was say ing ,  I  th ink  angered by  the  fac t  

tha t  –  because when they ta lked to  my a t to rneys,  they then 

made an o f fe r  tha t  we had ag reed to  wa ive  the  an te  nupt ia l  

cont rac t  and my d ivo rce  a t to rneys  sa id  to  them you  are  ou t  

o f  your  m inds.   He sa id  to  them you are  ou t  o f  your  m inds,  

there  is  no  way we can ag ree to  tha t .   We can agree to  

some payment ,  a  se t t lement  o f  so r ts ,  bu t  no t  wa iv ing  the  

an te  nupt ia l  cont rac t .   A f te r  tha t  she then approach the  

C i ty  Press c la im ing tha t  I  had made th is  o f fe r  to  her  so  tha t  

she wou ld  no t  be  appear ing  be fore  the  Commiss ion .  20 

 Mr  Cha i rman,  i t  was brought  to  my a t ten t ion  by  my  

d ivo rce  a t to rney tha t  I  was co r rec t  to  be  ca re fu l  about  th is  

and not  to  comment  on  i t  when she made the  o f fe r  because 

i t  was c lea r  tha t  i t  was b lackmai l  on  her  par t  and  so  we 

took the  v iew tha t  there  i s  no  o f fe r  anymore  on the  tab le .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  Mr  G igaba,  you s ty le  Ms 

Mngoma,  i f  I  unders tand your  ev idence co r rec t l y,  as  a  

pa tho log i ca l  l ia r.  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you say she l ies  on  a  da i l y  

bas is .  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  assume by way o f  cont ras t  you  

cons ider  yourse l f  a  person o f  in teg r i t y  and honesty?  

MR GIGABA :   I  beg your  pardon?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You cons ider  yourse l f  a  person o f  

in tegr i t y  and honesty,  I  take  i t?  

MR GIGABA :   Yes,  I  do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Jus t  in  re la t ion  to  some o f  the  th ing  

tha t  you have ment ioned,  Ms Mngoma sa id  about  the  

Whatsapp communica t ions be tween herse l f  and the  20 

Commiss ion  tha t  she cou ld  no t  have shown you them 

because she had  not  had any Whatsapp communica t ions  

w i th  the  Commiss ion .  

MR GIGABA :   She showed me Whatsapp communica t ions  

w i th  the  Commiss ion .   I  do  no t  unders tand th is  po in t ,  Mr  
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Cha i rman,  because i t  wou ld  seem to  me tha t  there  is  a  – 

tha t  the  ev idence  leader  i s  cas t ing  aspers ions on  me.   The 

cont ras t ing  what  I  see about  Ms Mngoma and ask ing  

whethe r  I  am a  man o f  in teg r i t y  and then say ing  Ms 

Mngoma says she cou ld  no t  have  shown me the  Whatsapp 

communica t ions be tween herse l f  and the  a t to rneys .   Where  

d id  I  ge t  tha t  f rom?   

I f  she  was showing me fabr i ca ted  tex t  then the  

issue is  on  her  and her  in tegr i t y  because inso far  as  I  

unders tand i t ,  those were  Whatsapp tex t  exchanges 10 

between herse l f  and the  a t to rneys  and the  a t to rneys o f  the  

Commiss ion .    

In  those tex ts  there  were  proposa ls  fo r  meet ings to  

be  ar ranged as  soon as  she came back f rom ho l iday.   That  

happened as  i t  is .   Those meet ings were  he ld  soon a f te r  

she re turned on ho l iday –  I  mean,  f rom ho l iday and  so  tha t  

has go t  abso lu te ly  no th ing  to  do  w i th  whether  I  am a  

person o f  in tegr i t y  o r  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  ev idence leader  i s  en t i t led  to  

p robe i ssues w i th  every  w i tness.   Obv ious l y  w i th  regard  to  20 

Ms Mngoma’s  ev idence and your  ev idence and par t i cu la r ly  

w i th  you re jec t ing  most  o f  what  she has sa id  as  un t ru th fu l   

-  and I  th ink  she has herse l f  in  her  ev idence a l so  sa id  

cer ta in  th ings tha t  you have sa id  in  your  ev idence are  

un t rue ,  so  the  ev idence leader  i s  en t i t led  to  p robe and look 
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a t  bo th  w i tnesses .  

MR GIGABA :    Wi th  due respect ,  Cha i rperson,  I  doubt  i f  he  

is  en t i t led  in  p rob ing  my ev idence to  ask  about  my  

character .  

CHAIRPERSON :    About?  

MR GIGABA :   My  characte r  because I  th ink  he  [ inaud ib le  –  

speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  w i th  he re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  he  is  en t i t led  to  …[ in te rvenes ]  

MR GIGABA :   H is  s ta tement  tha t  I  am [ inaud ib le  –  

speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  he  is  en t i t led  to  ask  quest ions tha t  

a re  a imed to  es tab l i sh  where  the  t ru th  l ies .   The ru les  o f  

the  Commiss ion  are  spec i f i c ,  tha t  an  ev idence leader  i s  

en t i t led  to  ask  quest ions inc lud ing  quest ions a imed a t  

es tab l i sh ing  the  t ru th  and obv ious l y  i f  there  are  con f l i c t ing  

vers ions,  tha t  means even ask ing  quest ions tha t  hopefu l l y  

can th row l igh t  o f  where  the  t ru th  l ies .   

So i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  i s  permiss ib le .   But  

obv ious ly  f rom your  s ide  you are  en t i t led  to  respond in  a  

manner  tha t  suppor t s  what  you say and in  a  manner  tha t  20 

ind ica tes  tha t  as  fa r  as  you a re  concerned,  there  is  no  

bas is  fo r  anybody to  th ink  tha t  you are  no t  honest ,  you do 

not  have in tegr i t y ,  you are  en t i t led  in  answer ing  to  pu t  up  

tha t .  

MR GIGABA :   Thank you,  Cha i r .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  emphas ise  tha t  I  am a  man o f  

in tegr i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GIGABA :   I  am be ing  honest .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :   And I  th ink  i t  i s  un for tunate  to  have my  

in tegr i t y  quest ioned in  tha t  fash ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  I  th ink  you in  a  fo rum such as  

th is  do  no t  take  i t  persona l ly.   Do not  take  i t  –  there  is  10 

no th ing  persona l ,  he  is  jus t  do ing  h is  job ,  so  do  not  take  i t  

persona l .   But  somebody l i ke  you,  who has been a  member  

o f  par l iament  fo r  a  number  o f  years ,  shou ld  no t  eas i l y  take  

i t  persona l  because in  par l iament  you peop le  say a l l  k inds  

o f  th ings aga ins t  each o ther.  

MR GIGABA :   I  apprec ia te  i t ,  Cha i r,  po in t  taken.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   Mr  G igaba,  a lso  in  

re la t ion  to  Mr  Ngcuka i tob i ,  Ms Mngoma tes t i f ied  in  

response to  th is ,  tha t  you l i ke  p ick ing  on  Adv Ngcuka i tob i ,  20 

as  she puts  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  what  d id  she say?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    She sa id  you l i ke  p ick ing  on  Adv  

Ngcuka i tob i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  
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MR GIGABA :   Why?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  perhaps you can te l l  us .  

MR GIGABA :   Wel l ,  I  am sure  she  wou ld  have exp la ined to 

you –  I  have got  abso lu te l y  no  reason,  as  I  say,  I  respect  

h im,  I  respect  Adv Ngcuka i tob i ,  he  represented me a t  Home 

Affa i rs  when I  was s t i l l  M in is te r  Home Affa i rs .   I  have no  

persona l  g rudge aga ins t  h im.    

I t  i s  her  who ra ised w i th  me –  the re  is  a  number  o f  

peop le  tha t  she has spoken about  when she has spoken to  

me and I  am sure  she wou ld  be  wor r ied  about  me re fer r ing  10 

to  them here  because i t  wou ld  mean to  them tha t  they  

issues they d iscuss w i th  her  a re  no t  sa fe  because as  we  

wou ld  say in  Zu lu  she was k icked by  ho rse  on the  chest ,  

wakhah le lwa es i fuben i ,  she  canno t  be  ab le  to  w i thho ld  the  

–  no t  to  d isc lose  the  secre ts  tha t  they have heard .   

I  have got  no  g rudge aga ins t  Adv Ngcuka i tob i ,  I  

have h igh  respect  fo r  h im,  no t  on ly  in  h is  p ro fess iona l  

capac i ty  bu t  a lso  in  h is  pe rsona l  capac i ty.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What  Ms Mngoma a lso  sa id  i s  tha t  

her  appearance  before  the  Commiss ion  and her  20 

coopera t ion  w i th  the  Commiss ion  is  no t  in  any way 

connected to  your  d ivorce  and tha t  she gave ev idence 

here ,  as  par t ,  as  she put  i t ,  o f  her  c iv i c  du t ies ;  o r  du t ies  as  

a  South  A f r i can c i t i zen .   

MR GIGABA:    That  wou ld  have  been genu ine  -  I  wou ld  
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have cons ide red i t  a  genu ine  concern  on  her  pa r t ,  had one,  

had we not  had a  d isagreement  a round the re  o f fe r  i n  te rms  

o f  our  d ivorce  se t t lement  and the  issues ra ised w i th  me 

and second ly,  had she not  gone on to  l ie  so  ex tens i ve ly,  

because she has  m is led  the  Commiss ion on  a  who le  range 

o f  th ings,  inc lud ing  accus ing  the  Commiss ion o f  au thor ing  

her  a f f idav i t  and  man ipu la t ing  some o f  the  issues and  

inse r t ing  th ings i n  he r  a f f idav i t  wh ich  she had not  agreed 

w i th .   

Now,  fo r  somebody who wou ld  have done tha t ,  you 10 

wou ld  then expec t  tha t  in  her  tes t imony,  she wou ld  be  ve ry  

c lea r  tha t  look ,  I  want  to  tes t i f y  on ly  on  the  bas i s  o f  an 

a f f idav i t  wh ich  I  have done myse l f  even her  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t  does not  say  tha t  tha t  was not  -  was inser ted  by  

the  Commiss ion  there fore  I  w i l l  no t  ta lk  about  i t .   Even as  

she was asked quest ions,  she cont inued to  answer  on  the  

bas is  o f  the  in i t ia l  a f f idav i t .   

So in  my op in ion ,  the  issues tha t  p rompted her  to  

come here  were  re la ted  to  our  d ivorce  and have concerns  

about  what  the  se t t lement  o f  tha t  d ivorce  wou ld  be  and tha t  20 

is  why even the  d ivorce  fea tures  so  prominent ly  in  her  

in i t ia l  a f f idav i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  I  cou ld  ask  you then to  d i rec t  your  

a t ten t ion  to  parag raph 66.2 :  

“A round June 2020,  says Ms Mngoma,  Mr  G igaba 



17 JUNE 2021 – DAY 411 
 

Page 207 of 249 
 

asked me fo r  a l l  my e lec t ron i c  dev ices,  because he 

had b rought  someone to  our  home who he 

in t roduced as  an  IT exper t  to  de le te  cer ta in  

in fo rmat ion  f rom our  phones,  iPad  and lap top ,  our  

dev ice .   I  re fuse to  hand over  my dev ices,  th is  

made h im v is ib ly  upset  on  query ing  what  

in fo rmat ion  needed to  be  de le ted ,  Mr  G igaba s ta ted  

tha t  cer ta in  p i c tu res  and in fo rmat ion  on  my gadgets  

cou ld  be  used to  p rove tha t  he  had v is i ted  the  

Gupta ’s  regu lar l y,  wh ich  wou ld  cont rad i c t  h is  10 

answers  in  Par l iament  to  quest ions pu t  to  h im by  

the  Economic  Freedom Figh te rs  members  o f  

Par l iament .   He sa id  tha t  he  d id  no t  want  the  same 

to  happen to  h im as i t  happened to  Mr  Mole fe  

dur ing  the  Pub l i c  Pro tec tor  invest iga t ion ,  wh ich  had  

used h is  ce l l  phone records to  p rove tha t  he  had 

v is i ted  the  Gupta  res idence.  He was a lso  

par t i cu la r l y  concerned to  de le te  any photos  tha t  I  

had taken on our  t r ip  to  Mumbai ,  New Delh i ,  in  

Ind ia ,  photographs o f  ou r  honeymoon t r ips  t o  20 

Maur i t ius  and Duba i  and my pr i va te  t r ips  to  Duba i .   

I  d id  no t  hand over  my dev ices. ”  

And le t  me jus t  f in ish  th i s  because  you answered a l l  o f  the  

parag raphs togethe r,  66 .3 :  

“Mr  G igaba a lso  asked me not  to  speak to  the  
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Commiss ion  no r  the  law enfo rcement  agenc ies  

about  Gupta  v is i t s  the  cash and the  g i f t s . ”  

66 .4 ,  she re fers  here  to  the  18 t h  o f  June 2020 but  you w i l l  

remember  Cha i rperson tha t  a  co r rec t ion  was made  to  tha t  

da te  by  her  counse l ,  be fore  she gave ev idence,  and i t  was 

cor rec ted  to  read  20 Ju l y  ins tead o f  18  June.   So she says;  

“On 20 Ju ly,  a  domest ic  i nc iden t  occur red  a t  ou r  

home. ”  

And then the  24  June was changed  to  22  Ju ly :  

“So on 22 Ju ly,  Mr  G igaba ca l led  me in to  the  l i v ing  10 

area where  I  met  Capta in  Mavuso and Sergeant  

Ndaben i  o f  the  Hawks.  They demanded my two  

iPhones my o ld  Huawei  phone,  my iPad,  and my 

MacBook,  and knew exact ly  where  to  loca te  each 

gadget  in  var ious  par ts  o f  our  home.   They re fused 

my r igh t  to  lega l  representa t ion .   They demanded  

a l l  the  usernames and passwords fo r  the  dev ices a l l  

de ta i l s  o f  my emai l  and soc ia l  med ia  accounts ,  

mak ing  me search  each one in  the i r  p resence when 

the  conf isca ted  gadgets  were  la te r  re turned to  me 20 

a l l  photog raphs and emai ls  re la t ing  to  my t r ips  

overseas,  v is i t s  w i th  the  Gupta ’s  and o the r  

in fo rmat ion  were  de le ted  f rom the  dev ices. ”  

And then she re fers  to  a  H igh  Cour t  judgment ,  and  what  i s  

your  response to  a l l  o f  tha t  Mr  G igaba?  
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MR GIGABA:    Thank you very  much,  Cha i rperson .  Le t  us  

s ta r t  w i th  the  IT exper t  and I  have cha l lenged Ms Mngoma 

to  name the  IT exper t  and prov ide  p roof  o f  such an IT 

exper t  and conversa t ion  because there  was no such an IT 

exper t .  A round June 2020 there  was abso lu te ly  no  need fo r  

an  IT exper t  to  come and do the  th ings tha t  she a l l eges,  I  

wanted to  de le te  f rom her  phones,  her  iPad and lap top .  

Aga in  Cha i rperson,  th is  i s  a  l ie .   The l ie  wh ich  I  

deny w i th  the  contempt  tha t  i t  deserves,  I  never  b rought  

such an IT exper t ,  I  have never  asked her  to  de le te  any  10 

in fo rmat ion  f rom her  phones o r  any o f  her  gadgets .   Ms  

Mngoma does no t  have a  lap top  Cha i rperson,  Ms Mngoma 

does not  have a  lap top .   She has an iPad,  she  has a 

MacBook,  I  guess when she ta l ks  about  the  l ap top ,  she 

probab ly  i s  re fe r r ing  to  the  MacBook.  

I  never  asked any IT exper t  to  come home to  do  

th is ,  on  -  so  a l l  o f  the  th ings wh ich  f low f rom there  cer ta in  

p ic tu res  and in fo rmat ion ,  Ms Mngoma i s  a l so  a  very  pub l i c  

person.  A l l  her  th ings are  on  her  Ins tagram account .   A l l  

the  p ic tu res  she  is  ta lk ing  abou t  a re  on  he r  Ins tag ram 20 

account .   So i f  she  c la ims tha t  there  were  p i c tu res  wh ich  

needed to  be  removed f rom her  phone,  why wou ld  you  

remove those p i c tu res  f rom the  phone when they were  

a l ready on her  Ins tag ram account .   The t r ips  she is  ta lk ing  

about ,  wh ich  were  pu t  to  me when I  was a  member  o f  
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Par l iament  by  va r ious oppos i t ion  par t ies .   I  responded to 

those issues when I  was an MP,  they are  on  the  records o f  

Par l iament  and I  am sure  tha t  the  Commiss ion  wou ld  be 

ent i t led  to  those  responses because they were  a lso  fo r  

pub l i c  record .   

In  so  fa r  as  the  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  cou ld  be  used to  

p rove tha t  I  had v i s i ted  the  Gupta ’s ,  Cha i rperson why 

wou ld  tha t  in fo rmat ion  be  on her  phone and not  m ine?  

Anybody,  anybody I  mean,  jus t  s imp le  log ic .  Why do you 

remove in fo rmat ion  f rom somebody ’s  phone when tha t  10 

in fo rmat ion  cou ld  have been found  on mine?  

The i ssue about  Mr  Mole fe  I  have  never  ra i sed th is  

w i th  Ms Mngoma,  never  sa id  to  her  tha t  I  do  no t  want  what  

happened to  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  to  a lso  happen to  me,  

because the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  d id  her  invest iga t ion ,  I  cannot  

reca l l  the  year  I  th ink  i t  must  have been 2017  or  ‘18  

pub l i shed her  repor t  on  the  bas i s  o f  the  repor t…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was pub l i shed  in  2016.   

MR GIGABA:    I  beg your  pa rdon?  

CHAIRPERSON:    The repor t  was pub l i shed in  2016 .  20 

MR GIGABA:    Oh,  thank you very  much Cha i rperson fo r  

the  cor rec t ion  and tha t  repor t  d id  no t  inc lude me and the  

Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  had no reason not  to  inc lude me in  her  

repor t  bu t  a f te r  her  invest iga t ion ,  my name was not  in  tha t  

repor t .   So,  I  wou ld  no t  wor ry  about  th is  four  years  la te r,  
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when the  repor t  had been re leased  as  the  Cha i rperson has 

cor rec t l y  cor rec ted  me in  2016.   

The photographs  about  the  t r ips  to  Mumbai  to  New 

Delh i  a re  no t  necessary,  why remove them?  I t  i s  pub l i c  

record  tha t  I  v is i ted  in  2015 New Delh i  I  d id  so  in  my 

o f f i c ia l  capac i ty  as  the  Min i s te r  and as  I  ind ica ted  in  my 

response,  the  t r ip  was par t  o f  my o f f i c ia l  v is i t  to  Ind ia  and 

there fo re  i f  you  wanted to  know anyth ing  about  the  t r ip ,  

you d id  no t  need to  expunge p ic tu res  o r  to  ex t rac t  p ic tu res  

f rom your  phone.  You jus t  s imp ly  needed to  ask  me or  go  10 

in to  the  records o f  the  Depar tmen t  o f  Home Affa i rs ,  wh ich  

wou ld  exp la in  the  purpose o f  the  t r ip .   

The reason why  the  t r ip  was app l ied  fo r  in  the  

Pres idency and the  rep  repor t ,  because the  good th ing  is  

tha t  back then -  I  wou ld  no t   know now,  I  am no longer  a 

Min is te r,  back then i f  you went  on  an  o f f i c ia l  v is i t  to  any  

count ry,  you  were  expected to  p rov ide  a  de ta i led  repor t  to  

the  Pres ident ,  because the  Pres ident  was concerned tha t  

many Min i s te rs  under took t r i ps ,  some o f  wh ich  are  no t  

meant ,  some Min is te rs  under took t r ips  some o f  wh ich  t r ips  20 

had noth ing  to  do  w i th  o f f i c ia l  bus iness o f  government  o r  

the i r  depar tment .   

So we were  expected I  th ink ,  much ear l ie r  on  to  

p rov ide  repor t s  when we came back on  o f f i c ia l  t r ips  

abroad,  the  issues o f  the  honeymoon t r ips ,  to  Maur i t ius ,  
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the  t r ips  to  Duba i ,  those were  on  her  Ins tag ram account ,  I  

have no access to  tha t  Ins tagram account  and I  cou ld  no t  

have demanded o f  her  to  expunge those p i c tu res .   

As  I  say  Ms Mngoma i s  a  ve ry  pub l i c  person,  she,  

posts  anyth ing ,  i nc lud ing  i f  she  a r r i ves  a t  the  a i rpor t ,  you 

w i l l  f ind  p ic tu res  o f  her  Lou is  Vu i t ton  bags and s tu f f  l i ke  

tha t .  That  i s  the  person she is ,  w i t h  regard  to  no t  ta lk ing  to  

the  Commiss ion  or  the  law enfo rcement ,  law enfo rcement  

agenc ies .   I  have never,  I  have never  done th is ,  I  have  

never  asked her  no t  to  do  th is .   I t  has  a lways been my v iew 10 

tha t  i f  she  wants  to  ta lk ,  I  d id  no t  expect  tha t  she wou ld  do  

i t  bu t  when she dec ided tha t  she was go ing  to  do  i t ,  I  have 

never  asked he r  no t  to  do  i t .   

I  unders tood tha t  she needed to  do  i t ,  she  was  

angry,  she had a lways sa id  tha t  she wou ld  d rag me i f  we 

went  th rough the  d ivorce  and so  I  have no reason to  s top 

her  about  i t .   Wi th  regard  to  the  inc idence o f  Ju ly,  I  have 

t r ied  to  exp la in  here  in  de ta i l  because,  you know,  i t  may 

sound as  i f  what  she desc r ibes are  jus t  a  p i t y,  you know,  a  

p i t y  fo rge t fu lness  about  da tes  bu t  i t  i s  no t .  20 

I t  i s  because she is  fabr i ca t ing  a  s to ry  and in  

fabr ica t ing  tha t  s to ry,  she then fabr ica tes  the  da tes  to ,  tha t  

i s  why you can see here ,  i t  i s  no t  on ly  about  th is  inc ident  

tha t  happened a t  our  res idence,  i t  i s  a lso  about  the  to  

Ind ia ,  i t  i s  about  the  reason fo r  the  t r ip  to  Ind ia .   I t  is  about  



17 JUNE 2021 – DAY 411 
 

Page 213 of 249 
 

the  honeymoon,  the  t r ip  to  Maur i t ius ,  a l l  o f  those th ings.   

Th is  i s  no t  jus t  a  smal l ,  neg l ig ib le  fo rge t fu lness,  i t  i s  about  

the  fac t  tha t  th is  person is  de l ibe ra te ly  fabr ica t ing  a  s to ry  

and there fo re  in  so  do ing  she fabr i ca tes  the  da tes  to .  

Capta in  Mavuso  and Ndaben i  who –  we l l  i t  is  

Capta in  Mavuso who came to  do  th is ,  to  take  her  s ta tement  

the  day a f te r  the  inc ident  o f  the  20 t h  because when th is  

inc ident  happened I  ca l led  Capta in  Mavuso and sa id  look  

someth ing  l i ke  th is  has happened a t  our  res idents  w i l l  you  

p lease come qu ick ly  and take  her  s ta tement  because in  my 10 

op in ion ,  there  was an invest iga t ion  wh ich  they were  

under tak ing .  I  had not  heard  the  resu l ts  o f  tha t  

invest iga t ion .   

I  s t i l l  am not  aware  o f  the  resu l ts  o f  tha t  

invest iga t ion  s i t t ing  here .   I  have not  been g i ven an o f f i c ia l  

repor t  on  tha t  invest iga t ion  and he  came the  fo l low ing day  

on  the  21 s t ,  he  took the  s ta tements ,  he  b rought  w i th  h im a  

po l i ce  photographer  who took photos  o f  the  damaged 

vague ly,  the  damage to  my s tudy and inspected the  i tems 

o f  ev idence wh ich  s t i l l  l ay  next  to  the  car  and some o f  20 

them had been taken to  the  teach ing .  

On the  21 s t ,  they  d id  no t  demand her  gadgets ,  tha t  

i s  a  fac t ,  i t  i s  in  the  po l i ce  records .   They d id  no t  demand 

her  gadgets ;  these gadgets  were  co l lec ted  on the  day they 

came to  a r res t  her  on  the  31s t  o f  Ju ly.   I t  i s  no t  t rue  tha t  
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they  knew where  the  gadgets  wou ld  be ,  how wou ld  they  

have known un less  they had somebody who was in  the  

house,  who knew where  she puts  her  gadgets .  

I  d id  no t  know where  she puts  a l l  her  phones as  she  

says she had there ,  how many severa l  phones,  I  d id  no t  

know where  she put  those phones .   When they came,  they  

asked fo r  these gadgets ,  they co l lec ted  them as par t  o f  

co l lec t ing  the  ev idence wh ich  re la ted  to  the  o ther  mat te r  

they were  invest iga t ing  o f  an  a l legat ion  I  had rece ived,  

wh ich  i s  in  the  po l i ce  record  to  o f  a  p lo t  to  k i l l  me ,  wh ich  10 

invo l ved he r.  

The inc idence there fo re  o f  20  Ju l y  in  my op in ion ,  

and I  d id  no t  know cou ld  no t  be  t rea ted  as  separa te  f rom 

the  a l legat ions o f  a  p lo t  to  k i l l  me and so  when the  po l i ce  

took th i s  s tu f f ,  i t  was fo r  the  purpose o f  ex t rac t ing  f rom the  

phone o f  download ing  f rom her  phone,  I  p resumed any  

in fo rmat ion  wh ich  cou ld  lead them to  es tab l i sh ing  the  

verac i t y  o f  the  c la im tha t  she was  invo lved in  a  p lo t  to  k i l l  

me.   I t  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  expung ing  anyth ing  f rom her  

phone.   20 

Now,  Cha i rperson,  i f  there  i s  any in fo rmat ion  tha t  

was expunged by  the  po l i ce  f rom her  phone,  sure l y  i f  you  

went  to  the  IT depar tment  o f  the  po l i ce ,  the  records  o f  what  

was ex t rac ted  f rom her  phone are  ava i lab le ,  those records 

cou ld  be  made ava i lab le  to  the  Commiss ion .  The Cour t  
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dec is ion  o f  February  th is  yea r,  sa id  every th ing  wh ich  was 

taken f rom her  phone must  be  re turned sure ly  there  i s  an  

account  and an aud i t  o f  a l l  those  th ings.   So there  cou ld  

no t  be  a  s i tua t ion  where  there  was someth ing  ex t rac ted 

f rom the  phone wh ich  was on po l i ce  record ,  wh ich  was not  

re tu rned together  w i th  the  phones  when the  gadge ts  were  

re turned to  he r.  

So what  she is  say ing  here  is  a  de l ibera te  l ie  in  

o rder  to  p resent  a  par t i cu la r  p ic tu re  o f  an  encroachment  to  

her  p r i vacy,  and  an a t tempt  to  h ide  any in fo rmat ion .  The  10 

advantage o f  IT -  and she c la ims to  be  an  IT exper t ,  i s  tha t  

a l l  o f  these th ings are  ava i lab le  on  po l i ce  reco rds and they  

cou ld  be  checked  on po l i ce  records and i f  there  i s  anyth ing  

wh ich  was never  re tu rned to  her,  those th ings wou ld  then  

be e i the r  re tu rned to  her  o r  and or  the  po l i ce  wou ld  have to  

exp la in  why they were  no t  re tu rned to  her  as  i s  in  

acco rdance w i th  the  Cour t  o rde r  o f  February  2021.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  le t  me jus t  unders tand,  Mr  

G igaba and I  am go ing  to  come to  the  judgment  la te r  on  

bu t  do  I  unders tand the  sequence to  be  th is  there  was the  20 

domest ic  inc ident  the  20 t h  o f  Ju ly?   

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And as  I  unders tand what  you have 

sa id  the  Hawks came to  take  a  s ta tement  in  re la t ion  to  the  

domest ic  i nc ident  on  the  21 s t  o f  Ju ly,  they came the  next  
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day?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then 10 days la te r  on  the  31s t  o f  

Ju l y  they re turned to  your  home and th is  t ime to  ar res t  Ms 

Mngoma? 

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  was a t  tha t  po in t  tha t  they 

took the  gadgets?  

MR GIGABA:    Ye ,  so  on  the  22 n d  i f  I  am not  m is taken,  on  

the  22 n d  o f  Ju ly  they ca l led  me and asked me to  go  to  the 10 

Brook lyn  Po l ice  S ta t ion  to  make a  s ta tement  there ,  wh ich  I  

d id .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you made a  s ta tement  on  the  

22 n d  o f  Ju ly?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  th ink  i t  must  have been on the  22n d  o f  

Ju l y  bu t  i t  was w i th in  tha t  per iod  o f  the  domest ic  inc ident  

a t  home.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And I  take  i t  tha t  tha t  s ta tement  then 

re la ted  to  the  domest ic  inc ident?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And these two,  gent lemen,  a re  they  

f rom the  Hawks in  Mpumalanga?  

MR GIGABA:    Wel l ,  they  are  f rom the  Hawks I  do  no t  know 

where  -  I  d id  no t  know wh ich  d iv is ion  o f  the  Hawks,  

remember  Cha i rperson as  I  have  sa id  a  b i t  ear l i e r  tha t  
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year,  las t  year  I  rece ived an SMS tex t  wh ich  is  ava i lab le  a t  

the  po l i ce ,  wh ich  in fo rmed me tha t  o r  wh ich  a l leged tha t  Ms 

Mngoma had h i red  peop le  to  k i l l  h im.  I  approached the  

Min is te r  o f  Po l i ce  fo r  adv ice  on  how do I  hand le  th i s .   Do I  

go  to  a  po l i ce  s ta t ion  to  repor t ,  i s  there  a  un i t  where  I  

needed to  repor t  i t?    

The Min i s te r  o f  Po l i ce  sa id  to  me tha t  I  w i l l  ask  

peop le  invo l ved in  invest iga t ions o f  po l i t i ca l  mat te rs  in  the  

assass ina t ions to  contac t  you.   I  was contac ted  by  the  

head o f  the  DPCI  who ind i ca ted  to  me tha t  they had  10 

ass igned Capta in  Mavuso to  come and take a  s ta tement .   

Indeed,  he  came,  I  do  no t  reca l l  what  da te  i t  was,  indeed,  

he  came,  he  took  the  s ta tement  and he sa id  we are  go ing  

to  invest iga te ,  and we w i l l  keep you in fo rmed  o f  the  

invest iga t ion .   

So when th is  domest ic  inc ident  happened by  the  

same person,  and the  fu ry  and the  anger  w i th  wh ich  i t  

happened,  i f  you  saw tha t  car  and how i t  was damaged you  

cou ld  see tha t  th is  person was ex t remely  angry  when she 

d id  th is ,  the  damages to  the  ca r  cos t  ha l f  a  m i l l i on  rand to  20 

f i x  and  so  the  owner  o f  the  veh ic le  wou ld  no t  say  to  me,  

my veh ic le  has been has been dest royed or  damaged a t  

your  res idence and  you d id  no t  repor t  the  mat te r  to  the  

po l i ce ,  you d id  no t   open a  s ta tement  and I  f ind  tha t  okay.   

The reason I  ca l led  Capta in  Mavuso was because  
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he  a l ready had an issue he was invest iga t ing  i n  re la t ion  to  

the  same person  who commi t ted  the  damages to  the  car,  

tha t  she commi t ted  the  damages to  the  car  i s  conta ined in  

her  own confess ion  s ta tement ,  wh ich  she made to  Capta in  

Mavuso and Sergeant  Ndaben i  where  she ind i ca ted  tha t  

yes ,  indeed,  I  had damaged the  ca r  and the  ins t rument  w i th  

wh ich  she had damaged the  car  was s t i l l  there  and in  the  

po l i ce  took those ins t ruments .   

So tha t  was the  reason why I  ca l led  Capta in  Mavuso  

and the  issue o f  them be ing  f rom Mpumalanga was not  10 

known to  me,  why wou ld  I  have  p icked peop le  up  f rom 

Mpumalanga?  What  had I  to  do  w i th  the  po l i ce ,  w i th  

invest iga to rs  i n  the  po l i ce  and to  the  po in t  o f  knowing  

exact ly  who to  ca l l  and where  are  they based,  I  had no  

such in fo rmat ion .  I  ac ted  on the  i n fo rmat ion  o f  the  peop le  

prov ided to  me  by the  re levan t  au thor i t ies  w i th in  the 

po l i ce .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  when had you made a  s ta tement  

to  Capta in  Mavuso about  the  p lo t  to  k i l l  you?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  beg yours?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    When was tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    I  do  no t  reca l l  s i r,  I  am sure  the  po l i ce  

wou ld  be  ab le  to  p rov ide  tha t  in fo rmat ion  to  you,  I  do  reca l l  

what  month  i t  was whether  i t  was i n  May or  Apr i l  o r  June.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Was i t  in  2020?  



17 JUNE 2021 – DAY 411 
 

Page 219 of 249 
 

MR GIGABA:    I t  was in  2020,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  Capta in  Mavuso,  hey?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    M-a -v-u-s-o?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  so  tha t  wou ld  have been in  the  

f i rs t  ha l f  o f  2020.   

MR GIGABA:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you ta lk  and have conf i rmed tha t  

Ms Mngoma was ar res ted  on the  31 s t  o f  Ju ly,  what  was she 10 

ar res ted  fo r?  

MR GIGABA:   Damage to  proper ty,  s i r,  damage to  proper ty,  

yes ,  she was ar res ted  fo r  damage to  proper ty.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    By  the  Hawks?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Can we then dea l  w i th  the  loss  o f  

passpor ts ,  we l l  tha t  i s  a t  leas t  the  head ing  a t  pa ragraph 66  

and le t  me read to  you two paragraphs and then you can -  

66  and 67:  

“On my re turn  f rom Durban on 1  March 2021 I  20 

d iscovered tha t  m ine and my ch i ld ren 's  persona l  

passpor ts  a re  m iss ing ,  no t  where  I  had le f t  them.   I  

found on ly  an  empty  passpor t  cover  fo r  my 

passpor t ,  I  a lso  d iscovered tha t  cop ies  o f  my 

passpor t  tha t  I  made ear l ie r  and  kept  them in  my  
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d rawer  were  a lso  m iss ing .  I  conf ron ted  Mr  G igaba  

about  the  whereabouts  o f  my ch i ld ren 's  passpor ts  

and mine la te r  tha t  day,  he  den ied  hav ing  seen  

them.   I  be l ieve  tha t  the  the f t  o f  my ch i ld ren 's  

passpor t  and mine was to  concea l  ev idence o f  a  t r ip  

tha t  we took to  Maur i t ius . ”  

What  do  you have to  say to  th is?  

MR GIGABA:    Bu t  Cha i rperson,  I  have not  den ied  the  t r ip  

to  Maur i t ius ,  why  wou ld  I  s tea l  passpor ts  to  concea l  a  t r ip  

to  Maur i t ius  wh ich  I  have not  den ied  but  second ly,  10 

Cha i rperson,  she  kept  the  passpor t .   My passpor t  i s  kept  

by  my ass i s tan t  a t  Lu thu l i  House  because I  o f ten  have to  

under take o f f i c ia l  t r ips  on  beha l f  o f  the  par ty,  wh ich  is  

cur ren t ly  my emp loyer  and so  she  keeps my passpor t  w i th  

her  so  tha t  i f  I  have to  under take a  t r ip  somet imes they are  

a t  shor t  no t ice  she can be ab le  to  immedia te l y  ac t  on  the  

book ings and s tu f f  l i ke  tha t .  

But  the  passpor t  o f  Ms Mngoma and the  passpor t s  

o f  the  ch i ld ren  were  in  her  possess ion .   I f  she  los t  them,  

she is  the  one who needs to  exp la in  and in  ac tua l  fac t  i t  20 

bo thers  me tha t  she has no t  gone  to  do  an  a f f idav i t  o f  the  

loss  o f  the  passpor t s  and in fo rmed Home Affa i r s  o f  the  

same because the  passpor ts  o f  my ch i ld ren  cou ld  be  in  the  

hands o f  any cr im ina l  a round the  count ry.    

They cou ld  be  used,  inc lud ing  he rs ,  they cou ld  be  



17 JUNE 2021 – DAY 411 
 

Page 221 of 249 
 

used by  peop le  who s tea l  ident i t y  to  fa ls i f y  passpor ts  and 

t rave l  a round on the  in fo rmat ion  conta ined in  those 

passpor ts  bu t  inso far  as  the  the f t  o f  these passpor ts  I  have  

no knowledge o f  them and I  am surpr ised tha t  I  th ink  i t  

seems to  me tha t  she is  c la im ing tha t  I  have someth ing  to  

do  w i th  those passpor ts ,  I  do  no t .   

She kept  the  passpor ts ,  she knew where  they were ,  

there fo re  shou ld  know what  happened to  the  passpor ts .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  G igaba,  you ra ised the  quest ion  

o f  why you wou ld  want  to  take  the  passpor ts  as  you say,  10 

she sa id  in  her  a f f idav i t  tha t  you wou ld  want  to  po ten t ia l l y  

concea l  a  t r ip  to  Maur i t ius ,  you say we l l ,  you have  

admi t ted  tha t .   The Cha i rpe rson,  asked Ms Mngoma the  

same quest ion  I  jus t  want  to  read to  you what  she sa id  so  

tha t  you can comment  on  i t  because he r  ev idence went  a  

b i t  w ider  than the  a f f idav i t .   

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The Cha i rperson sa id :  

“Why do you th ink  Mr  G igaba -  why do you th ink  

there  were  t r ips  tha t  Mr  G igaba  might  no t  have  20 

wanted to  be  conveyed to  the  Commiss ion?”  

And Ms Mngoma sa id :  

“Wel l ,  because f i rs t l y,  on  th is  a f f idav i t ,  he  den ied  

tha t  we –  Ms Dudu Myen i  pa id  fo r  the  t r ip  fo r  us,  so  

he    does not  want  tha t  t r ip  to  be  there ,  wh ich  she 
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d id  pay our  t r ip  to  Maur i t ius .  She even emai led  the  

who le  i t inerary  fo r  us  and I  remember  when we were  

in  Maur i t ius ,  Ma lus i  d id  no t  even know where  to  go  

to  ge t  a  ca r,  and every th ing  because h is  no t  used to  

t rave l l ing  w i thout  h is  s ta f f  and a t  tha t  t ime when we  

were  t rave l l ing  i t  was the  two o f  us . ”  

And then she sa id  two:  

“When we went  to  Duba i ,  and there  were  cer ta in  

t r ips ,  I  t rave l led  w i th  h im,  there  are  ce r ta in  t r ips  I  

have t rave l led  a lone.   So he d id  no t  want  me to  10 

have proof  o f  those t r ips  tha t  had happened,  hence  

he took the  passpor t . ”  

And then the  Cha i rperson asked aga in :  

“But  why wou ld  he  not  want  there  to  be  proof  o f  

those t r ips?”  

And she cont inued:  

“Because the  t r ip  tha t  I  remember  when we s tayed  

a t  the  H i l ton  in  Duba i  and even the  t r ip  when we  

s tayed in  the  Waldor f  in  Duba i ,  there  was a  t r ip  tha t  

Ma lus i  sa id  A jay  w i l l  sor t  ou t  th is  t r ip  fo r  us . ”  20 

And then she went  on  to  exp la in  tha t  you went  w i th  A jay  to  

a  jewe l le ry  shop and tha t  you came back w i th  watches and  

she sa id :  

“So tha t  t r ip  wha t  I  know,  i t  was them who pa id  fo r  

us .   So tha t  i s  the  reason he de le ted  those i t inera ry  
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on  my emai ls  because most  o f  the  emai ls  a re  

de le ted .  He a lso  when we went  on  those t r ips ,  a lso  

took p i c tu res  and a l l  those p ic tu res  are  de le ted  

because h is  deny ing  tha t  we went  on  those t r ips ,  so  

hence he took my  passpor t  as  we l l . ”  

So I  jus t  wanted  to  -  in  fa i rness  ask  you to  comment  on  

th is ,  you w i l l  see  tha t  her  ev idence is  w ide r  than jus t  

Maur i t ius .  

MR GIGABA:    Thank you Cha i r,  Cha i rperson the  -  a  t r ip  to  

a  count ry  i s  independent  o f  i t ,  i f  she  wants  to  p rove a  t r ip  10 

to  a  count ry  she does not  necessar i l y  have to  have a  

passpor t  to  p rove  i t .   I  am sure  the re  are  var ious ways tha t  

she can prove tha t  she had v is i ted  a  par t i cu la r  coun t ry.   

Second ly,  there  was no t r ip  where  I  was in  Duba i  

w i th  Mr  A jay,  no  t r ip  whatsoever  and I  cha l lenge  her  to  

p rov ide  ev idence .   You see,  i t  cannot  be  tha t  somebody  

makes an a l legat ion  tha t  they do  not  p rove and i t  i s  

expected o f  the  person aga ins t  whom the  a l legat ion  is  

made to  be  the  one who p roves tha t  the  a l legat ion  is  fa lse .   

I  cha l lenge he r  to  p rov ide  proof  o f  Mr  A jay  be ing  in  20 

Duba i  on  the  t r ip  she a l leges where  he  went  ou t  to  buy me 

watches.   There  is  no  such has  happened,  I  was never  

bought  any watches by  Mr  A jay  Gupta .   The issue o f  the  

t r ips  to  Maur i t ius ,  to  Duba i  buy are  i ssues wh ich  I  have not  

den ied  and I  have c lear l y  ind ica ted  tha t  i f  the  t r ip  to  
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Maur i t ius  was o rgan ised by  Ms Myen i ,  Ms Myen i  d id  no t  te l l  

me tha t ,  Ms Mngoma d id  no t  te l l  me tha t  and when we went  

to  Maur i t ius ,  we went  to  Maur i t ius  –  she came to  te l l  me,  i t  

ac tua l l y  was a  su rpr ise .   She came to  te l l  me tha t  we were  

t rave l l ing  to  Maur i t ius ,  we d id  no t  need a  passpor t  to  go  to  

Maur i t ius  and we then t rave l led  to  Maur i t ius ,  i t  was a  

ho l iday.  qua l i t y.   

I t  i s  t rue  tha t  I  d id  no t  know where  do  you get  a  car  

o r  s tu f f  l i ke  tha t ,  in  ac tua l  fac t  we d id  no t  h i re  a  car  we 

were  be ing  fe tched f rom the  a i rpo r t .  So I  d id  no t  have to  go  10 

look ing  fo r  any car,  as  we landed  a t  the  a i rpor t ,  we were  

be ing  fe tched,  there  was somebody ho ld ing  a  p laca rd  w i th  

our  names and so  we went  in to  t he  car  and drove  to  the 

resor t  where  we were  go ing  to  s tay.  

And the  issue o f  the  t r ip  to  Duba i ,  i t  had noth ing  to  

do  w i th  Mr  A jay  Gupta ,  he  never  pa id  fo r  tha t  t r ip  and he 

cer ta in ly  never  bought  me any wa tch ,  whethe r  in  Duba i  o r  

anywhere  e l se  fo r  tha t  mat te r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  G igaba,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  t u rn  to  a  

d i f fe ren t  document ,  you shou ld  have a  f i le  in  f ron t  o f  you,  20 

wh ich  is  marked  Transnet  Bund le  7A and i t  con ta ins  in  

major i t y  pa r t  documents  tha t  re la te  to  you tha t  DB24 and 

you w i l l  see  a  d i v ide r  towards the  end o f  the  f i le  marked  

BB26,  i t  wou ld  be  r igh t  towards the  end.   

That  i s  Ms Mngoma’s  exh ib i t  and  cou ld  I  ask you  
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p lease to  tu rn  t o  page 1027.8  and perhaps to  make i t  

eas ie r  fo r  you,  I  wou ld  es t imate  Mr  G igaba tha t  tha t  i s  

about  10  pages o r  so  f rom the  end  o f  the  f i le .   

MR GIGABA:    1027?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Po in t  8 .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  am there .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A re  you the re?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  one f inds  a t  tha t  page is  a  

supp lementary  or  c la r i f i ca t ion  a f f idav i t .   Now I  jus t  want  to  10 

take  you to  cer ta in  par ts  o f  i t  fo r  your  comment  p lease.   

Cou ld  I  ask  you to  go  to  page 1027.13.  

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rpe rson,  has th is  document  been 

prov ided to  me pr io r  to  today?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  cer ta in ly  shou ld  have been,  yes .  

MR GIGABA:   I  ask  because I  am not  aware  o f  i t  and I  

have not  responded to  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  do  no t  th ink  there  is  any ob l iga t ion  

on  you to  respond to  i t  bu t  i f  you  wou ld  l i ke  an  

oppor tun i ty…[ in te rvene]  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  the  ob l iga t ion  Cha i rpe rson to  

in fo rm me pr io r  to  be ing  ambushed w i th  a  document  o f  th is  

na ture ,  sure ly  i t  wou ld  have requ i red  me to  prepare  my  

responses.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  wou ld  be  the  supp lementa ry  
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a f f idav i t  tha t  Ms Mngoma came to  the  hear ing  w i th  -  maybe 

the  las t  t ime…[ in tervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  ce r ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    …or  maybe the  t ime before  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i rperson,  I  jus t  want  to  make a  

po in t  to  Mr  G igaba I  am cer ta in l y  no t  t ry ing  to  ambush you,  

i f  you say you have not  seen i t  be fore ,  I  am more  than  

happy fo r  you to  have the  oppor tun i ty  to  -  we can dea l  w i th  

i t  tomorrow,  you can read i t  overn igh t .   

I  can  check whether  o r  no t  i t  was  sent  to  you and 10 

your  counse l ,  I  have –  i t  i s  ce r ta in ly  no t  my miss ion ,  my 

in ten t ion  to  ambush you,  bu t  rea l l y  what  I  want  to  ask  you  

re la tes  to  two th ings tha t  we have a l ready dea l t  w i th .   

MR GIGABA:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  was go ing  to  d i rec t  your  a t ten t ion  

to  parag raph 8 ,  perhaps we can dea l  w i th  i t  th is  way i f  

there  i s  someth ing  tha t  you fee l  you cannot  answer  or  you 

want  to  seek the  adv ice  o f  your  counse l  on  or  wha tever  –  

can we take i t  on  a  parag raph by  parag raph bas is  because 

a  lo t  o f  i t  rea l l y  re - t reads ground tha t  we have a l ready 20 

gone down.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And i f  you are  no t  ab le  to  dea l  w i th  i t  

un t i l  you  have had a  chance to  look  a t  i t  as  Mr  Myburgh  

says,  i t  can  be dea l t  w i th  tomorrow.   So you can  answer  

what  you are  comfor tab le  w i th  o r  i f  you  wou ld  rea l l y  p re fe r  
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tha t  th is  document  be  dea l t  w i th  tomorrow tha t  can be 

done.   

MR GIGABA:    No,  we can go ahead,  Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:    We can go ahead?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  a t  page 1027.13 parag raph 8 :  

“The submiss ions and o r  sugges t ions made by  Mr  

So lomons SC on beha l f  o f  Mr  G igaba in  h i s  address  

to  the  Commiss ion ,  where  tha t  I  cannot…[ in tervene]  10 

MR GIGABA:    Sor ry,  pa ragraph?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 8 ,  page 1027.13.   

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  le t  me s tar t  aga in :  

“The submiss ions and o r  sugges t ions made by  Mr  

So lomons SC on beha l f  o f  Mr  G igaba in  h i s  address  

to  the  Commiss ion ,  were  tha t  I  cannot  be  a  re l iab le  

w i tness as  I  am unhappy and or  a  b i t te r  spouse  

go ing  th rough a  d ivorce  and tha t  as  a  resu l t  my  

ev idence w i l l  on l y  serve  my b i t te r  purpose to  seek  20 

to  ge t  to  Mr  G igaba. ”  

Paragraph 9 :  

“The na r ra t i ve  and; /o r  suggest ion  cannot  be  fu r ther  

f rom the  t ru th .   I  w ish  to  demonst ra te  th is  po in t  by  

prov id ing  the  chrono logy o f  events  wh ich  th is  
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Commiss ion  is  o r  may be unaware  o f  as  fo l lows:  

1 .  Dur ing  o r  about  the  f i rs t  quar te r  o f  2020 I  

approached Mr  G igaba and asked h im fo r  a  

d ivo rce ,  reasons  tha t  a re  o t  re levant  to  th is  

Commiss ion ;  

2 .  In  h is  response Mr  G igaba requested and begged 

tha t  I  shou ld  on ly  cons ider  the  ins t i tu t ion  o f  

d ivo rce  proceed ings a f te r  the  comple t ion  o f  h is  

ev idence in  th is  Commiss ion .    I  agreed to  th is  

request ;  10 

3 .  On or  about  June  2020 Mr  G igaba then requested  

me to  prov ide  and hand over  my ce l l  phone and  

iPad fo r  purposes o f  de le t ing  cer ta in  in fo rmat ion  

conta ined there in  to  ge t  r id  o f  cer ta in  in fo rmat ion  

wh ich  m ight  cont rad ic t  h i s  fa lse  tes t imony in  th is  

Commiss ion .    I  re fused to  hand over  my  

gadgets . ”  

I s  there  anyth ing  tha t  you want  to  –  I  mean to  a  la rge  

ex ten t  you have a l ready dea l t  w i th  th is .  

MR GIGABA:    I t  wou ld  be  in te res t ing  ask  tha t  sudden ly  a t  20 

9 .3  the  lap top  is  omi t ted .    Aga in  I  repeat  th is  i s  no t  men ia l  

omiss ion .    I t  i s  no t ,  i t  must  no t  be  read to  be  j us t  we 

fo rgo t  to  add lap top ,  i t  says  my ce l l  phones,  my iPad but  

the  lap top  is  sudden ly  no t  inc luded when in  ac tua l  fac t  in  

her  s ta tement  ea r l ie r  she a lso  had  inc luded the  lap top ,  bu t  
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aga in  I  s tand by  my chrono logy wh ich  I  p resented.    In  her  

in i t ia l  a f f idav i t  she was spec i f i c  about  the  da te  dur ing  

wh ich  she asked fo r  the  d ivo rce ,  she sa id  February  2020.  

 In  the  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  she  now says dur ing  

or  about  the  f i rs t  quar te r  o f  2020.   That  a lso  is  no t  t rue ,  i f  

you  want  to  d ivo rce  somebody you don ’ t  go  to  them and 

ask I  wou ld  l i ke  t o  d ivorce  you p lease.    You don ’ t  do  tha t .    

You se rve  them wi th  a  summons exact ly  the  say tha t  I  d id  

i t .  

 So  on record  I  am the  one who  f i led  the  d ivorce  10 

app l i ca t ion ,  because dur ing  or  about  the  f i rs t  quar te r  o f  

2020,  o r  in  February  2020 as  she c la imed in  her  in i t ia l  

a f f idav i t  there  was no request  fo r  d ivo rce  on  her  par t ,  she  

was s t i l l  happ i l y  marr ied ,  she was s t i l l  a  spouse,  and so  

these omiss ions to  me are  no t  jus t  m inor,  they speak to  

somebody who is  say ing  someth ing  and because she had 

the  advantage  by  the  t ime she submi t ted  the  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t  to  have read my response to  her  I  

then f ind  myse l f  here ,  respond ing  to  her  in i t ia l  a f f idav i t ,  

her  supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t  and her  tes t imony wh ich  she 20 

submi t ted .  

 The supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t  i s  c lear ly  an  a t tempt  on  

her  pa r t  to  re -eng ineer  the  fac ts  as  she had presented in  

her  in i t ia l  a f f idav i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  then she dea ls  w i th  the  
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a r res t  by  the  Hawks a t  9 .4 :  

“Th is  a r res t  came soon a f te r  I  spec i f i ca l l y  o r  I  had 

spec i f i ca l l y  re fused to  hand over  my gadgets  to  Mr  

G igaba,  more  spec i f i ca l l y  I  make the  po in t  tha t  had 

I  done so  I  wou ld  no t  have been  ar res ted  by  the  

Hawks who immedia te ly  and un lawfu l l y  a r res ted  me,  

conf isca ted  my  gadgets  and  de le ted  spec i f i c  

in fo rmat ion  f rom my gadgets .   I  re i te ra te  tha t  the  

de le te  o f  in fo rmat ion  spec i f i ca l l y  re la ted  to  the 

events  wh ich  a re  o f  keen in te res t  to  an  amendment  10 

was made to  th is  Commiss ion .   Th is  i s  de f in i te ly  no  

co inc idence. ”  

Do you want  to  address tha t  inso far  as  you haven ’ t  

a l ready?  

MR GIGABA:    Ms Mngoma says in  her  in i t ia l  a f f idav i t ,  

Cha i rperson i f  you jus t  bear  w i th  me a  l i t t le  b i t  I  need to  

jus t  take  th is  th ing  ou t  and o f f ,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you need ass is tance?  

MR GIGABA:   No,  no ,  no ,  a l l  i s  in  o rde r,  a l l  i s  in  o rde r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A re  you go ing  to  the  schedu le?  20 

MR GIGABA:    Yes I  am go ing  to  the  schedu le .    I  am jus t  

p lead ing  fo r  a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  t ime so  tha t  I  f ind  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  f ine .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  ja ,  so  Ms Mngoma says in  her  o r ig ina l  

a f f idav i t  tha t  a round June 2020 I  b rought  an  exper t  and  
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asked he r  to  hand over  her  gadgets .    In  the  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t  she now says tha t  the  ar res t  came soon a f te r  she 

had re fused.  

 Now th is  i s  a  per iod  o f  June/Ju ly.   She says in  June  

I  asked her  to  hand over  the  supp lementary,  I  mean to  

hand over  he r  gadgets  bu t  the  a r res t  happened on the  31s t  

o f  Ju ly,  now th i s  i s  no t  soon a f te r  she had re fused to  hand  

over  her  gadgets .   The supp lementary  a f f idav i t  as  I  made  

the  po in t  i s  an  a t tempt  to  re -eng ineer  the  fac ts  bu t  a  

d ismal  a t tempt  a t  tha t  because i t  cont inues to  omi t  c ruc ia l  10 

in fo rmat ion ,  i t  con t inues to  confuse the  ch rono logy o f  

events  wh ich  she  had s ta ted  in  he r  in i t ia l  a f f idav i t .   I  have  

a l ready sa id  tha t  there  was never  a  request  by  me fo r  her  

to  hand over   her  gadgets ,  she sa id  in  the  or ig ina l  a f f idav i t  

I  had asked  he r  to  hand over  these gadgets  to  an  IT 

exper t .    In  the  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  the  issue o f  an  IT 

exper t  i s  sudden ly  omi t ted .   I t  i s  now omi t ted ,  i t  i s  no t  

there ,  she no longer  says tha t  the  gadgets  were  to  be  

handed over  to  an  IT exper t ,  bu t  she says tha t  they were  

conf isca ted  by  the  Hawks,  o f  course  she sa id  the  same 20 

th ing  in  the  in i t ia l  a f f idav i t  bu t  i t  i s  no t  jus t  m inor  tha t  in  

the  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  the  issue o f  the  IT exper t  i s  

a lso  omi t ted .   I t  is  to  re -eng ineer  t he  fac ts  tha t  she –  to  re -

eng ineer  the  or ig ina l  a f f idav i t  in  o rde r  –  because she has 

seen my response in  o rde r  fo r  her  to  t ry  and a l ign  her  
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nar ra t i ve  w i th  the  response wh ich  I  had prov ided.  

 The –  aga in  I  repeat  Cha i rperson  tha t  i f  there  was  

any de le ted  in fo rmat ion  the  records  o f  the  po l i ce  w i l l  

ind ica te  what  in fo rmat ion  was ex t rac ted  f rom her  phone  

f rom her  phone  and what  in fo rmat ion  was de le ted  and  

there fo re  the  burden o f  p roo f  on  these –  o f  th is  de le ted  

in fo rmat ion  shou ld  l ie  w i th  t he  person mak ing  the  

a l legat ions because i f  she c la ims tha t  I  shou ld  know what  

in fo rmat ion  was de le ted  by  gadgets ,  wh ich  she c la ims were  

no t  handed over  to  me but  were  handed over  to  the  po l i ce  10 

then she is  ask ing  me to  pe r fo rm a  task  wh ich  I  cannot  

per fo rm because  I  am not  the  one who a l leged ly  de le ted  

th is  in fo rmat ion  f rom her  gadgets  because by  her  own 

s ta tement  she re fused  to  hand he r  gadgets  over  to  me or  

to  the  so-ca l led  IT exper t s ,  the  nameless IT exper t .   Then 

i f  she says the  po l i ce  de le ted  cer ta in  in fo rmat ion  she must  

say  tha t  th is  i s  the  in fo rmat ion  de le ted  and then the  po l i ce  

must  check and  prov ide  in fo rmat ion  and p roof  o f  what  

in fo rmat ion  was  ex t rac ted   and what  in fo rmat ion  was  

de le ted  because the  po l i ce  were  on ly  in te res ted  in  f ind ing  20 

out  i f  there  i s  any susp ic ious communica t ion  be tween he r  

and the  so-ca l led  peop le  tha t  she was a l leged  to  be  

p lo t t ing  w i th  to  k i l l  me,  no th ing  to  do  w i th  i ssues o f  

re t r ieves,  p r iva te  photog raphs,  a l l  o f  those th ings are  

found on her  Ins tagram account ,  i f  they  are  no t  the re  i t  i s  
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because she has de le ted  them herse l f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  and  then she says a t  9 .5 :  

“Fo l lowing  f rom th is  in  o r  about  August  2020 I  

learned f rom the  newspapers  the  announcement  o f  

the  d ivorce  proceed ings be ing  ins t i tu ted  by  Mr  

G igaba,  summons was on ly  served on me in  

September  o f  2020.    On or  17  December  2020 d id  I  

conduct  a  t e lev is ion  in te rv iew wi th  ENCA a f te r  

wh ich  I  was immedia te ly  contac ted  by  the  

Commiss ion  on 18 December  2020 . ”  10 

And she goes on to  say a t  9 .7 :  

“ In  o r  about  January  2021  d iscuss ions on  

se t t lement  ensued between me and Mr  G igaba as  i n  

normal  d ivo rce  mat te rs  and w i th  the  pr inc ipa l  a im o f  

avo id ing  long and  pro t rac ted  p rocess o f  d ivorce . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  those paragraphs?  

MR GIGABA:  I f  I  am o t  m is taken Cha i rperson  in  the 

or ig ina l  a f f idav i t  Ms Ngoma c la imed tha t  the  Commiss ion  

approached her  and I  d isputed tha t  in  my prev ious  

appearance and  sa id  i t  was o t  the  commiss ion  wh ich  20 

approached he r,  i t  was he r  who o f fe red  to  approach the  

Commiss ion  when she was in te rv iewed on ENCA and in  the  

C i ty  Press in te rv iew,  so  sudden ly  in  9 .6  i t  i s  the 

Commiss ion  tha t  approached he r.  

 No,  the  Commiss ion  may have techn ica l l y  contac ted  



17 JUNE 2021 – DAY 411 
 

Page 234 of 249 
 

her  bu t  i t  i s  her  who o f fe red  to  come to  the  Commiss ion ,  

she was spec i f i ca l l y  asked th is  quest ion  and she agreed,  

and she sa id  yes  indeed I  wou ld  be  happy to  approach the 

Commiss ion  and make a  s ta tement  about  Mr  G igaba .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  the  fac t  i s  tha t  the 

Commiss ion  d id  approach he r,  d id  contac t  he r.  

MR GIGABA:    Bu t  the  fac t  i s  tha t  she o f fe red  to  come to 

the  Commiss ion ,  she o f fe red  to  come to  the  Commiss ion  

bu t  i t  i s  qu i te  impor tan t  to  v iew her  s ta tements  in  how she 

cont rad i c ts  he rse l f  a long the  way,  because i t  speaks to  the 10 

re l iab i l i t y  o f  the  submiss ion  wh ich  has been made  before  

the  Commiss ion ,  about  wh ich  I  commented f rom the  ve ry  

ou tse t  tha t  i t  was a  m is lead ing  submiss ion  and I  th ink  I  

have a lso  prov ided a  lo t  o f  a rgument  to  d isprove  a  who le  

lo t  o f  t  h ings  wh ich  have been submi t ted  to  the  

Commiss ion ,  the  omiss ions be tween the  f i rs t  and the  

second a f f idav i t s .   

 Second ly  Cha i rperson the  issue o f  –  I  don ’ t  th ink  

the  issue o f  the  d ivo rce  and how i t  was made pub l i c  i s  a  

mat te r  o f  S ta te  Capture ,  i t  cer ta in l y  was not  leaked  by  me,  20 

i t  was not  leaked by  me,  I  a lso  read about  i t  on  the  –  I  

th ink  i t  was the  Sunday where  they repor ted  abou t  i t ,  I  am 

sure  they wou ld  be  ab le  to  exp la in  who leaked i t  i f  i t  was 

leaked,  i f  i t  was not  leaked,  and I  don ’ t  know abou t  –  I  am 

not  su re  about  d ivorce  proceed ings.  Once the  summons are  
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served I  th ink  they become pub l ic ,  I   mean they become 

ava i lab le  and jou rna l i s t s  a re  a lways look ing  fo r  news and  

they probab ly  wou ld  have found  th is  in fo rmat ion  th rough 

tha t  p rocess.  

 On the  9 .7  Cha i rperson,  the  9 .7  Ms Ngoma aga in  

concea ls  de l ibera te ly  and on 9 .7  and 9 .8  concede –  no  you 

have not  come to  9 .8 ,  r igh t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  no t  ye t .  

MR GIGABA:    Not  ye t  s i r,  bu t  9 .7  she de l ibera te ly  

concea ls  i ssues  wh ich  she ra ised w i th  me,  and the  10 

approach wh ich  she asked us  to  take  in  dea l ing  w i th  the  

issue o f  the  d ivo rce  se t t lement  and I  repor ted  th is  to  my 

a t to rney,  I  repor ted  i t  to  my a t to rney exact ly  the  way tha t  

she ra i sed i t  w i th  me,  and he sa id  to  me he can – he  cou ld  

on ly  dea l  w i th  the  issue o f  the  d i vorce  se t t lement  because 

there  were  two issues wh ich  he  had ra ised,  one was tha t  I  

shou ld  w i thdraw the  case aga ins t  her,  and second ly  tha t  in  

rec ip roc i t y  she wou ld  rec ip rocate  by  re fus ing  to  come to  

the  Commiss ion  and my a t to rney  sa id  he  does not  th ink  

tha t ’s  a  lega l  o f fe r  tha t  we shou ld  make,  we shou ld  conf ine  20 

ourse l ves to  the  d ivo rce  se t t lemen t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  and then a t  9 .8  th is  is  when  

the  a l legat ions o f  supposed ex tor t ion  s ta r ted  f l y ing  around.  

“ I  must  ind i ca te  tha t  I  am to ta l l y  as ton ished a t  the  

u t te r  suggest ion  tha t  I  wou ld  seek to  b lackmai l  o r  
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ex to r t  Mr  G igaba in to  any fo rm o f  se t t lement  in  

respect  o f  the  d ivorce .    As  a  mat te r  o f  fac t  I  remain  

shocked as  to  what  i t  i s  I  wou ld  be  seek ing  to  

ach ieve by  such  conduct .    I  say  th is  fo r  the  

fo l low ing reasons :  

1 .  The house we l i ve  in  i s  a  ren ted  house;  

2 .  We are  marr i ed  ou t  o f  communi ty  o f  p roper ty ;  

3 .  The o ther  house  tha t  Mr  G igaba  owns there  is  

s t i l l  a  huge amount  owed to  the  bank in  respect  

o f  the  bond;  10 

4 .  The ent i re  fu rn i t u re  in  the  house  tha t  we l i ve  in  

be longs to  me.  

5 .  I  am in  no  sa te  to  have any in ten t i on  to  f igh t  w i th  

Mr  G igaba as  we have two minor  ch i ld ren  

together  whom I  have even proposed to  leave 

w i th  Mr  G igaba to  avo id  any fu r ther  conf ron ta t ion  

and d ispute  re la t ing  to  our  d ivorce  so  as  to  

exped i te .  

6 .  As conf i rmed in  a  le t te r  f rom my a t to rneys to  the 

Commiss ion  there  are  no  ongo ing  se t t lement  20 

d iscuss ions be tween the  par t ies .   I t  i s  there fore  

no t  c lear  what  I  s tand to  ga in  by  ass is t ing  the  

Commiss ion . ”  

Do you want  to  dea l  w i th  tha t  paragraph.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes,  le t  me s tar t  w i th  the  las t  po in t ,  there  is  
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no  ongo ing  se t t lement  d iscuss ion  be tween the  par t ies  

prec ise ly  because we cou ld  no t  agree on the i r  o f fe r,  on  

what  they wanted  us  to  do .    The very  f i r s t  th ing  wh ich  they  

ra ised w i th  my a t to rney was tha t  we shou ld  wa ive  the  an te  

nupt ia l  cont rac t  and my a t to rney sa id  tha t  they a re  ou t  o f  

the i r  m inds,  we w i l l  no t  do  tha t .  

 I  was then supposed to  look  a t  –  and I  regre t  

Cha i rperson to  have to  dea l  w i th  i ssues o f  my d i vo rce  here 

because I  be l ieve  issues o f  my d i vorce  have noth ing  to  do  

w i th  the  –  w i th  the  mandate  o f  th is  Commiss ion ,  except  to  10 

the  ex ten t  tha t  i t  i s  be ing  a l leged tha t  I  had made an o f fe r  

tha t  we shou ld  se t t le  an  fo r  Ms Mngoma not  to  come to  the  

Commiss ion .   They f i rs t  suggested tha t  we wa ive  the  an te  

nupt ia l  cont rac t ,  we re fused.   They – we then sa id  no  

ins tead le t  me look a t  my po l i c i es  to  see i f  I  cou ld  be  ab le  

to  f ind  –  because  I  ind ica ted  to  he r  tha t  I  had spent  a  lo t  o f  

money,  she asked me a  very  spec i f i c  quest ion .   When you 

res igned f rom Cab inet  what  d id  you do w i th  your  po l i c ies ,  

your  pens ions and so  on  and I  sa id  to  her  I  invested  them 

and pa r t  o f  what  was f rom those  se t t lements  I  used i t  to  20 

pay the  a t to rneys,  whom I  am s t i l l  ow ing la rge  sums o f  

money,  and then I  sa id  I  don ’ t  th ink  I  have any because I  

sa id  to  he r  I  w i l l  check w i th  my f inanc ia l  adv i so r  bu t  I  do 

no t  th ink  tha t  I  have any remain ing  d isposab le  cash wh ich  I  

can immedia te ly  dep loy  to  a  d ivo rce  se t t lement ,  bu t  I  sa id  I  
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wou ld  ta lk  to  my  f inanc ia l  adv isor  w i th  whom we spoke,  I  

adv ised my d ivorce  a t to rney on  what  the  ou tcome o f  tha t  

was,  bu t  i t  became c lear  tha t  i t  was no longer  necessary  to  

even make tha t  o f fe r,  even the  host i le  approach wh ich  Ms 

Ngoma and her  a t to rneys took to  go  to  C i ty  Press and 

make th is  s ta tement  tha t  we were  o f fe r ing  a  d ivorce  

se t t lement  in  o rder  to  p revent  her  f rom coming  to  the  

Commiss ion .  

 We thought  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  r i sky  fo r  us  to  cont inue  

w i th  those se t t lement  negot ia t ions  even tha t  they  wou ld  10 

then be read to  be  a  conf i rmat ion  o f  the  a l legat ions wh ich  

she had made on  the  C i ty  Press so  tha t  i s  why the re  is  on  

ongo ing  se t t lement  d iscuss ions to  th is  e f fec t .  

 The Cha i rperson  las t  t ime I  came here  asked a  

quest ion ,  Mr  G igaba why wou ld  i f  –  why wou ld  Ms Mngoma 

say th ings wh ich  seem to  be  in  your  favour  bu t  tha t  –  bu t  

you argue tha t  she is  t ry ing  to  harm you,  and perhaps I  d id  

no t  unders tand the  quest ion  we l l  when i t  was posed to  me 

but  I  re f lec ted  on  i t  and I  th ink  i t  comes we l l  in  the  contex t  

o f  I  th ink  9 .8 .5  because she says cer ta in  th ings  in  her  20 

tes t imony tha t  seem be favourab le  to  me tha t  I  was not  a  

“yes  boy” ,  tha t  I  was res i s t ing  as  a  resu l t  there  was th is  

v iew to  pun ish  me by send ing  me back to  Home Affa i rs .  

 Now but  in  my v iew Cha i rperson the  mere  fac t  o f  

these tes t imon ies  and the  issues be ing  ra i sed here  do  a  lo t  
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o f  harm to  me,  to  my reputa t ion ,  to  my p ro f i le  and  pub l i c  

s tand ing ,  in  the  manner  in  wh ich  they are  ra ised and the  

l ies ,  the  ex tens ive  l ies  wh ich  have been perpet ra ted  

th rough th i s  inc lud ing  in  the  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  wh ich  

now makes cer ta in  omiss ions in  o rder  to  re -eng ineer  the  

in i t ia l  a f f idav i t  tha t  I  had responded ex tens i ve ly  to  and the  

l ies  o f  wh ich  I  had exposed in  my response.  

 So i t  wou ld  appear  Cha i rpe rson tha t  the  –  th is  Ms  

Mngoma is  no t  do ing  me any ha rm but  in  the  manner  in  

wh ich  she dea ls  w i th  a  who le  lo t  o f  i ssues,  and the  l ies  10 

tha t  she perpet ra tes  in  her  a f f idav i t ,  bo th  the  or ig ina l  and 

the  supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t s ,  inc lud ing  in  her  response  

where  she d ragged the  name o f  my la te r  fa ther  and sa id  

rea l l y  demean ing  th ings about  my  la te  fa ther  and how she  

dea ls  w i th  my fami ly,  the  demean ing manner  in  wh ich  she 

re fers  to  my fami ly,  a l l  o f  those th ings are  in tended to  harm 

and to  po r t ray  an  image o f  somebody who was rece iv ing  

cash and g i f t s  was be ing  bought ,  watches in  Duba i  who 

was be ing  sponsored fo r  t r ips  w i thout  p rov id ing  a  shred o f  

ev idence,  so  tha t  even areas wh ich  may appear  to  be  20 

favourab le  to  me become minor  compared to  the  ha rm,  the  

damage tha t  i s  be ing  done to  me and my fami ly,  by  the  

ex tens i ve  l ies  tha t  a re  conta ined in  th is  a f f idav i t  ma in ly  o f  

these l ies  to  wh ich  I  have responded.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 9 .9  a t  page 1027.16:  
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” I  ought  to  h igh l igh t  tha t  the  proposa l  I  was mak ing  

to  Mr  G igaba was tha t  we shou ld  agree on the  

issues so  tha t  we can both  move on w i th  ou r  

respect ive  l i ves .   Indeed the  se t t lement  d iscuss ions  

wh ich  were  even esca la ted  to  our  respect ive  

a t to rneys y ie lded no f ru i t s  and  were  accord ing ly  

abandoned. ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GIGABA:    The quest ion  Cha i rpe rson tha t  she  shou ld  

answer  i s  why  those d i scuss ions were  subsequent ly  10 

abandoned,  bu t  le t  me repeat  fo r  the  sake  o f  the  

Commiss ion  tha t  they were  abandoned because we cou ld  

no t  agree to  wa ive  the  an te  nup t ia l  cont rac t ,  they  were  

abandoned because I  suppose  we d id  no t  respond  

t imeous ly  on  whether  we cou ld  f ind  f inanc ia l  se t t lement ,  

because I  ind ica ted  tha t  the  f inanc ia l s  –  tha t  I  had no 

ava i lab le  case to  d ispose th rough  a  se t t lement ,  they were  

abandoned because I  ind ica ted  tha t  the  proper ty  in  

Centur ion  was s t i l l  ow ing and tha t  i f  she  were  to  take  i t  

over  she wou ld  need to  cont inue w i th  the  bond and le t  me  20 

a lso  fu r ther  ind ica te  tha t  I  had agreed to  a  d ivorce  

se t t lement ,  I  had agreed to  th is ,  I  thought  i t  wou ld  work  

best  fo r  bo th  o f  us  and i t  wou ld  work  best  fo r  the  fami ly  bu t  

the  o f fe r  wh ich  they made,  and the  s t range th ing  was th is  

ins is tence tha t  don ’ t  say  to  your  a t to rneys  I  have 
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app roached you,  ra the r  say  to  your  a t to rneys tha t  you and 

I  have agreed,  bu t  we had noth ing  we had agreed  to ,  we 

were  agree ing  on a  se t t lement  bu t  the  de ta i l s  o f  tha t  

se t t lement  had not  been agreed  to  and I  cou ld  no t  go  

because when I  went  to  my a t to rneys and sa id  there  is  th is  

p roposa l  they then came to  h im and sa id  apparent ly  they 

have agreed on wa iv ing  the  an te  nupt ia l  cont rac t  wh ich  

obv ious ly  was not  t rue ,  so  i t  –  the  manner  in  wh ich  we 

were  expected to  dea l  was qu i te  s t range and unfor tunate ly  

i t  d id  no t  y ie ld  any f ru i t s  bu t  i t  was my unders tand ing  tha t  10 

any se t t lement  i s  based on negot ia t ions  the  day you agree,  

tomorrow  you don ’ t  agree,  you  negot ia te  fu r ther,  you 

compromise ,  you  eventua l l y  f ind  a  se t t lement  tha t  works  

fo r  a l l  par t ies  bu t  i t  seemed tha t  the  inab i l i t y  to  agree on 

in i t ia l  o f fe rs  was taken to  be  a  pe rmanent  inab i l i t y  to  

agree.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    When  were  the  se t t lement  

negot ia t ions  abandoned?  

MR GIGABA:    I t  was here  –  ja ,  i t  was a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  

th is   year,  I  wou ldn ’ t  say  they were  abandoned,  I  wou ld  say  20 

tha t  –  because I  don ’ t  th ink  there  was a  d iscuss ion  and  

agreement  tha t  we are  now abandon ing  se t t lement  

negot ia t ions .   The fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  tha t  the  d i vorce  is  

go ing  ahead,  i t  w i l l  go  ahead,  i t  may jus t  be  de layed by  the  

fac ts  tha t  we have to  go  th rough th is  p rocess bu t  i t  w i l l  go 
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ahead so  I  wou ld  expect  tha t  there  wou ld  s t i l l  be 

re ins t i tu ted  se t t lement  d iscuss ions because my 

unders tand ing  is  tha t  even i f  you were  to  f ina l l y  go  to  cour t  

on  the  issue the  cour t  wou ld  expect  tha t  on  cer ta in  i ssues  

you wou ld  have d iscussed and agreed so  tha t  i t  ge ts  –  I  

don ’ t  know what ’s  the  r igh t  word ,  bu t  conf i rmed by  the  

cour t  tha t  you say so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  what  we know then  is  tha t  

se t t lement  d iscuss ions came to  an  end,  I  mean whethe r  

they were  abandoned i s  cor rec t ,  bu t  ceased a t  the 10 

beg inn ing  o f  the  year,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson abandoned and coming to  an  

end seems to  me to  be  mean ing  the  same th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    They were  s imp ly  no t  pursued f rom a  

cer ta in  po in t?   

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR GIGABA:   But  tha t  they w i l l  s t i l l  be  re - ins t i tu ted  tha t ’s  

my expecta t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That   m ight  s t i l l  happen.  20 

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  was before  then Ms Mngoma 

f i led  her  a f f idav i t ,  you see she d id  tha t  on  the  6 t h  o f  March 

2021,  tha t  you see a t  paragraph 9 .11 .  
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MR GIGABA:    Ja ,  sure .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then a t  paragraph 9 .10  she dea ls  

w i th  the  h igh  cour t  judgment ,  9 .11  she f i les  he r  a f f idav i t  on  

the  6 t h  o f  March  and then on paragraph 9 .12  she says tha t :  

”on  the  26 t h  o f  March the  NPA wi thdrew cr im ina l  

charges aga ins t  me,  wh ich  were  re la ted  to  my  

un lawfu l  and mal i c ious ar res t . ”  

Do you accept  tha t  the  charges were  w i thd rawn aga ins t  Ms 

Mngoma? 

MR GIGABA:     Wel l  I  was not  invo l ved in  the  case so  10 

tha t ’s  what  I  had in  the  med ia ,  I  was not  represented in  the 

case.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then she conc ludes by  say ing  a t  

parag raph 10:  

“ I  lay  ou t  the  above ch rono logy to  demonst ra te  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  one second Mr  Myburgh.    I  

unders tood tha t  –  I  assume tha t  tha t  le t te r  re la tes  to  what  

you have re fer red  to  as  the  domest ic  case.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  thought  you sa id  you were  the  one who  

la id  the  cr im ina l  compla in t .  

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson I  repor ted  the  inc ident ,  I  d id  

no t  lay  a  compla in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh you repor ted  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   



17 JUNE 2021 – DAY 411 
 

Page 244 of 249 
 

MR GIGABA:    I  repor ted  the  inc ident  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then you  were  asked to  make a  

s ta tement?  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR GIGABA:   I t  was fo r  the  purposes o f  insu rance and a l l  

o f  tha t  p rocess.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  the  po l i ce  or  ne i the r  the  po l i ce ,  

tha t  i s  Hawks no r  the  NPA have in fo rmed you whe ther  the  

charges have been w i thdrawn or  no t ,  you jus t  read the  ad  10 

the  med ia .  

MR GIGABA:   I  was –  I  heard  in  the  med ia  bu t  I  was 

in fo rmed in fo rmal ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR GIGABA:     Because I  was not  invo l ved in  the  case 

i t se l f ,  I  d idn ’ t  have lega l  representa t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR GIGABA:    So  we were  no t  par t y  to  the  case  so  i t  –  

tha t  i s  why I  was a lso  say ing  I  have not  even been 

in fo rmed as  to  the  progress or  lack  the reof ,  o f  the  20 

a l legat ions tha t  Ms Ngoma was invo lved in  a  p lo t  to  k i l l  

me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

MR GIGABA:    And tha t ’s  where  the  mat te rs  a re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  yes  Mr  Myburgh?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  a t  paragraph  10 Ms  

Mngoma conc ludes th is  par t  o f  he r  a f f idav i t  by  say ing :  

” I  lay  ou t  the  above chrono logy to  demonst ra te  to  

th is  Commiss ion  tha t  the  sugges t ion  tha t  I  was a  

b i t te r  spouse a t tempt ing  to  ge t  to  Mr  G igaba 

th rough th is  Commiss ion  is  o t  on l y  mal ic ious in  the  

very  least ,  bu t  i s  m is lead ing  on  the  rea l  i ssues  

before  th is  Commiss ion . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?   

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson the  –  I  ho ld  a  d i f fe ren t  v iew,  I  10 

ho ld  a  d i f fe ren t  v iew because uhm,  uhm,  because ,  yes ,  i f  

you  look a t  9 .11 ,  she says tha t  in  January  she f i led ,  I  mean 

we had d iscuss ions,  the  se t t lement  d iscuss ions were  

accord ing ly  abandoned,  tha t  i s  on  9 .1 ,  then in  9 .11  she  

says on  the  6 t h  o f  March  she f i led  a  a f f idav i t  to  the  

Commiss ion .    The ch rono logy  o f  tha t  i s  in fo rmat ive .    

There  a re  se t t lement  negot ia t ions  in  January,  then on the  

6 t h  o f  March  she f i les  an  a f f idav i t  a f te r,  in  her  op in ion  the 

se t t lement  negot ia t ions  have been  abandoned.    I  be l ieve  

in  my op in ion  tha t  9 .11  conf i rms my acumen tha t  the  20 

reason she came to  the  Commiss ion  in  March and  not  in  

January  as  she had ind i ca ted  to  me tha t  the  nego t ia t ions,  

the  d iscuss ions be tween the  Commiss ion  and he rse l f  and 

her  a t to rneys had  a l ready taken p lace by  then.  

 She d idn ’ t  come to  the  Commiss ion  in  January,  she  
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d idn ’ t  come to  the  Commiss ion  in  Feb,  bu t  in  March  a f te r  in  

her  op in ion  the  se t t lement  d iscuss ions had accord ing ly  

been abandoned tha t  i s  us ing  her  own language.  

 So po in t  10  –  po in t  10  is  in  my  op in ion  weak to  

demonst ra te  tha t  she i s  no t  o r  was not  a  b i t te r  spouse,  

because i f  you read 9 .9  and 9 .11  they ac tua l l y  conf i rm tha t  

what  subsequent ly  happened on the  6 t h  o f  March  was an 

ac t ion  prompted by  the  fac t  tha t  the  se t t lement  

negot ia t ions  had  been abandoned but  as  I  say  in  my 

op in ion  they had not  been abandoned we had d isag reed on  10 

a  few th ings wh ich  cou ld  s t i l l  have been i roned out  and 

on ly  when she thought  tha t  the  se t t lement  negot ia t ions  had 

been abandoned  she then approached the  Commiss ion  

wh ich  then conf i rms tha t  she indeed was a  b i t te r  spouse.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i rperson you w i l l  be  aware  tha t  

the  cu r few s tar ts  a t  ten  o ’c lock  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  have been mean ing  to  check 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  had cer ta in ,  I  am sor ry,  I  had 

d iscuss ions w i th  some o f  the  techn ica l  s ta f f  and  I  was  20 

adv ised by  a t  leas t  one person tha t  he  wou ld  idea l l y  need 

to  leave by  ha l f  past  seven,  so  I  have gone over  t ha t  t ime 

a  l i t t le ,  I  am sor ry,  bu t  I  th ink  the  pos i t ion  is  I  had  hoped  

we cou ld  car ry  on  un t i l  e igh t  o ’ c lock ,  I  canvassed tha t  w i th  

the  techn ica l  s ta f f ,  bu t  i t  i s  no t  poss ib le  in  re la t ion  to  
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everyone,  apparent ly  a t  leas t  one  person has got  a  long  

way to  t rave l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  no ,  no  I  th ink  we have to  be  

sens i t i ve ,  i f  i t  i s  somebody,  I  was a lso  hop ing  we cou ld  go  

up to  e igh t  a t  leas t ,  i f  i t  i s  somebody tha t  we  cannot  

cont inue once he  or  she is  no t  here  then –  because  i f  i t  i s  

somebody tha t  can go but  the re  i s  somebody e lse  who can 

ass is t  us  to  cont inue i t  wou ld  be  d i f fe ren t .    Your  

unders tand ing  is  tha t  i f  we re lease tha t  person we wou ld  

no t  be  ab le  to  cont inue in  te rms o f  techn ica l  suppor t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am not  sure  tha t  I  am qua l i f ied  to  

answer  tha t  quest ion ,  DCJ,  bu t  perhaps  I  can  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Reverend S temela  i s  no t  here ,  now he 

normal ly  ta lks  to  them.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    He may have s tepped out ,  in  fac t  I  

th ink  he  is  a  person who has a  long way to  t rave l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  he  is  the  person?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  am jus t  because i f  o ther  peop le  20 

can s tay  un t i l  e igh t  and tha t  wou ld  no t  a f fec t  the  

proceed ings then  i t  wou ld  be  –  we wou ld  re lease h im.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am sor ry,  i t  may not  be  Reverend  

S temela ,  i t  may be somebody e l se .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  may be somebody e l se ,  okay no  I  th ink 
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maybe we must  jus t  s top  fo r  now,  I  th ink  i t  w i l l  be  

impor tan t  tha t  somebody f rom the  Secre tar ia t  i s  a lways 

here  because now we don ’ t  know whether  i f  we cont inue 

unt i l  e igh t  there  i s  go ing  to  be  a  p rob lem or  no t .     

 Okay Mr  G igaba I  th ink  we w i l l  have to  s top  here ,  

fo r  th is  even ing .    Mr  So lomon are  you s t i l l  there?  

ADV SOLOMON SC:     Yes M’Lord  I  am,  I  am t ry ing  to  pu t  

my v ideo back up  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay we have to  s top  now I  was  hop ing  

we cou ld  go  up to  e igh t  o ’c lock  bu t  I  am to ld  tha t  there  10 

might  be  one techn ica l  pe rson who has to  go  fa r  when they  

go  home and w i th  the  cur few s ta r t ing  a t  ten  we have to  

leave,  I  was hop ing  we cou ld  go  up to  e igh t ,  bu t  we w i l l  

s top  now and then we w i l l  con t inue tomorrow.  

 In  te rms o f  how much t ime we might  need tomor row 

and bear ing  in  m ind tha t  I  th ink  Mr  So lomon becomes 

unava i lab le  f rom four  o ’c lock  maybe we shou ld  s ta r t  ear l ie r  

than normal .   Mr  Myburgh how is  tha t?  

MR MYBURGH SC:    Yes I  th ink  tha t  wou ld  be  a  good idea 

Cha i rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  wou ld  tha t  be  f ine  w i th  you Mr  

G igaba.  

MR GIGABA:    I  am a t  your  d isposa l  s i r,  I  can  s ta r t  even a t  

f i ve  in  the  morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes Mr  So lomon wou ld  tha t  be  f ine  w i th  
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you?  

ADV SOLOMON SC:    Yes tha t  wou ld  be  in  o rde r  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  okay I  th ink  then maybe le t  us  

s ta r t  a t  ha l f  past  n ine ,  I  th ink  le t ’s  s ta r t  a t  ha l f  past  n ine  

tomorrow morn ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  thank you to  everybody fo r  s tay ing  

on  unt i l  th is  t ime,  we w i l l  ad journ  and cont inue w i th  Mr  

G igaba ’s  ev idence tomorrow.  

 We ad journ .  10 

REGISTRAR:  Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 18 JUNE 2021  


